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10,8347

10,119.8

Passengers carried

{000} 2006 2005 2004

26628

Operating Revenue

EURm 2006 2005 20041

744

Operating result = EBIT -88.0 -100.0

EURm
2005
1916 1313
Net Gearing
% 2006 2005 2004t

Earnings per share

EUR

2005

1 Restated: please see Note 3 for details of the adjustment in the Annual
Report 2005 (retrospective application of the compenent approach).
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We speak to the members of the
Board of Management of the Austrian Airlines Group,
Alfred Otsch, Josef Burger and Thomas Kleibl

i
'
I
i

b
The company's recent capital increase went ahead successfully.
What is that going to mean for the Austrian Airlines Group? .
Otsch: The successful completion of this transaction means we have taken an important step in our pro-
gramme of restructuring. The fact that we were able to carry out the capital increase successfully in the
face of the present challenging enviranment in the airline inidustry fills us with a certain pride and re-
newed conﬁde:jnce for the future. The offer was extremely well received both at home and abroad, partic-
ularly in the United Kingdom, Continental Europe and Scaﬁdinavia. The publicly offered volume was
subscribed 1.8 times overall. We view that as evidence of the confidence of capital markets in our company
and the high level of acceptance of our corporate strategy, The successful outcome says that we are
viewed as an brganisation with strong prospects and a brigat future as a specialist provider that can
successfully defirie and retain its place in the European marketplace. it does also set a certain standard for
the future of the company, of course. i

1
How will you be using the funds generated by the capital increase?

Kleibl: The capital increase was successfully completed with an issue volume of around EUR 367 million ... the successful capital |
based on an offer price of EUR 710 per share. The fresh capital will enable us to reinforce both our earn- increase takes us an :
ing power as the leading provider of flight traffic to Eastern Europe and our capital structure in the long important step forward '
term, and consistently move forward with restructuring the Austrian Airlines Group. All this will help us im- in our restructuring

prove our competitive position and accelerate our defined strategy. We are therefore confident that, process...

through the redimensioning of long-haul in particular, the company will soon be moving in a direction
based on profitable growth again. ‘
How, or where, will the funds be invested, in concrate terms?

Burger: We intend to focus on four points above all others. First of all, there is the restructuring of long-haul,
which we have already begun to implement in the report period. Secondly, we will make targeted investments
in the region of Central and Eastern Europe {CEE). We will continue to develop both our product and passen-
ger service - upgrading our lounges in CEE is but one example of this. Our positioning as a quality carrier is
being underlined by a new advertising presence. The new corporate slogan, “Fly with a smite”, formulates a
promise to our customers whilst simultaneously expressing the outlook of our employees. In parallel with
this, we are working continuously to intensify our cooperation \n"ith regional partner airlines.

Kleibl: Following the decision in the long-haul segment, we are currently considering harmonisation of
our medium-haul fleet. We would like to switch to one aircraft brand in this segment - in appropriate
commercial for:m, naturally — and wili be entering into the appi’opriate neqotiations with the manufactur-
ers. Last but nét least, of course, the capital increase has produced a strengthening in our equity cover-
age. making the company considerably less vulnerable to exterinal crises.
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o Thomas Kleibl,
CFO
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What general direction will the Group be moving in from now on?

Otsch: Over the past year we have carried out a detailed investigation into our options for the future, This
strategy check produced the following conclusions. First of all, the direction of our Focus East strategic pro-
gramme was clearly reaffirmed. The CEE region and Middle East will continue to be of absolutely key impor-
tance to the Group. We will do everything within our power to continue expanding our strong competitive po-
sition in these markets and increasing our market shares. We will also continue to concentrate on secondary
markets, and thereby on those niches with lasting revenue potential and less intensive competition, The criti-
cal examination of Group strategy also unambiguously confirmed that this approach was the right one.

Burger: The high kerosene prices on the one hand, and the comparatively small catchment area of the Vien-

... oUr strategy check na location on the other have necessitated a change in our strategy regarding long-haul services. Taken as a
has clearly confirmed share of total long-haul costs, fuel costs have now risen from below 20% to well over 30%. Consaequently this
the importance of segment has become unprofitable, even though the Group had already been implementing wide-ranging -
“Focus East”, our core and very successful - measures for a number of years. And that is why we have decided to redimension the
programme... route network. In 2007 we plan to cease production on the biggest loss-making routes and those that we will

not be able to manage profitably in future. We have already introduced the measures required to get this
process underway. Mainly tourist destinations such as Australia, Phuket, Mauritius, Colombo/Malé and Kath-
mandu will be affected, as well as Shanghai. Those long-haul destinations which we feel confident can gener-
ate a profit in future have been kept in service.

What will the restructuring of long-haul mean for your employees and fleet?

| Kleibl: This vital decision does have consequences for production, of course. The numbers of people employed

| directly by production ~ which means pilots and flight attendants first and foremost - will be reduced in a socially

| talerable process. The same applies to those employees indirectly connected with production - above all members
of ground staff in the areas of handling, sales and technical services. We are planning a reduction in the overhead
area as part of a further step, although this is just beginning implementation. We aim to pay as much attention
to the social perspective of the redimensioning process as possible, and will endeavaur to use redundancies by
mutual agreement wherever possible. A social package has been developed specifically for the pilots affected,
which has since enabled us to complete all the important measures with no need for redundancies. The process
is still underway amongst flight attendants, and will also take place as part of a social plan.
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substantial reduction in requirements. We have already begun the process of adjustment to our new long-haul fleet is moving
long-haul presence. One positive side effect is that the fleet harmonisation we have been working to ahead successfully and
achieve in long-haul will now be possible significantly more quickly than previously planned. From the ' mare quickly than

third quarter of 2007 onwards we will only deploy Boeing aircraft on our long-haul routes. planned...

What does this cutback achieve overall?
Kleib!: Compared to the losses generated in 2006 on the routes atfected, we expect the restructuring measures H
to produce a positive contribution to the result of up to EUR 40 million per annum. According to our estimates, !
it should become Fully effective from the financial year 2009 onwards once the costs associated with the redi-
mensioning are taken into account. In addition to the relief of our result this will produce, the Group will be able
to concentrate in a more targeted way on its specialist role ‘in CEE and develop its profile in this area.

What makes you so certain that continuing to expand the

Focus East programme will succeed? i

Otsch: We have a clear strategy, and are now concentrating even more strongly on a market of which we have
already shown we have a thorough understanding, and in which we can occupy successful, high-revenue nich-
es as a first mover. We can focus on a series of strengths and success factors in order to continue imple-
menting this strategy. First and foremost, we have a well-established, strong brand that is widely recognised
as standing for the highest standards of quality. We shall continue to rise to this challenge. This is one reason
why we launched our quality and service offensive in the report pperiod. The offensive will enable us to work to

develop specific new features to bind our customers to us more strongly, and to continue expanding our com-
petitive position. The Inflight Catering Service in Economy Class, now free of charge, and new lie-flat sleeper
seats on long-hau! Business Class fiights are just two examples of the new levels of quality being offered.

Otsch: When it comes to the fleet, cutting a section of our long-haul services will naturally produce a .. harmonisation of our
Burger: Another example of the increase in service quality we now offer is our new fare concept. Since

April 2006 we have provided a fare concept linked with a nev: online bocking tool that offers customers - having already taken
far greater flexibility and, most importantly of all, the option to individually tailor and book flights with us. numerous high-revenue
While it has only been possible to make a booking in a single fare class until now, individual combinations niche markets as a

of different fare levels are now possible for different sections of routes, or outbound and return flights. “first mover” in the CEE
The fact that this product is now available also demonstrates that our internet booking rate is rising con- region, we are now
tinuously. In an effort to design the product for our passengers to be as broad and diversified as possible, concentrating our

we are consistently building partnerships with other airfines in the CEE region. We recently entered into a efforts on this market

new cooperation agreement with AiR Union, for instance, significantly expanding our sphere of action in more strongly still...

the Russian Federation. AiR Union consists of five airlines, which operate from a total of three hubs in

Moscow, Samara and Krasnodar and use a far-reaching route network. |

Otsch: And when it comes to international hubs, of course, the Vienna location is one of our greatest :
strengths. The city is perfectly positioned from a geographical perspective as a transfer platform for CEE, and '
a huge number of international and Austrian concerns manage their East European business from Vienna,

which guarantees a certain amount of traffic volume. Vienna hzs another dimension beyond even this, how-

ever: while its airport offers a dense network of connections, it ;iemains clearly laid out and manageable, and

its transfer time of 25 minutes makes it quite simply the best in Europe. The completion of "Skylink™ at the

airport — scheduled for the beginning of 2009 - will increase :he capacity and importance of the location

further still. This investment will enable Vienna to secure its pasition as the best transfer hub for CEE well

into the future.

So far we have discussed external, or “sales-side” aspects.

How are things looking internally? |

Otsch: All the measures being implemented can be summed up with two key terms: Process-criented think-
ing and cost-reduction. In our concerted efforts to achieve the * Turnaround in the Turnaround™, we are work-
ing to improve internal processes in general and maximise those areas in which we can reduce costs. We have
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... reorganisation of

our entire customer
service chain and use
of a revenue-optimising
traffic management
system are expected

to deliver further
improvements...

.. we are seeking to
stabilise the company
at the current high
fuel price level...

implemented a new organisational structure in the report period in the context of achieving this objective.
One of the most important changes, as well as being one of the most effective and visible to the outside
world, has also been in the area of services, To form the basis of the quality and service offensive already men-
tioned, we have drawn together the most important links in the customer service chain in the new organisa-
tional unit of Customer Services & Product Management in the report peried. The new division pools respon-
sibility for our flight attendants, product, catering and brand presence. This bundling enables us to design and
harmonise the essential touch points of our customers with the Austrian Airlines Group, and to ensure they
are s effective as possible. We have also reorganised a number of other divisions over the past financial year
in an effort to support implementation of Group strategy. The Sales and Network departments have been
merged, for instance, in order to increase our closeness to the market. The measures introduced in Septem-
ber are already beginning to show positive results. The centralisation of purchasing, which has partly func-
tioned on a decentralised basis at the Group to date, is also expected to produce noticeable cost savings.

Kleibl: We expect important positive impulses for flight revenues and the result from our new revenue-op-
timising traffic management system that has been in use since April 2006. Unfike the evaluation of individ-
ual routes that used to be standard, the new system provides a more halistic analysis of capacities and price
structures across the entire network. In a similar way to an - internal — exchange, seats are taken by means
of an auction mechanism in such a way that their value to the company is maximised. The basis for this is a
highly differentiated analysis and forecast of availability and demand which lets us concentrate on high-
value availability and passengers. This does assume an optimal forecasting quality, however, which we are
steadily raising at present.

Against this background, what is your assessment of the - still clearly negative ~
result for 20067

Kleibl: Understandably, we do not want to become overly enthusiastic. | do think it is important to take into
account, however, quite how challenging the economic conditions in which the company has been imple-
menting its Turnaround programme over the past year really have been. Most impartantly, the fuel price has
continued to rise sharply, once again exceeding all forecasts - this despite the fact that these had already
been set at a very high level. Naturally there has been a financial burden associated with this situation. On top
of this, the angoing costs of the restructuring have put pressure on the result. The fact that we succeeded in
improving our adjusted EBIT by EUR 43.7m on balance despite the fact that fuel expenditure increased by
EUR 75.7m in 2006 is proof that the restructuring measures are working. We shall - as already described -
continue to mave consistently in this direction.

So the outlook for 2007 is more optimistic?

Otsch: Without a doubt. The successful capital increase will allow us to implement the ongoing restructur-
ing of the company more rapidly. The restructuring will continue to be of primary importance in 2007. The
redimensioning of our long-haul business already launched is certainly one of the most important measures
involved. One consequence of this will be a sharp drop in long-haul production, of course. We are also
preparing for internal cost adjustments in the overhead area. At the same time, we will continue to intensify
our efforts in the markets of Central and Eastern Europe and the Middle East. As a specialist and market
leader in the CEE regicn, our strategic position is extremely strong in the European market, and we shall be
doing everything within our power to ensure that our customers, shareholders and employees are satisfied
with the performance of our arganisation.

Kleib!: We still expect to be working with high fue! prices in 2007, so stabilisation of the company will have to
succeed at current price levels, With the backing of the capital increase, we are also considering the possibil-
ity of using a consistent, rolling hedging strategy, to a limited extent and at the right time. We face an impor-
tant positive change in the new financial year in the shape of the transfer of our Headquarters to Vienna Air-
port, Construction of the new building is proceeding according to schedule, and the move has been planned
for the third quarter of 2007 since the topping-out ceremony was held in autumn 2006. We are convinced that
the switch to the new location will have a beneficial effect on our working atmosphere and internal process-
es overall, and consequt"antly on our new direction.
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Strategy

The “Focus East” policy, with its successful concentration on building a Central and |
Eastern European home market and on East-West /West-East transfer, continues to ii
define the key strategic direction of the Austrian Airlines Group. The Group bases
‘the success of this policy on a series of factors. These include the perfect location of |
its Vienna hub, active cooperation with partner airlines in the region, the reputation

of the “Austrian” brand for offering high quality and the years of service and product :
leadership provided by the company. Implementation of the strategy is underpinned !
by the “Turnaround” concept, and borne by extensive measures aimed at improving ‘

turnover and yields on the one hand and reducing costs on the other.

i
. - N 1 ; .
As a specialised network carrier, the Austrian Airlines Group places specific regional focus on its "home |

market” of Central and Eastern Europe, and on East-West/V/est-East transfer traffic. The Greup’s most Central and Eastern
important and lasting competitive advantage remains its route network, which is extremely dense in Europe as a home
breadth and depth and offers a range of transfer options in the short-, medium- and long-haul segments. market

Other distinguishing features of the Austrian Airlines Group primarily involve its above-average level of i
product and service quality. The foflowing chart shows the essential elements of Group strategy: ‘

|
Strategy of the Austrian Airlines Group I

- Focus East:Strategy, |

Specialisation
Strategy

CEE:Strateqgy

S |

Sustainable.Competitive’Advantage

Solid Fundamentals

Aiustrian >

" ] CEE
Brand Sepr:';cdeuisd Austrian 4 : ) D Vienna Headguarter Partner
Image Leadership arrows ) 7’ Hub Concentration Strategy
| in Vienna
/ |
- uccessfuliTurnaround
| Lo
Revenue andl' PCo;t at'?d. Redimensioning
Yield Increase roductvity Long-haul
Management )
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The “Focus East” strategy

|
| To achieve its vision of being the most successful Eurapean airline in the East, the Austrian Airlines Group
has implemented a wide-ranging specialisation strategy, “Focus East”, since 2002. This has enabled the
' Group to reduce its dependence on Western European core markets, open up major new market seg-
ments and develop a clear market profile.

The “Focus East” strategy is concentrated on three key geographical pillars; the Group’s home market of
Central and Eastern Europe; Asia; and the Middle East. With the high levels of passenger growth in Cen-
tral and Eastern Europe (+75%), Asia (+6.5%) and the Middle East (+6.7%), these regions are currently
home to the fastest-growing markets in world aviation (data based on IATA forecast, 2005-2009).

The leading player With 566 connections and 45 destinations in 23 countries, the Austrian Airlines Group is the key player in
in CEE with Central and Eastern Europe today. The company’s Vienna hub, which offers first-class access to the
45 destinations Group’s home market of CEE based on its unbeatable gecgraphical and geopolitical location, provides im-

portant competitive advantage here. Vienna is also clearly superior to its competitor airports as an at-
tractive West-East/East-West hub.

In the geographical segment of Asia, the Austrian Airlines Group has optimised its strategy with a redi-
mensioning of its long-haul product. Return flights within ane day are now particularly economically effi-
cient in this region. In the Middle East, Austria’s political neutrality provides the Group with real competi-
tive advantage across the industry, while the Central European location of the Vienna hub means that
more cost-efficient medium-haul aircraft can be used to serve these routes. .

Focus East strategy

Pax Growth p.a. (2005-2009)*
CEE +7.5% 2006° 2003*

! 33
329

Destinations

Ble

Connections

Asia’ +6.5% 2006° 2003*
7

]

Destinatians

/o

Connections

Middle East

Levante +6,7% 2006° 2003*
1 Destinations ﬁ 12
I Connections 61

1 Summer timetable 2006

2 Source: JATA Passenger Forecast 2005-2009

3 Austrian Airlines Group will discontinue service of
<ertain routes to Asia/Oceania in spring 2007

To strengthen the capillary network of the Group and respond to steadily growing pressure from low-

cost carriers, the Austrian Airlines Group is primarily concentrating on secondary market destinations

Specialisation in an effort to open up selected niche markets with levels of traffic volume that are lower but more
strateqy highly priced. The Group consistently appears as a “first mover™ organisation in these markets - it was

- the first West European airline to serve around one-third of CEE destinations - thereby increasing not

only market utilisation but also its market position. Almost 60% of transfer traffic at the Vienna hub

originates on flights to or from secondary destinations, confirming the wisdom of the Group’s strate-

gic approach in this area.
|



Austrian Airlines on the Capital Market » Management Report » Resources and Services » | Consolidated Financial Statements »

Notes >

Robust structure of transfer traffic (passengers. %)

Secondary [} Primary Long-haul -

58% of transfer traffic

5%
i as well as long-haul destinations:
Primary 16% 134, 45% Global growth drivers
{ 26% of transfer traffic

- 34% 4% ‘ 22% 100%

Source: Austrian Airlines Group 2005,
excl. Slovak Airlines

Transfer traffic to and from CEE also functions as an engine driving the profitability of the entire Group net-
work. More than 70% of CEE passengers use transfer services at the Vienna hub, with almost 30% of them
opting for transfer flights operated by Austrian within it's own Sroup network. Approximately 70% of trans-
fer passengers choose a short- or medium-haul connecting flight, with around 30% transferring onto long-
haul flights, [

The rising passenger volume in the CEE geographical segme'nt is an important engine of growth at the
Group in general. The flight revenue contributed by the regicn has risen to aver 50% of the total for the
Austrian Airlines Group - an upward tendency which shows na sign of slowing. The number of tickets sold
in CEE has also clearly risen. Centval and Eastern Europe is rapidly developing from a destination into a
source market for the Austrian Airlines Group.

Lasting competitive advahtage

As the West European airport with the easternmost geographical location, the Vienna hub of the Austrian
Airlines Group enjoys the ideal geographical position for transfers into and out of CEE. Consequently it of-
fers the perfect support to the “Focus East” strategy of the Group. ‘

The “Focus East” strategy receives additional stimulus from ﬁhe fact that numerous multinationals oper-
ate their Eastern European activities from Vienna, regularly using the benefits of direct traffic to CEE
while doing so. The same is true of Austrian industrial concerns, which are amongst the world’s largest in-
vestors in the countries of Eastern Europe.

For all these reasans, the Austrian Airlines Group continues to develop its central Vienna hub. The new ter-
minal expansion project at Vienna Airport - “Skylink” - is expected to be complete by the end of 2008. it will
increase passenger capacity whilst maintaining the high levels of efficiency already established. In addition
to new lounges, the new terminal concept will include a range of innovative check-in systems designed to
help the Vienna hub retain its present official position as the fastest transfer airport in Europe, despite the
higher passenger frequency. Vienna already reports average transfer times (MTC) of just 25 minutes. In an-
other project, plans are currently underway for the construction of a third runway at Vienna Airport.
3

In order to continue developing its market access in CEE, the Austrian Airlines Group focuses on cogper-
ation agreements with local partner airlines and codeshare agreements. The Group’s specialisationin the
geographical segment of Central and Eastern Europe is curr2ntly supported by a total of 21 partner air-
lines from this region.

from ; W Transfer traffic to or from secondary destinations:
to : Key focus of specialisation strategy

3
Secondary 1193 }16%) 3
B Transfer traffic primary destinations - long-haul
20% {3 Transfer traffic primary destinations:
Take along effect
—_— 16% of transfer traffic

Transfer as an
important engine

Vienna hub

The perfect
geographical and
commercial position

Partner strategy

1 B

i
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Austrian Airlines concluded a new cooperation agreement during the report period with AiRUnion, an
afliance of Russian airlines. The new agreement substantially reinforces the breadth and depth of the
Austrian Airlines Group network in its target region. The Vienna hub will also play an even more important
role as a distributor of West-East/East-West traffic with the impact of an intensive two-way connection
between the route networks of the two new partners.

AiRUnion comprises five Russian airlines operating from three hubs in Maoscow (Demodedove), Samara
and Krasnodar. Alliance members use a far-reaching route network within the Russian Federation.

Since joining the Star Alliance in March 2000, the Austrian Airfines Group has sought to use its integration
into the alliance to achieve a critical mass capable of increasing its potential for minimising costs and in-
creasing revenues, This is particularly the case in areas including network, distribution and sales. The
Group also benefits directly from the attractive portfolio of frequent connections and rapid services of-
fered by its Star Alliance partners.

Successful turnaround

To bolster the turnaround of recent years in the long term and counteract the challenging market condi-
tions experienced primarily as a result of rising crude oil prices, the Austrian Airlines Group has imple-
mented further reconstruction measures:

The Austrian Airlines Group has taken a series of measures in the past financial year designed to lastingly se-

cure its passenger volume and earning power:

B Approximately 84% of all the flights of the Austrian Airlines Group were handled punctually in 2006. This
level of performance places the Group firmly in the premier league amongst European network carriers,
Tharks to intensive punctuality management, the punctuality rate in 2006 improved by around 4.5 per-
centage points compared to the previous year. Despite limited capacities and increased security require-
ments worldwide, the Group succeeded in meeting the high level of punctuality expected by passengers
on scheduled and charter flights. As a result, some 98% of the passengers of the Austrian Airlines Group
were able to reach their connecting flights via Vienna on schedule.

B A wide-ranging quality and service offensive was launched in 2006. This is primarily aimed at devel-
oping new, attractive features that can be used to convince customers of the superier quality of the
Group. Current examples include the free snack service in Economy Class an short- and medium-haul
routes, the expansion of Business Class and the upgrading of the latter through the instalfation of lie-
flat sleeper seats in long-haul.

B To increase its yield, the Group has also introduced a system of revenue-optimising traffic flow
management. Unlike the previous system, which was based on the assessment of individual routes,
this permits differentiated, all-round management of iocal and transfer traffic, enabling market po-
tentials to be recognised at an early stage.

In addition to these activities, the Group continues to emphasise consistent cost and productivity control. The
main cost reduction measures involve cutting unprofitable long-haul routes, primarily to leisure destinations,
and the harmonisation of the long-haul fieet. Due to the high crude oil and kerosene prices, the Austrian
Airlines Group found itself forced to counteract the high logistical markup on refuelling at Vienna Airport.
The Group has therefore refuelled its long-haul flights itself since August 2005, with the work being
outsourced to the company Skytanking since June 2006. Despite this. a strong dependence on OMV services
continues. For this reason, the Group has filed for inspection of OMV pricing policy under competition law.

As a further measure aimed at cost reduction, the Austrian Airlines Group is centralising within the corpo-
rate structure its purchasing activities, which have in part functioned on a decentralised basis to date. The
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bundling of purchasing volume that such a move would achieva is expected to produce noticeable savings,
as is abolition of commission granted to Austrian travel agents on flight bookings in the report period.

The high oil price produced substantial long-haul losses in the report period. As a consequence of this
situation, the Austrian Airlines Group has strategically reariented its long-haul preduct and discontinued
services altogether on the routes with the weakest results.

The measures have also breught steps towards consolidation of the long-haul fleet. Both the Group’s re-
maining Airbus A340-300 are now to be sold, with the four A230-200 also removed from service with the
fleet. As a result of these changes, the future long-haul fleet will only include Boeing B777 and B767 air-
craft with expanded and redesigned Business Class, making it highly homogenous. The Group is making
the reductions in personnel necessitated by the sale of its Alrbus fleet with a range of measures based on
the greatest possible social moderation.

A solid foundation

i
The Austrian brand has stood for high quality for many years, and, together with the service and product lead-
ership of the Group, offers a sclid foundation for positive development of the company. The Greup brand ben-
efits not least from the good image of Austria and Vienna as an attractive cultural and tourist destination.

Austrian arrows (formerly Tyrolean Airways) is amongst the leading European regional airlines. The above-
average productivity and cost-efficiency of this production platform provides a basis for the successful spe-
cialisation strategy of the Austrian Airlines Group in secondary markets.

Charter

In the charter segment, the Austrian Airlines Group operates its services under the “Lauda Air - the
Austrian way to holidays™ brand in general. The Group is also striving to maintain and improve upon
its strong position in the Austrian market in this segment in future. This should make it possible to
bring the Lauda Air brand closer to the Austrian family brand in future, as well as placing greater
emphasis on the Group identity by adding “The Austrian way to holidays".

|

Value management

Despite the present economic challenges, the Austrian Airlines Group is striving to achieve a continuous
increase in the value of the company in the medium- and lonyg-term and achieve an appropriate return ¢n
the investment of its shareholders.

To this end, the management of the Group functions according to the principles of value-oriented man-
agement. This is based on the “Cash Value Added” concept {CVA) and the “Return on Total Gross Assets”
(ROTGA). Long-term growth in CVA and ROTGA serves as a measure of improvement in corporate value

and the creation of added value for shareholders.

To implement this value-criented management the Austrian Airlines Group uses a closed and unified sys-
temn that extends to planning, management and control processes throughout the Group. In this system,
CVAis planned, directed and controlied at Group, business szgment and division levels.

Harmonisation of
long-haul fleet

Austrian arrows as a
flexible regional airline ‘

Lauda Air - the Austrian
way to holidays

Management in'dicato'rs:
CVA and ROTGA
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Our seats give
Sigmund Freud’s

couch an interiort
complex.
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~ And.inthe new Austrian Business Class sleeper seats, nobody-will ask |
you-any-awkward questions either. Far-from it onlong-haul flights in . —
~theBoeing-767 and 777 you‘can;slideback the-seatinto thesleéping#>—

“position-and simplyrelax——7" % ol Sy o men, |
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Product and Service

In the airline industry, constantly irrklproving product and service quality is a cru-
cial success factor. As a quality carrier, therefore, the Austrian Airlines Group is
implementing a range of measures aimed at the ongoing expansmn and optimisa- |
tion of its product range. The new basis for this is a wide-ranging quality and serv-
ice offensive. Launched in 2006, the new campaign is designed to emphasise the |
differentiation of the company from competitor airlines. The report period |
witnessed the creation of numerous new and attractive features, ranging from |
inflight services through to lounges and ground services. The policy has been a
successtul one: a series of recent industry surveys have seen the Austrian Airlines
Group receive top rankings in quality and customer satisfaction categories.

Wide-ranging quality and service offensive
f

The Austrian Airlines Group launched a wide-ranging quality and service offensive in 2006. The measures 1
involved are designed to make flying with Austrian a harmonious experience to which the customer will ‘
look forward. The Group is also placing greater emphasis on cr2ating added emotional value and highlight-
ing specific strengths - the company’s typically Austrian character, for example - more strongly than has
been the case in the past. To ensure total optimisation and alignment with this objective, the quality and
service offensive has been implemented throughout the customer service chain.

[
In an effort to design customers’ essential “touch points” with the Austrian Airlines Group to be as effec- Organisational
tive as possible and to harmonise them with one another, the relevant areas were brought together in streamlining
September 2006 in the newly-founded Custormer Services & Product Management Division. As a key con-
tributor to the Group, the new division now administers, amongst other things, the coordination of flight
attendants, the product, the catering range and brand presence. The division has therefore become the
unit with central responsibility for customer satisfaction and :::service quality.

i
New Customer Services & Product Management process structure

- I . Realise
Anal Posit t * )
> nalyse >> ositlen >> Devetop >>Commli ncd ;> .Pre-In-Flight Post-Flight “

l Lounge
Product Brand Product \ Advertlsmg &\ Cabin Loyality Customer

Strate Management ] jDevelopment & Markei Com- Inflight Operations Programs Relations
gy g g P 9
Management [ / municztions

Suppart
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Strategic prc:»duct development

With.its innovative product and service concept, the Austrian Airlines Group regularly sets the pace
across the aviation industry and makes further improvements in its high standards of service quality. On-
gaing redevelopment iland optimisation represent essential preconditions for success in today's increas-
ingly competitive marketplace. The quality and service offensive introduced by the Austrian Airlines Group
in the report period is a sound basis for this.

Ongoing optimisation The Group is pursuing clearly defined objectives derived from corporate strategy:
with clear aims B to enable passengers to experience “Austria” above the clouds;
W to clearly differentiate between Business Class and Ecanomy Class;
W to reduce complexity throughout the customer service chain;
B to continuously reduce costs whilst maintaining the highest possible level of service,

In an effort to realise these requirements, the Austrian Airlines Group again implemented a range of innova-
tive improvements to product and service quality and the customer experience in the financial year 2006.

| New services in Business Class

Differentiation Because the Austrian Airlines Group meets the needs of its high-value premium traffic and the more price-
. between Business sensitive Economy segment within the same aircraft, the company attaches great importance to distinctions
- and Economy drawn between the two products. By continuing to upgrade its services in Business Class, the Group created

a key focus in the report period and expanded its competitive advantage as a result.

B Austrian Business Class long-haul experience: with the introduction of new long-haul Business Class,
Austrian offers its guests a very special flight experience. The new Austrian “lie-flat” sleeper seats offer
the optimurn levels of seating and sleeping comfort, ensuring passengers are able to travel to, and arrive
at, their destination fully relaxed.

B "Flying Chefs"™: the gastronomic range on board Business Class long-haul has been similarly upgraded.
A special new plus: a dedicated chef puts the finishing touches to passengers’ dishes on board.

B “Coffee house above the clouds™ Austrian provides eleven different types of original Viennese
speciality coffees on Business Class long-haul flights — a service unique anywhere in the world.

B Austrian Lounges at Vienna Airport: the Lounges at the Group’s domestic hub airport not only radi-
ate the fresh new Austrian design, but also offer a wide range of additional features. The work surfaces
in the Business Lounge in the Plaza Area have been enlarged, for example, hot food is replaced more
frequently to ensure freshness at all times and the range of entertainment has been extended. The
world-famous Playstation Portable from SONY is now also available to visitors to the Austrian Lounges.

| 16
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I
Innovatlﬁons in Economy Class E:

As well as con'finuing to upgrade its Business Class service prc'if"le the Austrian Airlines Group introduced
a wide range of product improvements in Economy Class in the report period.

I: .
As of November 2006, for example, the Group introduced a Nnew mfhght catering service free of charge

on all short- and medium-haul flights. “Fresh, innovative and Iﬁ\ustrlan are the key characteristics of this Free inflight

high-value new product. In addition to the best possible quallty and seasonal variety, the new service aims catering
to provide sample dishes from the world-famous Austrian cuisine. A range of drinks whose breadth and
quality is unlque in the European airline industry completes the culinary portfolio. - '

From December 2006, this new service was extended furthen still to include hot meals. The richly varied
selections were created in partnership with internationally renowned Austrian chef Helmut Osterreicher,
already respon5|ble for developing the cold snacks. The snack service is designed to provide a fresh, in-
novative and Austrlan cuisine, and its typically Austrian specmlmes are guaranteed to surprise.

' 1 |
§ . . ’ ]

Other serwce improvements | '

ﬂ

The Austrian Alrlmes Group has paid particular attention to' carrng for passengers who require special

services for many years now. This policy has enabled the company to guarantee problem-free travel to

unaccompamed minors, passengers with restricted mobility.and families with younger children (up to

six years of age) Now, in a concerted effort to design the Check-in experience to be mare pleasant still

for these passengers the Austrian Airlines Group is affering an even better service before departure at

Vienna Airport Two new check-in desks in Terminal 1 marked “Special Assistance” now ensure that pas- Special Assistance

sengers are cared for in accordance with their individual requlrernents

The Austrian Airlines Group continues to report strong rates '5f growth in internet sales - with the high-
ly capable backmg of a new online booking tool. The number of routes that can be booked using an elec-
tronic ticket allso rose in the report period, to 82 destlnatlons The Group introduced a new fare concept
for short- and medium-haul routes in April 2006, which uses greater flexibility and combinability to take
changed customer needs into account. ii
I H
in mutual recdgnition of both companies’ high quality of servii"e Austrian and the international car rental
company Slxt'AG concluded a cooperation agreement across a range of organisational areas (reserva- Cooperation
tions, Miles & More sales) in September 2006. The resultant pre- and post-flight product range provides ~ with Sixt

customers of Austrlan with the appropriate added value in te. ms of comfort and mobility.
i.’

a; Ii
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The Group

Awards

Numerous other
improvements

18

Peak values in quality and customer
satisfaction once again

The quality leadership of the Austrian Airlines Group was confirmed impressively in the report period
once again, as the company collected a series of awards and took leading positions in industry rankings.
The Group views these positive evaluations as a commitment to increase its quality, punctuality and re-
liability further still.

Austrian > |
‘
7’

o Best Airline to Europe

(Travel Savvy)
o 1stPlace - Best Service in Europe

(Capital Magazine)

O 3rd Place - Best Business Class Catering 2006
{Skytrax)

o 3rd Place - Best Quality on Scheduled Flights within Europe
(Capital Magazine)

o 2nd Place - Performance Eurcpean Airlines Overall
{Business Traveller)

Lauda ¥

The Austrian 72 way to holidays

o Goldin Teurism and Public Category
(TAl Werbe Grand Prix 2006)

Structured quality management

To ensure that its high quality requirements are met at all times, the Austrian Airlines Group introduced a
system of centralised quality management for the product division back in 2004, The system is designed
to conduct regular checks on product quality at all stages of the customer service chain.

Quality performance at all “customer touch points” is now analysed in detail by a quality panel, which
meets on a quarterly basis. Customer touch points range from booking to check-in, time spent in
lounges and inflight experience through to levels of post-flight service. The panel consists of all the di-
visional managers affected by the service in question, departmental managers and decentralised qual-
ity managers. The quality panel then reports regularly to the Board of Management on the measures it
has defined as necessary for the improvement of quality standards. Reqular reports are then sent to
the Board of Management on the quality improvement measures defined by the panel.
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The actlwtlesllof the quality management continued with undlmmlshed |nten5|ty in the financial year

2006. A series of significant quality increases were achieved i in the report period:

B Inthe Calll Center Vienna, the agreed service standards ‘were achieved. The service level in place at
the Cente’r’ has been at an internationally appropriate Ievé'-l for some time now,

W The target figures for punctuality were significantly exceeded in 2006. This is also clearly reinforced
by the perceptlon of the passengers. As a survey showed i inthe report periaod, more than 80% of pas-
sengers are highly satisfied with the departure punctuality of the Austrian Adrlines Group.

B The Austrlan Airlines Group also achieved fundamental llmprovements in haggage transportation
and the handlmg of special cases. By implementing a range of measures at Vienna Airport and exter-
nal statlons, the Group reduced the loss of baggage items further still.

B Establishe"d last year in Vienna, a new system of "appec"rance control” inténsively monitors Group
cleaning s ser\nces to ensure cantinuingly high standard' of cleanliness throughout aircraft cabins.
The system has worked: almost 90% of passengers carned by the Austrian Airlines Group offered a
positive evaluatlon of cabin cleanliness in 2006. This has enabled the Group to create maximum value

through direct comparison with the airlines in the Star Algjance.
! y
|; h

Ta rgeted marketing of Austrian Te(- hnical Services .
ii .

Austrian Techlnlcal Services is the leading provider of mamtenance and repair services for commercial

traffic alrcraft in Austria. The unit enjoys a worldwide reputatlon for reliability and quality. Building on ]

this strong posmon in the international maintenance busmess segment, the company founded an own Reliability and

marketing company for technical services in the report perlod to use the name "Austrian Airlines high quality

Technik Marketlng GmbH". The company is now also marketlng the services of Austrian Technical

Services to thlrd party airlines. i]

li l
New advertlsmg line — Fly with a smlle
I' |
From 2007 onwards the Austrian Airlines Group will place gre‘ater emphasis on both its corporate image
| and product focus points as core advertising messages, in an Iatte.-rnpt to achieve lasting differentiation in
I
| the hotly-contested market for flight services. At international level, the new advertising line will be de-
signed to underllne the positioning of the Austrian Airlines Group as a specialist in the east and a quality
airline, so supportmg targeted marketing and sales activities Ji
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Why short 1

sweet again.

The Austrian Snack Box: we're serving excelient food again in
Economy Class on all short haul flights; including tasty
Austrian delicacies prepared by top chef Helmut Osterreicher.
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Austrlan Airlines committed itself to compliance with the full content of the
Austrlan Corporate Governance Cc:de when the new regulatory framework
entered force in 2003. By doing so, |1the company has reconfirmed the value
of transparency and an equitable balance of power at boardroom level.
With the exception of a single “C Rule and a number of “R Rules”,
moreover, the company also meets the requirements of the newly rev1sed
version of the Code (2006) ”

. I

Corporate Governance

Implementlng the new Corporate (Jovernance Code
§
in 2003, in the interest of exercising responsible and transparent corporate management and control,
Austrian Alrhnes became one of the first Austrian companles to commit to compliance with the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code. [3
\i ]
In the caurse of the past financial year, bath the Board of Management and Supervisory Board of the
company have studied the revised version of the Code, WhICh came into force on 1 January 2006, in some
detail. All necessary measures have been taken to comply in} [Full with the new regulations, where these
were not already in place at Austrian Airlines. A number cf particularly |mportant subject areas are
described in more detail below, ;]
‘1 i
; i
Austrian Airlines will naturally do everything within its power to comply with the regulations of the

Austrian Corporate Governance Code wherever possible in the financial year 2007
M

| !

: . i
Compensation |

\%- |
In the interest&. of greater transparency, Austrian Airlines publishes the earnings of each individual mem-
ber of the Board of Management, itemised according to their fixed and profit-related components. For
further detalls see Note 39 of this Annual Report. l]

‘ ‘s

\
The performance -related components can reach a ma)ﬂmum amount of 50% of the annual gross salary
and only become eligible for payment when the target gundehnes as determined by the Supervisory Board
are met, These target guidelines are based to appr. 90% onlthe achievement of operational indicators
(EBIT, CVA or\other for example), and to appr. 10% on |nd|\ndua| targets of the individual Board of
Management r members. Pension provision is requlated separa er and essentially based on a pension fund
rule. With regards to severance pay, the legal regulations e=sent!ally apply under partial abatement of
periods precedmg service with the company. ﬂ

‘. r'l
¥l
| |
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Levels of compensatién for members of the Supervisory Board have been determined annually by the

. General Meeting of Shareholders. Most recently, on 22 May 2006, compensation for the Chairman of the

Supervisory Board was set at EUR 18,200, that for the two Deputy Chairmen at EUR 13,650 each, and for
all other capital representatives at EUR 9100 each. Members of the Supervisary Board received EUR 365
each per meeting as an attendance fee,

|

!

Independence of Supervisory Board members

One of the key issues éf the thoroughgoing revision of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code was the
independence of Supé}visory Board members. Austrian Airlines has made the appropriate adjustments to
the rules of internal procedure of its Supervisory Board and adopted guidelines for the independence of
Supervisory Board members in order to create the framewark necessary to implement the full content of
the new regulations of the Code surround:ng the issue. ‘

All members of the Suberwsory Board have declared their independence subject ta the criteria defined in
the Cade. !

‘!
The Supervisory Board includes six members who are independent of the core shareholders of Austrian
Airlines, As a result, thls criterion for the independence of the controlling bodies of Austrian Airlines also
exceeds the reqmremgnts of Rule C 54 of the Code.

Implementation in financial year 2006 in detail

i
With one exception, Austrian Airlines complied with all the recommendations contained in the Comply or
Explain section of the Code (C Rules) in the financial year 2006. Austrian Airlines also complies with all L
Rules and the majority‘ of R Rules of the Code as a matter of course.

Deviations from C Rules
m Ruleds |

The object and condltlons of the agreements between Austrian Airlines and companies in which
individual mernbers of the Supervisory Board of Austrian Airfines active until 22 May 2006 exercise
executive functions, are not publicised for reasons of competition between these companies. Austrian
Airlines excluded c:jomplia nce with this rule in its commitment to the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code for the finan;ia[ year 2003,
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Cot porate Bodies

Supervisory Board

Peter Micha%Iis, Chairman (since 30.06.2006), Board of
Management, OIAG (Supervisory Board since 06.05.2004)
Herbert Koch, First Deputy Chairman, Executive Partner,
Kika M&bel-HandelsgesmbH and Managing Director, Leiner |
(Supervisory Board since 09.03.2001) ]
‘ Rainer Wieltsch, Second Deputy Chairman (Chairman until t’
- 30.06.2006), Member of Board of Management, OIAG j
‘ (Supervisory Board since 08.05.2002) }
Alain D. Bandle, General Manager Germany & Austria, i
Dell GmbH (Supervisory Board since 09.03.2001) i
Erhard Schaschl, Chairman of Supervisory Board, Osterreichische
Elektrizitatswirtschafts AG (Supervisory Board since 09.03.2001)
Walter Knirsch, Partner, KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschafts- !
prifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft 3
(Supervisory Board since 22.05.2006) !
Robert Biichelhofer, former Member of Board of Managemant,
Volkswagen AG (Supervisory Board since 22.05.2006) ”
Carl Michel, Group Chief Executive, Holidaybreak plc I
(Supervisory Board since 22.05.2006)

The following members left the Supervisory Board in the report period
Alfred Otsch $econd Deputy Chairman, Member of Board of
Management Siemens AG Osterreich

(Supervisory Board from ¢9.03.2001 until 28.02.2006)
Martine Dornier-Tiefenthaler, Lawyer {until 22.05.2006)
Johann Zwettler, CEQ, Bank fiir Arbeit und Wirtschaft AG  |;
(until 22.05.2006) ]
Walter Rothensteiner, CEQ, Raiffeisen Zentralbank AG |
(until 22.05.2006) )

Retail investor’s representative of Supervisory Board !
[ ‘.(

Erhard Schaschi,

The following employees were appointed by the Austrian Airlines
Staff Council in accordance with Section 110 of the Austrian
Employment Law to serve as staff representatives on the
Supervisory Board:

Alfred Junghans (Supervisory Board since 11.09.2001)
Thomas Hiringer {(Supervisory Board since 11.01.2006}
Franz Marsak (until 11.01.2006)

Wolfgang Hable (Supervisory Board since 20.09.2005)
Michael Eder (Supervisory Board since 24.05.2005)
Gabriele Millmann {until 11.01.2006)

Franz Pennauer {from 11.01.2006 until 22.05.2006)

in accordance with Section 141 of the Austrian Aviation Law,
the Austrian Civil Avietion Authority was represented on the
Supervisory Board by

Karl Prachner

Board of Management

Alfred Otsch - Chief Executive Officer

(CEO - Member of Board of Management from 01.04.2006;
Chief Executive Officer from 01.05.2006)

Josef Burger — Chief Commercial Officer (CCO)

Thomas Kleibl - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Vagn Sarensen - Chief Executive Officer

{CEQ — until 30.04.2008)

Erhard.schaschi@verbund.at; Tel: +43/5/03 13 54000, Mobite: +43/6E 4/301 4986

i
Subcommittees of Supervisory Board (status as at 31.12.2006) |t

Compensation Committee Audit Committee
(equivalent of former Presidium)

fulfils function of Austria

(equivalent of former Balance Sheet Committee;

Nominations Committee
(equivalent of former Personnel Committee)
n Compliance Guideline}

Peter Michaelis
Rainer Wielts-h
Robert Biichelhofer
Walter Knirsch

! Thomas Harirger

i Michael Eder|1

Peter Michaelis
Rainer Wieltsch
Herbert Koch

Peter Michaelis '

Rainer Wieltsch
Herbert Koch

Erhard Schaschl
Wolfgang Hable
Alfred Junghans
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Alfred Otsch  JosefBurger Thamas Kleibl
1 2 3
Customer Services . . Flight Operation .
& Product Network & Flight Operations| | F''9 ; Ground Technical
M anarge;cent Sales Charter +) Cargo System Austrian ;‘:;g':f) Operations Department
1 2 3

Gontrolting]&]
Accounting

8

Fuman] Gorp. AircraftiAsset
[Ressources!a] Projektls [BUSiness) Managementit
B ITISeryices 8 Services) 8 Croup Treasur):3

[ Business Divisions
Secr. General, Corporate Quality & . Risk &
Strategy & c Corpo_rattg SubSESiaries & Procteyss Audit & Opportunities M Central Service Divisions !
Corp. Policies ommunications IR Management Compliance Management I
1 1 3 t 1 [ Staff Divisions
+} legal entity
1. 2.3 Board of management allocation
Alfred Otsch - CEO Josef Burger - CCO Thomas Kleibl - CFO _Vagn Serensen - CEO untit 30.04.2006
Born 10051953, Bom 04.04.1952, Born 24 May 1959, Born 12121959, i
married, 2 daughters married, 2 sons married, 1 daughter, 2 sons married, 2 daughters, 1 son |
Career path Career path Career path Career path
» 1978 w 1978 m 1979 -1983 m 1984 - 2001
1978 Siemens AG Osterreich / Austrian Airlines Kleibl GmbH SAS Scandinavian Airlines
Assistant to Board of Management market research m 1984 - 1986 Various marketing and
» 1983 m 1979 -1981 Milan Bioform GmbH management functions, including
Siemens AG (Munich) / Gsterreichisches ’ » 1987 - 1989 Vice-President, Route Sector |
Foreign Central Administration " Verkehrsbiro ' Girozentrale / Account Manager Europe; Vice-President, SAS
® 1986 ® 1982 i = 1989 -1992 Airlines International; Senior
Siemens AG Osterreich / Meridian tour operator; OMV AG / Divisional Controller Vice-President & General
Commercial Manager, Drive, m 1982 - 200t a 1991 -1992 Manager. 5AS Business Systems
Gearing and installation Tyrolean Airways / Executive Contraller of OMV Canada Ltd. Division; final position Executive i
Technology Division and manager of marketing | 1992 - 1994 Vice-President & Deputy CEQ
Plant Technology Biviston department Lauda Air / Manager Controlling '
a 1993 w 2001 u 1994 - 2001 ® 1102001 until 30.04.2006
Siemens AG Osterreich / Tyrolean Airways / Wienerberger Ziegel AG / Austrian Airlines Group /
Member of Board of Management Managing Directer © Business Manager Austria Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
m 11/2001
Siemens AG (Nuremberg) / m Since 1510.2001 m Since 01.10.2001
Member of Board of Management, Austrian Airlines Group / - Austrian Airlines Group /
Automation and Drives Division Chief Commercial Officer (CCO) Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
m 1272005 . ;
Siemens AG Osterreich / Current contract runs until Current contract runs until

Member of Board of Management 30.03.2009 30.059.2009
® Since 01042006

Austrian Airlines Group /

Member of Board of Management
| Since 01.05.2006

Austrian Airlines Group /

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Current contract runs until
31.03.2010

Y
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Risk and Opportumty
Management ;l

In the dynamic environment of thefairline industry, active management of busi-
ness risks and targeted identification and usage of opportunities count as part of
daily commercial life for the Austrian Airlines Group. The Group’s cross-depart-
ment, value-oriented risk management system continuously records and analyses
the trend in factors including exchange rates, interest rates, fuel prices, the load
factor, yields and production costs. The management process was placed on a new
footing in November 2006, and is now to be expanded further and developed
into a Group-wide risk and opportunity management system.

” )

|
As an aviation company, Austrian Airlines acts in a high-risk, dynamic environment. Risks and opportunities

are part of everyday business life for the company. For some time now, Austrian Airlines has been working
to actively manage its business risks. A department dedicated to risk management throughout the compa-

ny has been i in existence since the financial year 2003. ! /

I
Group-wide, value-oriented risk management is now the responsibility of a single risk manager at Austrian New Risk and Opportunlty
Airlines. This individual will use institutionalised processes to continuously gather in and analyse all relevant Management depa rtment-

risks, creating a basis for the prompt planning and implementation of countermeasures.

m Thereis a particular focus on the proactive management :)f external factors, especially exchange rate,
interest rate and fuel price trends.

m Market risks mainly impact the load factor {capacity utlllsed) and yield (revenue per sold kilometer).
Precise analyses of the respective booking situation allon for active revenue management oriented
towards ongoing optimisation.

s Since the production of an airline (available k:lometers) can only be adjusted to a limited extent in the
short term, forward planning and scheduling, as well as the ability of a company to resist crises
through flexibilisation of fixed costs, are of crucial importance.

m For this reason, the Group uses capacity management to match the “production” of flight services
with current demand as precisely as possible and makes évery possible effort to ensure excess capac-
ity is usefully employed or sold. ﬁ

|J

For the purposes of the Austrian Airlines Group quality offenswe a high level of transparency becomes particu-

larly important. The ability to recognise risks early on, successfull v control and manage these and to identify and

use opportunities is absclutely central to the success of the offersive. It was with this in mind that the Group cre-

ated a new Risk and Opportunity Management unit in November. 2006, placing the management process of this

area on a new footing. Step by step, the existing risk management will now be expanded further and developed

to become a company-wide risk and opportunity management capable of making a valuable contribution to the

overall management of the Group. The primary goal thereby is not so much risk avoidance as the controlled and

conscious handling of risks and prompt recognition and realisation of opportunities that present themselves.
]

For further details, see Note 36. e‘
|
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No line when
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Welb check-1n.

Online booking and web check-in mean long waits are behind you.
Now you can turn your computer into a check-in
counter and simply print out your boarding pass at home.
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The key event on the capital market for the Austrian Airlines Group in 2006 was
the capital increase successfully implemented in November. Some 51.7 million
new shares were issued in the transaction — which was 1.8-times subscribed —
generating gross issue proceeds of EUR 367 million for the company. These funds
will now be used to enable more rapid implementation of the strategy and
restructuring of the company. The price trend of Austrian Airlines shares also
benefitcd from the capital increase; rising sharply in the fourth quarter. Over the
year as a whole, the share price rose by 11.7%, although the trend remained volatile.

Austrian Airlines Shares

|
il
International share markets buoya nt

After experiencing a strong start in the first quarter of 2006.: international share markets were unable to
maintain this upward trend following a sharp correction in the second quarter, in spite of positive eco-
nomic data. Internatlonal indices suffered a renewed setbal k around the middie of the year, although
markets did begln to experience a recovery in Q3. The stronqer market performance towards the end of
the year was triggered primarily by the downward cil price trend. Over the year as a whole, the FTSE Index
sustained an upward trend with an increase of 11.1%, white the German DAX rose by 22.3%.

Ji

1

Positive trend on the Vienna Stockf Exchange

The Austrian Traded Index (ATX), representing the 20 most important Austrian stocks on the Vienna Stock
Exchange, essentially followed the lead of international share markets. After enjoying a positive trend in
the first months of the report period, the ATX experienced & sharp price correction in May. The ATX was
unable to exceed the 4,000-point mark again until October before peaking at an all-time high of 4,463
points on 28 December 2006. On 31 December 2006 the AT)\ reported an increase of 21.7% compared to
the previous year. |
|
Positive corporate results and national economic forecasts for Austria and the extended domestic market
of companies in Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe had an overwhelmingly reinforcing effect on
market optimism. The attractiveness of the market, expansion in the product range due to new listings and
capital increases and higher numbers of participants in trad‘ing again produced a significant rise in trad-
ing volume, with total turnover on the spot market of the Vienna Stock Exchange increasing by 76.2% in
2006 compared to the previous year to an average of EUR 1:.1 billion per month. Total market capitalisa-
tion as at 31 December 2006 was EUR 145.8 billion, 36.1% aboue the comparable Fgure for December 2005.

. }

| J
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Information on
Austrian Airlines shares

Stock Exchange listing
Vienna {Introduction 1988),

Official Trading/Prime Market
Market Maker (Stock Exchange}
Bank Austria, Erste Bank,
Timber Hill (Europe)

Market Maker Futures and

Options Market
Timber Hill (Europe)

Reuters
AUAVVI

Bloomberg
AUA

Datastream
O:AUA
OKB-WKN
062015

ISIN
AT0000620158

Strang corporate and
economic data

Notes >




< Highlights

€ The Group  Departure into the Future} € Top Quality as Success Factor € Corporate Management and Control

Capital reduction at
preliminary stages

Issue volume:
EUR 367m

Promaoting the
participation for
all subscribing
shareholder.

Successful capital increase

Key Facts ;
Volume: 51,680,000 new shares

. iS:lECI_'I;tlon aEtEI offer period: 16 November to 1 December 2006
El;b_igqbtno; ra’t:(_)—y_ 8 new shares for every 5 old shares
-f’r'lcmg -_‘-_ﬁ______ ) “At market bookbuilding”
;Iissuieiprilcigg : o EUR 710 per share
_|._|_stIr_1;___“ 5 December 2006
h'rkrransactic;rsiuccess: subscribed 1.8-times

The Austrian Airlines Group took an important partial step in its programme of restructuring with the cap-
ital increase completed successfully in the financial year 2006. The issue proceeds generated strength-
ened the capital structure of the Group in the long term. Most importantly of all, the injection of fresh
capital will enable the Group to accelerate its investments in quality, market position and Group optimi-
sation. The full placing of the 51.68 million new shares underlines the high leve! of acceptance of the
Group on the capital markets.

As a financial-technical measure preceding the capital increase, the Group carried out a simplified
capital reduction according to Sections 182 ff. of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. This was designed
to prevent a shortfall on the nominal value at that time of EUR 7.27. The calculated notional amount per
share was reduced to+EUR 3.00 as a result, reducing the nominal share capital by EUR 145.2m, from
EUR 247.2m to EUR 102.0m. The number of no-par shares was raised during the restructuring frem
34.00 million to 85.68 million, due to the assue of 51.68 million shares, and the total issued share capital
after the capital increase is EUR 257.0m. The capital increase was authorised in an Extraordinary Meeting
of Shareholders on 2 November 2006,

The issue price for the new shares was fixed at EUR 7.10 per share on 1 December 2006. As a result, the
Austrian Airlines Group generated a gross issue volume of approximately EUR 367 million, which was
injected into the Group as fresh capital once the cost of carrying out the transaction had been deducted.

The tramsaction was subscribed 1.8-times, and extremely positively received amongst international
institutional investors and private and institutional investors from Austria. By exercising their purchase
rights, the main shareholder OIAG and shareholders represented in the Austrian institutional investor
syndicate also took paft in the capital increase, and continue to hold a share of 50% plus one share
as aresult.

In November 2008, in the weeks preceding the capital increase, the Group organised an international
roadshow, in the course of which it held numerous individual discussions with interested parties. Institu-
tional investors and analysts were provided with wide-ranging information about current trends at the
company, and its perspectives for the future.

In an effort to make the new shares as attractive as possible to retail as well as institutiona! shareholders,
the Austrian Airlines thoup introduced a unique prometional programme during its capital increase. In
addition to this scheme, all purchasing sharehalders and subscribers were granted a discount of 10% off
the final purchase and issue price for the first 1,000 young shares, and a discount of 5% off the purchase
and issue price of every other young share, up to a total of 2,000 young shares. This attractive offer was
strongly taken up, with around 4.0% of the issue going to private shareholders.
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Positiveztrend in Austrian Airlines sihare price

; i
Austrian Airlines share price trend in comparison to jet fuel price trend {USD/t)
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1
The trend amongst airline shares was strongly influenced by the positive prospects of capital markets in the
financial year 2006, and succeeded in holding its position despite a new record high in the oil price. The
trend in the MC5I Europe Airline Index tended to be sideward in the first half-year, due primarily to the high
crude oil prlces although it subsequently reported sharp i mcraases in the second half-year, On 31 Decem-

ber 2006, the MCSI Industry Index was 69.2% above its level a< at 31 December 2005.

The Austrian Airlines share price trend was volatile in the repoﬁ period and was influenced by the il price
trend in particular. Following a phase of substantial share price giains in the first quarter, the share lost ground
in the second quarter and was primarily subject to sideward movement in the third quarter. Only in the fourth
quarter did a positive tendency set in, chiefly influenced by the successful capital increase. Austrian Airlines
shares were tradmg at EUR 7.34 on 31 December 2006, 11.7% above their value at the end of 2005.

h
Austrlan Airlines share price compared to ATX and MSCI !'uropean Airline Index’ (indexed as at 01.01, 2006)

i ﬁ]

£

B Austrian Airlines Share

Austrian Airlines share
price: +11.7%

160 — !
140 — ) “
o L YA
| .
15 B ATX
100 — ™~ o
] B Total Return Index Austrian Airlines
80 — il B MSCI European Airline Tota! Return Index
i
60 — : |
112006 | 142006 17.2006 110.2006. 3112.2006
"

1 The MSCI Europe Airines index has been calculated since January 1995. It includes Luft.har;a. British Airways, Air France, SAS and iberia, and reflects Total

Shareholder Retum {price gains and dividends). }\

|
The Austrian Airlines share was listed on the Prime Market of‘the Vienna Stock Exchange as at 31 Decem-
ber 2006. Austrian Airlines shares were represented on the ATX Prime Index with a weighting of 0.4%
on the balance sheet date. The total volume of turnover in Austrian Airlines shares on the Vienna Stock
Exchange was 378.8m in 2006. This figure, which was positively influenced by the capitalincrease, was sig-
nificantly up on the previous year. The average daily turnover :t_:otalled 205,946 shares {(in double counting).
| i
;

29

|




il

< Highlights |

S

The Group € Departure into the Future | € Top Quality as Success Factor | { Corporate Management and Controt

Free float rises
to 48.0%

30

Stable shareholder structure

Shareholder structure after capital increase

48.0% Free Float

1 For the purpose of guaranteeing Austrian ewnership and
effective contral in the sense of Article 4 of European
Council Requlation 2407 /92 (EEC} and the currently valid
bilateral agreements on Air Transpaort, a syndicate agree-
ment is in place between OIAG and Austrian institutional

39.8% OIAGL investors - LVBG Luftverkehrsbeteiligung GmbH,
Raiffeisen-Invest GmbH., Wiener Stidtische Aligemeine
Versicherung Aktiengesellschaft and GKK Halding
Gesellschaft m. b. H. (BAWAG P5.K.). Signatories to this
syndicate agreement are committed to voting in the same
way as OIAG. The shares combined within the consortium

2.0% Austrian Airlines are subject to restrictions on their sale.

10.2% Austrian institutional
investors (syndicate)!

The proportion of shares held in free float rose from approximately 435% by 4.5 percentage points
to 48.0% in the report period due to the capital increase. The main reason for this is a reduction in the
equity share of the Austrian Airlines Group, which was reduced through dilution from 5.0% to 2.0%. The
capital increase produced marginal shifts within the holding of the Austrian institutional investor syndi-
cate, which continues to hold a majority of shares with 50% plus one share. Air France sold its 1.5% share
in the Group in October 2006, in the weeks preceding the capital increase. The broad spread of ownership
of Austrian Airlines shares shows the high level of interest and confidence in the company, particularly on
the part of international investars.
|

Dividend canlcelled

The Austrian Airlines Group is striving to achieve a lasting restructuring of its operating results and a size-
able reduction in the level of debt. Despite the reductions made in recent years, the net gearing of the
Group continues to exceed the level that the Group is working to achieve, and stood at 91,2% as at 31 De-
cember 2006. Due to the lack of a positive balance sheet result at the parent company for the past finan-
cial year, payment of a dividend in 2006 will not be possible. Due to the simplified capital increase, any div-
idend will be limited to 4.0% of the issued share capital until to the end of the year 2008 at the earliest. In
the medium term, the turnaround now completed is designed to benefit shareholders through the pay-
ment of appropriate dividends.

Key figures (EUR)

1.34 : 127

-405 355 -405 -355

1 Restated. please see Note 3 for details of the
adjustment in the Annual Report 2005 (retrospective
application of the component approach).

2 Due to the net loss for the year, the diluted earnings
per share correspends to the earnings per share.

as a result of the capital increase in 2006.

4 Adjusted by average number of own shares held by
. X o the company.

20041 20052 20062 20041 2005 20062

Earnings per share 3 Earnings per share diluted 4

3 Adjusted o account for 1.7m bought-back shares from
2002 and cansidering the number of shares newly-issued
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To create trust by providing all target groups in the financial community with transparent,
up-to-date information: the key objective of the extensive Investor Relations activities of
the Austrian Airlines Group. In order to achieve this, the Group’s top priority is to address
the concerns of investors, analysts and financial journalists, while maintaining a special j‘
focus on service. The year 2006 saw the Group implement a range of positively received

measures — the most important in connection with the successful capital increase. |

Particularly during periods of far-reaching change - such as the capital increase in the past financial year
- the Investor Relations activities of the Austrian Airlines Group are oriented towards providing the finan-
cial community with detailed information about the company. Balanced evaluation of the Group’s share
price in line with actual market conditicns is absolutely essential if long-term confidence in the Group is
to be maintaired. A high level of transparency, service and sy;mmetry of information are considered the
most important quiding principles of a range of measures employed by the company in this area.

The Group organised an intemnational roadshow within Europe in preparation for the capital increase, which
generated extremely positive feedback from Austrian and international investors and analysts. The Austrian
Airlines Group continued to generate a high level of interest amongst key players in the financial community in
20086, a fact reflected by its extensive research coverage. Numzrous Austrian and international investment
houses, including Bank Austria, Citigroup Smith Barney, Deutsche Bank, Erste Bank, Exane BNP Paribas and

Raiffeisen Centrobank publish corporate analyses of the Austrian Airlines Group on a regular basis.

Financial Calendar 2007

Annual Results 2007

ez ciitetes o

Annual General Meetlng Austrian Alrlmes AG

Flrst Quarter Results 2007

e - e ——

Half Year Rgsults 2007

Thrrd Quarter Resuits 2007

Key figures for investors

Share prrce at year-end

EUR

b ot oiamos e

SHare pnce hlgh

EUR

Share price low

R N L LELTrr e

Market capltahsatlon at year-end*

EUR
EURm

Turnover on Vrenna Stack Exchange

Average datly turncver

EURm

EURm

Furures and Optrons Market

Co ntracts

Dl\ndend‘

EUR

1 Adjusted to accaunt for 1.7m bought-back shares from 2002 and considering the number of shares newly-issued as a result of the capital increase in 2006.

2004 2003 2002
966 || 652 ]| &90

| 1360 79 || 1082
st || sm [ seo
2106 || 2229

763 || 1495

o3t || 110

13 || 180

12846 || 27841

2 Dividend 2006: due to lack of balance sheet profit at the parent company, dividend payment not possible

Broad-based research
coverage

Contact:
Investor Relations I
Prisca Havranek-Kosicek

Tel: +43/5/1766-3311
investor.relations@austrian.com

Interested investors wishing to
access regularly updated informat
about Austrian Airlines will find
the Investor Relations section
of the company website at
www.austrianairlines.co.at is
all they need. Details of key financial
results can also be downloaded |
around the clock, In addition to thrs
service, the Investor Relations team
is always happy to provide answers to
mare specific questions about the
company. |

|
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1gured the best
or a hub would
he middle.

As a hub between Eastern and Western Europe, Vienna
perfectly fits the bill. But that’s not all - stopover times
at Vienna International Airport are the shortest in Europe.
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Business Development 2006

On the strength of encouraging increases in traffic demand, numbers of passen-
gers carried, load factor and yields, the Austrian Airlines Group was able to
significantly improve its operating performance in 2006. Despite this, the result -
due primarily to continuing sharp increases in fuel prices, which strained results
in the airline industry worldwide - jremained negative. There is still evidence of a
positive tendency, however. The Group increased its adjusted EBIT by EUR 43.7m
to EUR ~8.3m, while its EBIT also improved, rising by EUR 11.0m to EUR -89.0m.
Extraordinary strains associated with the restructuring necessitated by redimen-
sioning of the long-haul segment launched in the report period had the effect of
slowing down gains in this area, however. The liquidity situation and balance
sheet structure were also significantly more favourable at the end of 2006, due
primarily to the success of the recent capital increase.

Highly volatile environment contin'ues

As a highly cyclical industry, the international aviation sector |‘ strongly dependent on the wider economic
trend and extremely susceptible to external factors. -

i
The overall improvement in world economic conditions continlied in 2006. The major drivers of this growth
were the USA, with GDP growth of 3.4%, and the Asia region - above all China, which experienced econom-
ic growth of 10.4%. Experts also expect to see the positive grt)wth trend in these regions continue in the

medium term. ‘}
H |
i I
The ecaonomic situation in the Eurozone also showed a slight upward trend in general, with economic growth Positive competitive ‘
of 2.6% in the report period. . The dynamic economic development of the new member states of the EU con- trend |

tinued throughout 2006, with growth rates of between 5 and 5% forecast for the medium term. At around
3.2%, the rate of growth in Austria in 2006 was above both the fiqure for Austria in the preceding year and the |
average for the 25 EU member states of 2.8%. Economic commentators are now predicting GDP growth in
Austria of around 2.6% for 2007, once again above the European average. Further growth could be impaired
by factors such as insecurity over future oil price trends and fears surrounding rises in inflation and interest
rates.Despite the substantial traffic growth, the continuing high oil and kerosene prices produced uncertainty
over the results situation in the aviation sector. ‘

Annual Statement of Accounts according to IFRS

The Annual Statement of Accounts 2006-of the Austrian Airlines Gnaoup was prepared in accordance with IFRS - International Financial Reporting
Standards (formerly known as International Accounting Standards :)r IAS}. In the interest of improved international comparability, the Group intro-
duced International Accounting Standards into its reporting in 2004 Please refer to Note 38 of this Annual Repart for details of the individual busi-

ness areas {segments).

3 8
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New passenger
record

Availability and
demand increased

Increases in traffic performance and load factor

The Austrian Airlines Group recorded extremely encouraging flight demand in the report period. The
number of passengers carried was once again above ten million, passing the previous year’s figure of
10.12 million passengers at end-November. The total number of passengers carried by the Group in the re-
port period stood at 10,834,668, This was a 7.1% increase on the figure for the previous year.

Trend in available seatkilometers and passengers carried

34

+1.1%
10,835
+L6%

31374 e

+5.7% 10.120

30,887 0.1

;

2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006

Available seat kilometers (millions) Passengers carried (000)

On the basis of increased passengers numbers overall, the Group also reported an increase in traffic de-
mand measured in revenue passenger kilometers (RPK) in 2006. This figure increased by 2.1% compared
to the preceding year, also exceeding production growth (ASK} of 1.6% in the report period.

The trend in availability needs to be differentiated over the past year: in the course of redimensicning its
long-hau! availability, the Group reduced its frequencies - primarily on routes to Australia and Toronto -
leading to a fall in production. In the short- and medium-haul segment, by contrast, production was
expanded compared to the previous year, primarily to CEE and Scandinavia, and subsequently effectively
marketed.

Thanks to the encouraging demand trend, the passenger load factor on scheduled services also increased
in the report pericd, rising by 0.2 percentage points to reach 74.0%.

Increase in yields

The yields of the Austrian Airlines Group improved considerably in the report period. The Group imposed
a range of measures, including fuel surcharges, to compensate for the impact of the increased fuel costs,
and these contributed in part to this positive result.
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‘ |
1

Improvement in result situation |

Profit and loss account (EURm) | 2005 +/-abs. +/-%

Operating revenue 24858 1770 71 !
Operating expenses -2,585.8 -166.0 -6.4 i
EBITDAR 3035 =263 -87
EBITDAR adjusted’ 3194 233 9.2 1 Adjusted by the result from the disposal of
N L assets, other costs of the transfer of aircraft
Result from operating activities* (EBIT) -100.0 110 11.0 and foreign currency valuations at the reparting
. T . date and the value adjustment at Stovak Airlines.
Result from operating activities* (EBIT) adjusted® -52.0 437 84.0 2 Before incorporation of associated companies.
N - F 3 Adjusted by the result from the disposal of
Financial result -296 -195 -65.9 assets, other costs of the transfer of aircraft,
foreign currency valuations at the reparting
Result before tax -1296 -85 -6.6 date and recovery/impairment cf the value of
aircraft and the value adjustment at Slavak
Resutt before tax adjusted® -94.9 448 472 Ailines.
4 Adjusted by the resulr from the disposal of
Resutt from continued business divisions -1313 -33 -6.3 assets, ather costs of the transfer of aircraft.
foreign currency valuations at the reporting
Result from continued business divisions adjusted* -96.6 45,0 46.6 date, recovery/impairment of the value of
aircraft and the effect of changes in the rate of
Net result for the year -1291 —038 ~0.6 corporation tax and tha value adjustment at
¥ - : . Slovak Airlines.

The Austrian Airlines Group made a noticeable improvement in its operating performance in the financial

year 2006 compared to the preceding year. The crucial factors in this were the increase in flight revenue

and the above-average increase in yields in relation to unit costs. By contrast, the result for the report pe- ]
riod was burdened by extraordinary effects - overwhelmingly as a result of the restructuring and the as-

sociated personnel provisions. In lights of the challenging con:ditions. it was still not possible to achieve a

positive result. i

Although the adjusted EBIT of the Group, at EUR 8.3m, remair{ged slightly negative overall, the figure rose

substantially, improving by EUR 43.7m compared to the previous year. The EBIT - this includes extensive Adjusted EBIT:
extraordinary positions — mainly provisions for the redimensioning of long-haul, exchange rate gains from EUR -8.3m

securities and value adjustments for Slovak Airlines - also improved, from EUR -100.0m to EUR -89.0m.

The financial result of the Austrian Airlines Group fell by EUR :iQ.Sm in the report period, primarily due to

the depreciation of securities, to reach EUR -49.1m (2005: EUR -29.6m). On this basis, the result before tax i
reached EUR -138.1m (2005: EUR -129.6m). Overall this generated an annual net result of EUR -129.9m
(2005: EUR -129.1m).

Nevertheless, one of the key factors in the overall result trend being out of line with expectations
was the continuing rise in the price of kerosene in 2006, which brought the Group total additional costs
of EUR 75.7m. 5'

Result trend (EURm)

74.4

434

Il 1296 -1381

-100.0 -85.0

1 Please see Note 3 in the Annual Report 2005 for
details of the adjustment (retrospective applica-
tion of the component appraach).

2 Before incorporation of asseciated companies.

2004 2005 2006 2004! 2005 2006
Result from operating activities’ (EBIT) Result before tax | i
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Flight revenue:
+8.8%

36

Revenue and operating revenue increase

Operating revenue {(EURm) 2006 2005 +/-abs. +-%

Flight revenue 22605 1983 88
Other revenue 1324 2.0 15
_Eevenue | 23929 2003 84
’(_)th |nco-r;;’ 929 ~-233 -251
[ Operating revenue 24858|] 1770 71

1 Includes changes in inventories and earnings from the sale of tangible and intangible assets.

Compared to the expansion in production of 1.6% (ASK), the Austrian Airlines Group was able to increase
its flight revenue in 2006 at the disproportionately strong rate of 8.8% to reach a total of EUR 2,458.8m
(2005: EUR 2,260.5m). The main contributing factors here were the improved market environment and the
increase in the number of passengers carried, the fuel surcharges and the increase in average yields -
achieved through the introduction of a revenue-optimising traffic flow management system.

Other revenue in 2006, at EUR 134.4m (200%: EUR 132.4m), also increased slightly, while other income de-
clined from EUR 92.9m to EUR 69.6m. This was the result of lower income from the cancellation of provi-
sions for tickets issued but not flown from previous years and other liabilities. On this basis, operating rev-
enue increased averall by 7.1% to EUR 2,662.8m.

Other revenue’

21.5% Technical
services -

8.6% Handling services

10.0% Commissions 9.7% Aircraft lease

6.1% Revenue from
service provider charging

3.9% Other

40.2% Sales of goods

1 See Note 8 for details.

Increase in expenses

Similarly to the preceding financial year, the trend in the expenses of the Austrian Airlines Group in the
report period was strongly influenced by the development of kerosene prices. Another significant factor
was a rise in personnel costs that resulted from the creation of personnel provisions in the course of the
redimensioning of long-haul activities and the associated reduction in the number of employees planned.

Overall the operating expenses of the Group increased at a disproportionately low rate compared to op-
erating revenue, however, rising by 6.4% to EUR 2,751.8m. While total expenses for materials and related
services of the Austrian Airlines Group increased by 7.3% to EUR 1,659.4m in the report period. the rise in
fuel expenditure - which was up by 16.7% to reach EUR 530.0m - was dramatically above the increase in
production of 1.6%.

€ Corporate Management and Contral
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Fuel expenditure (EURm, %)

+16.7%
530.0

+46.6%
4543

compared to
previous year ‘

2004 2005 2006

The background to this cost increase is the trend in the price cf kerosene, which, against the expectations
of most experts, continued to rise sharply in the report periojj compared to the figure for the preceding
year. The average kerosene price rose from USD-562/t in 2005 to USD 645/t in 2006. As a result, it also Kerosene price:
exceeded the internat planning assumptions of the Austrian Airlines Group, which had run to USD 615/t. +14.9%
The trend in the course of the year was an irregular one: while the kerosene price rose continually
for the first six months of 2006, hitting a new record high of USD 750/t at the beginning of the third
quarter, by September it had fallen back to its level at the be!jinning of the year. Towards the end of the
year, the kero‘sjene price eventually stood at a level of aroundiUSD €00/t
‘ 1
The fuel hedging policy of the Austrian Airlines Group is based on a comprehensive evaluation of all
involved risks. In the past, however, the difficult financial sizuation of the company has not permitted
hedging. Following the successful capital increase, however, the Group is now considering measures to
reduce the price change risk for the coming financial year within a specified hedging framework.

Price trend, jet fuel (USD/t)
800 — i
700 —
600 —
500 —
Average prices \
. 2004: 398 USD/t
400 2005: 562 USD/t
: . 2006: 645 USD/t
300 — ; li

2005 I; 2006

In an effort to partially compensate for the additional expénditure on kerosene, the Austrian Airlines

Group — in common with the majority of its competitor airlines - introduced fuel surcharges in stages Fuel surcharges
from May 2004, which are reported as additional revenue in the flight revenue position. However, these increased
surcharges could only cover a part of the additional costs. !‘
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Personnel expenses
increase

Expenses trend, 2005 {EURm, %}

~6.2% +6.4%
-13.0% -
¥207% 2938 1873 2518
6113
+7.3%
1659.4
b 1 Ontangible and
intangible assets.
cornpared to
previous year
Expenses for  Personnel Depreciationt  Qther Qperating
materials expenses expenses  expenses

The personnel expenses of the Austrian Airlines Group increased by 21.7% to reach EUR 611.3m in the
report period. This rise is primarily the result of successful personnel provisions made during restructuring.
When adjusted to account for effects from the creation of personne! provisions in the course of the
rediménsioning of the long-haul segment, personnel expenses only increased by 5.6%. This is equivalent
to a EUR 27.9m increase compared to the previous year.

Other expenses of the Group fell by 6.2% in 2006 to EUR 187.3m. This reduction was caused by the fact that
this position included exchange rate losses of EUR 28.5m the previous year, which were offset in 2006 by
an amount of EUR 19.3m, reported under other income. When adjusted for this aspect, other expenses
rose by EUR 16.1m. The main reason for this was an increase in costs of premises and plant.

Depreciation and amortisation fell from EUR 337.8m to EUR 293.8m in the report period. The main reasons for
this reduction are fower impairments according to 1AS 36 (Impairment) of EUR 9.2m (2005: EUR 32.1m}, which
affected the planned sale of an aircraft of the type Canadair R in the course of the fleet adjustment
process, as well as the goodwill depreciation of Slovak Airlines in the report period. When adjusted to
account for these effects, depreciation in the report period fell to EUR 284.6m (2005: EUR 305.7m). The
fall in the scheduled depreciation of other assets is based on the sale of workshops and other buildings
belonging to the Technical Base in Schwechat at the end of 2005,

Unit costs increase slightly

Due to the increase in fuel and personnel costs, the Austrian Airlines Group was unable to continue
reducing its unit costs in the financial year 2006, which had previously been declining consistently since
2001. Against this background, unit costs (total adjusted operating expenses in relation to ASK) increased
year-on-year by 3.4% to 8.46 ct/ASK (2005: 8.18 ct/ASK). By caontrast, employee productivity (measured in
ATK per employee) improved slightly in the report period, rising by 0.5% due primarily to the restrictive
personnel policy of the Group.

Productivity and adjusted unit costs

o132 +0.5% 3.4%
459 4923 . 8.46
490.3 35%

1 ATK/employees, incl. off duty cases;
818 femployt ty

the number of people emplayed in the
previous year has also been adjusted to
. 1.90 account for off duty cases.

compared to
previous year

2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006
ATK/employee ! {000) Adjusted unit costs (ct/ASK)
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Increase in net cash flows from operatlng activities

I
At EUR 360.2m, net cash flows from operating activities of the Austrian Airlines Group were 38.6% up on
the preceding yéar. This was primarily due to an improvement; in working capital. Compared to last year, a
higher increase in provisions and a reduction in receivables 'played a particularly important role in this.
Despite its strategy being clearly oriented towards growth |r‘| the Central and East European region, the
Austrian Airlines Group continues to pursue a restrictive |nw=5tment programme. The only aircraft to be .
newly incarporated into the fleet in 2006 were those for whlch delivery dates had already been fixed on Restrictive
the basis of existing orders. In concrete terms, these were an Airbus A319 and a Boeing 737-800. investments
Despite these acquisitions, payments (investments) resultlng from the acquisition of tangible and intan-
gible assets fell by 33.6% in the financial year 2006 to EUR 1‘!4 7m (2005: EUR 293.4m). Due to the lower
aircraft investments, net cash flows fram investing actwn ies improved to reach EUR -2.0m {2005:
EUR -81.2m). Net cash flows from financing activities reached a value of EUR 17.8m {2005: EUR -197.3m)
in the report period. This increase is primarily based on the capital injection due to the capital increase.

I

Net cash flows (EURm) 2006 2005 +/- abs, +-%
lgtﬁc:fh _flows from operating activities JZI.SEB 100.4 | 386 , 7 ‘
“Net cash flows from investing activities J'81 2 79.2 975 |

Net cé:mlows from financing activities _IEH 1151 [T

Change in cash and cash equivalents :81.3 294.7 -

Significant improvement in liquidity
i

Thanks to the successfully completed capital increase, restrictive policy of investment and existing i
reserves, the stock of cash and cash equivalents (incl. exchange rate differences) of the Austrian Airlines
Group improved in the repart period by EUR 395.3m to EUR 51?.1m, thus securing the liquidity of the Group.

Sharp reduction

Net Debt, Ne‘:t Gearing
3 in Net Gearing

1916

|

i

i

i

! 1 Please see Note 3 in the Annual Report 2005 far
details of the adjustment (retrospective application
af the component approach).

5 1-2 2 Non-current liabilities, excl. provisions and deferred

tax assets, minus cash and cash equivalents. I

3 Net debt in relation to shareholders’ equiry. A

20041 2005 2006 20041 2005 2006
Net Debt? (EURm) Net Gearing? (%) :

11
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Consistent repayment of liabilities and improvement of balance sheet structure continue to be key
objectives of the Austrian Airlines Group. The capital increase carried out in December 2006 meant a
significant reinforcement of the capital structure of the Group in this sense. Once the costs associated
with the capital increase are deducted, a total of EUR 348.6m in fresh capital was injected into the
company as a result.

The Group reduced its net debt in the past financial year from EUR 1,083.5m to EUR 715.7m. The figure
for Net Gearing (net debt to equity ratfo) improved due to the increase in equity from 191.6% to 91.2%.

Balance sheet structure (EURm)

32087 31993 31993 3,208.7

784.8 Sharehelders’ equity
I Aircraft 2,133.2

1,604.2 Non-current
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ligbilities
Other tangible assets! 90.0
Other non-current assets 225.8 95.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents 516.1 igg; 10113 819.7 Current liabilities
[ N
Other current assets 243.6 3424
‘ 2006 2005 2005 2006
Assets Shareholders' equity

and liabilities
1 Indl. intangible assets and equity interests in associated companies.

Due to the capital increase, the equity ratio of the Austrian Airlines Group rose to 24.5% as at the balance
sheet date of 31.12.2006 (31.12.2005: 17.7%). Both the ROE and ROCE increased slightly compared to
the preceding year. Non-current liabilities fell by EUR 18.2m to EUR 1,604.2m the report peried. The CVA
improved, reaching EUR -114.9m {2005: EUR -165.0m).

2005
=217

1 Result before tax in relation to average sharehold-
ers’ equity.

2 Weighted Average Cost of Capital.

6.0 | 3 EBTDAR in relstion to Total Gross Assets (= fixed

assets at pyrchasing ¢osts minys nen-interest-

5.2 bearing debt).
4 NOPAT {= EBIT minus taxes) in relation to Capital
-438 Employed (= shareholders’ equity plus interest-

bearing deb: minus cash and cash equivalents).

-165.0 5 {ROTGA minus WACC) x Total Gross Assets

(= fixed assets at purchasing costs minus non-in-

Change in CVA % 420 terest-bearing debt).

6 According to final calculation of component
approach in value management system,

Risk management

For detailed information, see the Corporate Management and Control chapter (Risk Management
section) page 25 and Note 36.
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Segments

In scheduled services — the most important business segment for the Austrian

Airlines Group - the company repor:ted encouraging increases in passenger volume,
load factor and revenue in the report period. This trend was placed under consider-
able strain, however, by the high kerosene prices and by losses from long-haul busi-
ness, although a redirnensioning pr(:gcess has since been introduced to address the
latter issue. Consolidation of the charter product and the transfer of a number of
destinations to scheduled services produced a slight reduction in revenue in the
charter segment despite healthy levels of demand. Revenue remained stable in the
complementary services segment, in which third-party handling at Vienna Airport

continues to be of primary importarnce.

1

Increase in traffic performance

The Austrian Airlines Group continued to expand its business volume in the financial year 2006 with an in-
crease in traffic performance. With a total of 10,834,668 passingers carried (+7.1%), the Group hit a new
record high, again exceeding the 10 million passenger mark. Around 84.0% of this total volume travelled

on scheduled flights.

Passengers carried (000)

10.835 Total: +7.1%
1739 Charter: -3.6%

Charter 1804

9,096 Scheduled: +3.4%
icheduled 8,316

'2005 2006

As part of its Focus East strategy. the Austrian Airlines Group increased production capacity - as measured
in available seat kilameters (ASK) — by 1.6% overall to 31,374 million in 2006. The load factor also rose slight-
ly in the report period, with the passenger load factor on scheduled services improving by 0.2 percentage

points to 74.0%.
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Production and
load factor both
increase
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Reduction in
long-haul capacity

Scheduled services,
charter and
complementary
services
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Favourable traffic trend over year as a whole

Taken over the year as a whole, the traffic trend of the Austrian Airlines Group was significantly more posi-
tive thaninthe preceding year. Passenger numbers increased compared to the previous year in all four quar-
ters, and the Group succeeded in managing its load factor relatively successfully with adjustments in pro-
duction. As early as the first quarter of 2006 - when levels of demand are traditionally weak - the number
of passengers carried was 13.7% up on the figure for the same period the previous year, while the passenger
load factor on scheduled services rose significantly, registering an increase of 45 percentage points.

The Austrian Airlines Group increased its production capacity and flight availability in the second quarter
of 2006 in line with the noticeably stronger demand. The number of passengers carried saw another
highly encouraging increase, rising by 8.8% compared to the preceding year, while the passenger load fac-
tor on scheduled services , at 71.9%, held firm at the same level as the preceding year despite the expan-
sion of production.

In Q3 - the period of the financial year with the most buoyant demand - the number of passengers car-
ried by the Austrian Airlines Group was 3.6% above the figure for the preceding year. The Group expand-
ed its availability (ASK) by 7.3% in the short- and medium-haul segment in this period, marketing the in-
crease successfully. At the same time as this was going on, however, frequencies were being reduced in
the long-haul segment. Flight availability consequently fell by 2.7% compared to the preceding year on
balance, with the load factor on long-haul scheduled services also falling by 2.0 percentage points.

Finally, in Q4, flight capacity was reduced compared to the previous year's volume to match the tradition-
ally lower levels of demand seen in the winter season, although the sales trend remained encouraging.
Compared to the preceding year, the number of passengers carried increased by 4.9%, while the passen-
ger load factor on scheduled services remained broadly stable, falling by 0.2 percentage points.

Traffic statistics

2005 +/-%
Passengers carried o 10119773 71
Blockhours D
Available seat kilometers (ASK)  (000) " i0esessl] 16
. (000) [ Tasessar}| 28
ax T ooy T ars20e9 || 19
Sector flights ﬂq Teress)| | 1saee2|| a8
};tal tons —mﬁ 160,992 6.4

Segment classification remains unchanged

According to IFRS, the business segments of the Austrian Airlines Group are allocated to the areas of sched-
uled services, charter and complementary services. The scheduled flights of the Group operate under the
brands of Austrian, Austrian arrows and Slovak Airlines, while production in the charter flight segment is
marketed under the “Lauda Air - the Austrian way to holidays” brand, and under the Slovak Airlines brand in
the Slovakian region. Irrespective of the sales brand in question, production revenue in both the scheduled
services and charter segmenits is generated by the two Austrian Production Companies of Austrian Airlines
- created following the merger of the flight operations of Austrian and Lauda Air - by Austrian arrows
(Tyrolean Airways) and by the Slovak Airlines Production Company in Slovakia (for scheduled services). Since
the demand curves for scheduled and charter traffic are broadly complementary when considered on week-
ly and annual bases, such a structure allows for better management and optimised utilisation of the neces-
sary capacities, This is particularly the case at weekends and during holiday periods.
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Short and medium haul routes
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The profits from the ordinary dlsposal of fixed assets — pnmarlly .nrcraft included in the operating revenue of the Austrian Airlines Group were
allocated to the scheduled services and charter segments accordmg to the ATK produced, and are reported there as other operating revenue,
Exchange rate gains from the valuation of foreign currency llabllutses as at the reporting date, were allocated in relation to operating revenue bet-
ween the segments and reported as other operating revenue or Gither operating expenses respectively. Calculation of the result of each segment
is based upon directly attributable costs and pro-rated fixed cost, the fatter divided up in relation to revenues,
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Scheduled services
continue to be
key segment

Positive trend in
scheduled business

As the most important segment of the Austrian Airlines Group, scheduled services accounted for EUR
2,1971m of revenue in the financial year 2006, exceeding the figure for the preceding year by EUR 198.7m
(2005: EUR 1,998.4m). With an 84.7% share of revenue, scheduled services continue to comprise the core
segment for the Austrian Airlines Group (2005: 83.5%).

Due to the restructuring of production, revenue in the charter segment, at EUR 261.7m, was slightly below
the figure for the previous year (2005: EUR 262.1m). As a result, the charter segment share of total group

revenue also reduced, by 0.9 percentage points, to 10.1%.

Revenue from the complementary services segment, which includes revenue from subsidiaries of the

‘Austrian Airlines Group, handling for third parties at Vienna Airport and the leasing out of aircraft, impro-

5.2% Complimentary

44

ved slightly to EUR 134.4m (2005: EUR 132.4m). This segment’s share of overall Group revenue decreased
slightly to 5.2% (2005: 5.5%).

Revenue per segment

84.7% Scheduled

services

10.1% Charter

Scheduled services segment

The scheduled services segment covers all the scheduled traffic of the Austrian Airlines Group, and in-
cludes any additional services performed in the course of scheduled traffic (cargo, mail, excess baggage,
etc.). Within the scope of Focus East, the strategic geographical regions in the Austrian Airlines Group
network are Central and Eastern Europe, the Middle East/Levant and Asia.

The scheduled services segment once again saw extremely encouraging increases in the financial year
2006. The key reason for this was a significant increase in business an medium-haul routes, which more
than compensated for the reduction in long-haul capacity. Overall the Group increased available seat kilo-
meters on scheduled services by 5.3% in the report period, while demand (revenue passenger kilometers)
rose at the disproportionately high rate of 5.6%. As a result, the load factor on scheduled services in-
creased marginally, by 0.2 percentage points, to reach 74.0% for the year as a whole. Passenger volume
grew by 9.4% to 9,095,752.
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Scheduled traffic statistics 2006 2005 +/-%
Pssengerscarded | o] ea
Block hours N B o EI§7q11 3_,.).9;9
T o] e
Available seat kilometers __ (oo0) 25?048}6 L 513
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Transfer traffic at Vienna hub ‘.

The Austrian Airlines Group significantly increased the route network departing from the Vienna hub in
the report period. Primarily through its implementation of a new system for optimising the management
of traffic flows, the Group succeeded in generating a greater increase in the number of local passengers
than of transfer passengers. The share of total scheduled passenger volume of the Group attributable to
transfer traffic over the year as a whole remained stable, however, at around 60%.

To increase streams of transfer traffic, the Austrian Airlines Grcup now concentrates more strongly on sec-
ondary market destinations with medium-sized passenger volumes for which levels of competition are less
intensive. The Group’s specialist role in this field enables it to develop its position in this highly attractive
market segment especially effectively, and additional connecting flights were provided in secondary market
destinations in summer 2006 as a result. Routes of this type now account for approximately 58% of transfer
volume, followed by long-haul connections, which contribute around a quarter of transfer volume. Primary
traffic, for which competition is more intensive, only accounts for some 16% of the total.

Expansion of specialist role in CEE :;and Middle East/Levant

As part of the Focus East strategy, the Austrian Airlines Group continued to expand its range of connections
into Central and Eastern Europe during the report period. New destinations incorporated into the route net-
work in 2006 included lasi, Yekaterinburg, Donetsk and Ostrave (in cooperation with Jobair) and Nis (in co-
operation with JAT). Flights to Sibiu, which has been served by partner carrier Tarom to date, are now oper-
ated directly by the Austrian Airlines Group. With its new destinations of lasi and Sibiu, the Group once again
assumed a pioneering “first mover” role in the Central and Eastern European region. In addition to incorpo-
rating new destinations into the network, the company continued to expand availability on its existing con-
nections, increasing the number of flights on the Moscow route and availability to a range of other cities in-
cluding the Ukrainian regional centres of Kharkov, Kiev and L'iv. By restariing own flights to Odessa, the
Group expanded its availability to Ukraine. The Hungarian town of Pecs was also incorporated into the flight
schedule in the report period, but has since ceased operations due to an insufficient load factor result.

The Austrian Airlines Group also reaffirmed its position as a iirst mover in the Middle East in 2006. The
company became the first western carrier to serve the city of Erbil in Iraqg, operating twice-weekly flights
since 11 December 2006. The Group also expanded its product in this geographical segment on the routes
to Tel Aviv, Dubai and Larnaca. In contrast, the Group discontinued its own flights to Beirut and Amman.
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The Group also sough:t to achieve balanced availability of destinations in Western and Eastern Europe in
2006. In light of the stable level of demand, the Group reinforced its presence in Scandinavia in particular in
the report period, both with a higher number of connecting flights and by using larger aircraft. The destina-
tion of Copenhagen qu expanded particularly assertively with one additional connecticn taking the total to
four flights a day. In ISouthern Europe, the Group increased its connections to Barcelona and Athens.

I
Conversely, the Austnan Airlines Group launched a redimensioning of its long-haul business in the financial
year 2006. As a re:sult'| the low-revenue destinations of Shanghai, Phuket, Mauritius and Kathmandu and
Australian routes of Sydney and Melbourne will cease operating in 2007. In contrast, the Group’s route net-
waork to North Amenca will expand in the course of the reorientation, and the destination of Chicago wilt
be newly |ncorporated into the schedule. As well as cutting foss-making connections, the redimensioning
of the long-haul segment allows for mare rapid harmenisation of the long-haul fleet using the aircraft
types Boeing 777 and Eoeing 767,

|

Revenue by geograpbical segment, scheduled services
|:
.
[ i % . i1
12, U“Alﬂermany 5.2% Scandinavia
10.8% Other

3.6% SW|tzerIalnd Western Europe?
2,9% Austria

5.0% Southern and

South-Eastern Europe?

8.9% North America

11.9% Central Europe®

285% Asia and | 7.0% Middle East®
Oceania’ fu 0.2% Africa®

1 Including Denmark. |i

2 Belgium, England, France, Ireland and the Netherlands.

3 Albania, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Greece, ltaly, Yugoslavia, Croatia, Malta, Macedaonia, Portugal, Serbia-Montenegro, Slovenia and Spain.
4 Bulgaria, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania. Moldavia, Poland. Romania. Russia, Slovakia, Czech Republic, Ukraine and Hungary.

5 Including Cyprus, Libya, Turkey and Israel.

6 Excluding Libya.

7 Including Armenia, Azerbaijan, Georgla and Uzbekistan.

I|
Revenue from scheduled flights increased

In an effort to realise sales and network synergies, the Austrian Airlines Group integrated responsibility
for management of ité long-haul charter traffic (with the exception of the Caribbean) into the sched-
uled segment at the beginning of the winter schedule 2005/06. This change in classification produced
shifts in production from the charter to the scheduled services segment, which had a correspondent ef-
fect on revenue distril?ution.

1
The Austrian Airlines CHroup increased total revenue from the scheduled services segment by 9.9% in 2006,

In terms of revenue vq1ume, Asia and Oceania are the most important geographical segments, followed
by Germany, Western Europe and Central Europe. Looking at the revenue trends, the various geographical
segments developed unevenly due to the differing market conditions. Revenues in the geographical
segments of Scandmavla and North America increased at an above-average rate. By contrast, revenue
from traffic to Germany and Western Europe decreased. The strategic focus markets of Central and
Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Asia, as defined within “Focus East”, are showing the highest rates
of growth. Central Europe for instance, has grown to generate approximately 12% of revenue from
scheduled services smce the strategy was first adopted.
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Freight growth trend continues

Whilst transp'ort services provided by the international airline industry tended to stagnate due to high
fuel prices and a partial migration towards cheaper sea transportation, the Austrian Airlines Group was
again able to significantly outperform competitor airlines, achieving volume growth of around 6.4% in
2006 (freight and post tons).

|

Freight trend (tons) I

i
-+10.8%

+6.1% +6.4%
158,765 - )
+73% 12,51 +75y 1L284
149,694 160,992
139,484 +10.1%
11.298 145,694
10,210 ' I

2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006
Freight tons Post tons ’ Total tons

Overall, the freight revenue of the Austrian Airlines Group rose by 6.3% to EUR 161.5m in the report pe-
riod. In this areaq, toe, the company was able in part to pass on the steep increases in the cost of aircraft
fuel to end-customers by imposing fuel surcharges. !

Expansion in cargo business

In line with scheduled services, the cargo segment will continue to expand into the markets of Central
and Eastern Europe and the Middle East. This should be primarily through cooperation in the freight-
only segment and expansion of the road feeder service - combined cargo traffic comprising air cargo
and road-based transport. :

The Group’s cargo-only routes between Vienna and Kiev operated in cooperation with Ukraine Interna-
tional Airlines were increased by one flight to five frequencies a week in the report periad, reinforcing the
Group's claim to be the leading network carrier to and from Central and Eastern Europe. To meet rising de-
mand for cargo transportation to and from the Middle East and the Persian Gulf region, Austrian Airlines
concluded a cooperation agreement with Emirates for the Vienna-Dubai route in 2006, Under the agree-
ment, Austrian Cargo will use fixed capacities on the freight-unly flights of Emirates. Other cargo-specif-
ic cooperation agreements are planned for 2007, primarily in the Asian geographical segment.

Products become more firmly anchored in market

The Austrian Airlines Group succeeded in increasing volume in “priority”, its premium product, by a fur-
ther 44% in 2006. This means that 8% of all cargo transported by the Group now falls under the priority
product category. .
Due not only to the high quality standards but alsc to continued improvements in the logistics chain, the
Austrian Airlines Group succeeded in expanding its “medical” praoduct in the report period. One crucial
feature is the use of temperature-controlled ground transport, on what are referred to as road feeder
services, These are particularly attractive for the transportation of vaccines.

Cargo: cooperation
intensifies
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Cargo quality: a
major international
player

426 different
Charter destinations

Austrian Cargo was also able to establish itself as a leading international player in terms of the quality of its
products in 2006. The globally active “Cargo 2000" quality panel regularly assesses the standards offered
throughout the industry. Austrian Carge achieved an excellent secand place in the Europe category.

Scheduled services |

Business performance kEURm) 2005 +/=-%
External revenue - 1.598.4 99;
Other income e 77 -243
Operatmg revenue 21823 B.EE
Operanng expenses y 22721 T.B*
EBITDAR 2549 —5.5}
Result from operatlng actwltles (EBIT) -89.8 7.7|
S Cwitef | S

!'E)tal assets 25751 a7
e R S g i 47 s e e b e e

Debt 2,079.8 -6.0
[Segment investments 134.4 —10.dj

The EBIT of the scheduled segment improved from EUR -89.8m in the preceding year to EUR -82.9m in
the report period. This improvement compared to the previous year is primarily due to the increase in
flight revenue and above-average increase in yields compared to unit costs. The result for the report
period was strained by extraordinary effects, however, overwhelmingly resulting from the restructuring
and associated personnel reserves. External influences, including high kerosene costs, also played
a negative role.

Charter segment

In the charter segment, the holiday flight activities of the Austrian Airlines Group are marketed to the
public under the “Lauda Air - the Austrian way to holidays” brand. Just as in the scheduled services seg-
ment, the aircraft capacities of all the production companies of the Austrian Airlines Group are used in
the charter segment. '

Against the background of the consolidation of charter availability and the transfer of a number of desti-
nations from the long-haul charter to scheduled services segment, the Austrian Airlines Group reduced
production (ASK) in the charter segment in the 2006 report period. Overall, the Group operated 426 dif-
ferent routes in the charter segment in the past year, with available seat kilometer volume falling by 16.4%
to 4,418m. The Croup was again able to market this increased production effectively in 2006. The number
of passengers carried on charter services fell at a slower rate than the reduction in availability, decreasing
by 3.6% to 1,738,916, with the passenger load factor improving to 77.2%.

Charter traffic statistics 2005 +/-%
Passengers carried 1,803,645 -3 6
. A ——
Block hours 45,303 -10 2
e P =

Avallable seat kllometers 5,281,997 —16 4
RTK 402,364 —174
R e LR -

ATK 597308 -199
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The most |mportant sales channels for the Group’s charter proc uct continue to be the major tour operators
of Gulet Tourlstlk/TUI TCA, Delphin, Rewe Touristik, Reiseladen 'and Inghams.
|.

As the low- cost alrllnes enter the tourist market in greater nurnbers demand in the charter segment con-
tinues to shift from the sale of seats to chains and one-off charters towards single seat sales. This demands
not only that allrlrnes employ more flexible planning, but also tti_lat they simultaneously market a larger pro-
portion of aircraft seats at their own risk. The Austrian Airiine]“s Group is reacting to this by expanding its
routes to selected charter destinations in Southern and Westel n Europe using single seat sales in an effort

to OptImISE revenue

Revenue by g!ieographical segment

' 23.8% Middie East®

0.2% Africa®; i

1.8% Asia and Oceania’
5.7% North America

1.0% Austria, Germany,
Switzerland and Scandinavia®

6.3% Othen}iWeste rm Europe?

58.9% Southern: and South-Eastern Europe’
I

1 Including Denmark. )
Z Belgium, England, France, lreland and the Netherlands. I
3 Albania, Basnia-Herzegovina, Greece, ltaly, Yugoslavia, Croatia, Malta, Macedonia, Partugal, Serbia-Montenegro, Slovenia and Spain.
4 Bulgaria. Estonia. Latvia, Lithuania, Maldavia. Poland. Romania. Russia. Slovakia, Czech Republic.Ukraine and Hungary.
5 Including Cyprus. Libya, Turkey and {srael.
§ Excluding Libya. |i
T Including Armenia, Azerbaijan, Georgia and Uzbekistan.
b
1
!
Revenue in the charter segment fell slightly in the report penod by 0.2% to EUR 261.7m. Demand in the
I
charter segment overall remamed stable, however, despite chaliengmg market condltlons

The Group carrled approximately the same number of pas‘engers in medium-haul in 2006 as in the
preceding year The most important destinations were Greece Spain, Turkey, Egypt and Portugal. In the
long-haul segment by contrast, the number of passengers carrled fell by around 62%. The main reason
for this was the transfer of destinations into the scheduled ,egment described above. Popular holiday
destinations such as Cuba and Mexico continued to be serwd over the winter, however.

]

i |
Charter services
Business performance (EURm) 2005 +/-%-
‘Externa! revenue 262.1 —0_2:
{Other income 105 —33.3:
‘[Operating revenue 1274.9 -1.0,
rCEratmg expenses 2899 —2.&}
EBITDAR argl|  -270
[Result from operating activities (EBIT) -15.0 29. 3:
aep—— 365)| -759
Debt - 21 R
:Segment investments 01 3
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Results of
subsidiaries

EBIT from
complementary
services: EUR 4.5m

In line with the ongoing active adjustment of flight availability to match demand, eperating revenue in
the charter segment fell to EUR 272.2m, 1.0% down on the preceding year. EBIT in the segment improved,
however, from EUR -15.0m to EUR -10.6m.

Complementary services segment

In addition to its airlines, the Austrian Airlines Group includes numerous companies providing pre-flight
and post-flight services in the field of transport and tourism, as well as financial and insurance service
companies, As well as promoting the core activities of the Group, these enterprises perform air traffic-re-
lated services for cocperation partners and non-Croup companies in the aviation and tourism industries.
The complementary services segment includes the results of these subsidiaries of the Austrian Airlines
Group. The segment also covers third-party passenger handling at Vienna Airport, aircraft leasing and a
range of other services.

Complementary services

Business performance (EURm} 2005 +/-%
!External revenus ' 1324 1.5‘lI
Other incorm; ) 47 —19.1!
0peratingi rev;nue 2611 15.1]
'QE’EFE‘?’A‘:;?FP?”S‘.’:?& 256.3 15.5:
EoDAR 68l 132

" |
Result from operating actiites (6B _ i
Total assets o 11114 22.2I
Debt B 986.1 24
Segment investments wsesl[ -533

In handling business, the Group handled around 60% of all passengers departing from Vienna Airpart in
2006, generating revenue of around EUR 11.6m through third-party handling across the Group as a whole.
While Air Malta and Syrian Arab Airlines ceased to be Austrian clients, new handling contracts were
concluded with Air Moldova and Mentenegro Airlines. At the same time, the company reported
successive increases in yields from existing handling clients. Through more efficient use of ground staff
and additional margin contributions from third-party handling, the Group was also able to optimise
its internal cost structures. This underlines the continuing importance of handling business to the
Austrian Airlines Group.

Due to the higher revenue from aircraft leasing of the complementary services segment, operating rev-
enue improved by 15.1% to EUR 300.6m in the report period. By contrast, the percentage of the total op-
erating revenue of the Austrian Airlines Group generated by this segment, at 5.2%, fell slightly compared
to the previous year (2005: 5.5%). The EBIT of the Group in this segment fell by 63% to EUR 4.5m.
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j - Outlook

The Austrian Airlines Group will continue to consistently implement its
programme of strategic measures in 2007. The most important focuses are
the redimensioning of the long-hail segment, continued harmonisation of
the fleet, expansion of the range of routes and frequencies in Central and
Eastern Europe and strict cost discipline. The injection of funds from the
capital increase has significantly reinforced the offensive ability of the Group
to implement these measures. Although redimensioning the company’s
long-haul services will produce a fall in production (ASK), this will be

offset by anticipated growth in the short- and medium-haul segment

but only total around 15%. i'

Challenging environment set to continue

Economic forecasters once again predict slight growth in tH_e global economic trend for 2007. Rates of
growth in Austria are forecast to be scmewhat above the European average, although they will once
again be cutperformed by the economies of Eastern Europ'e. With estimated growth perspectives for
the strategic focus markets of the Austrian Airlines Group still strongly positive — in Central and East-
ern Europe, Asia and the Middle East - the demand trend for flights in these regions is expected to re-
main dynamic. :

Levels of competition in the European aviation sector are foré'*cast to continue rising in the coming years,

causing markets to further consolidate in the medium term. |ThIS is due primarily to overcapacity in spe-

cific European markets. Low-cost carriers will also continue to expand their praduct range based on ex-

isting orders, meanwhile. Experience has also shown that thP airline industry reacts sensitively to crises

triggered by external political conditions. ;

The most decisive external cost factor for the Austrian Airlines Group is the future oil price trend. Against

the backdrop of the record oil price highs seen again in 2006, and despite the price fall in the final quar-

ter of 2006, the Group is basing its overall assumptions for 2007 on the price of kerosene remaining high 0il price to remain high

throughout the coming financial year. :

Wide-ranging strategic measures |

The primary objective of the package of strategic measures launched in the 2006 financial year is to pro-
duce an improvement in the financial baseline for coming years despite a high oil price. The concept in-
cludes a series of measures to increase revenue, alongside others designed to reduce costs.

Backed up by the proceeds of its recent capital increase, the Austrian Airlines Group has substantially re-
inforced its ability to dynamically expand its leading position in Eastern Europe and make planned invest-
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ments in quality, market position and Group optimisation. On the costs side, as well as a cut in unprof-
itable long-haul destlnlatlons the pregramme includes the utilisation of other positive effects from the
ongoing redimensioning of the fleet. As an additional cost-reduction measure, the Austrian Airlines
Group is seeking to cerhtralise its purchasing, which has been organised on a decentralised basis to date.

Fall in production in 2007 due to reduction in long-haul

The initial effects of the redimensioning of the long-haul segment and the resultant acceleration in fleet
harmonisation should ibecome noticeable in 2007. While long-haul production falls, continued forced
growth is expected in t'he short- and medium-haul segment. The Austrian Airlines Group is basing its cal-
culations for 2007 overall on levels of demand remaining solid. Total production measured in available
seat kilometers (ASK) will only fall by around 15% due to the growth forecast on medium-haul routes.
The Group is also worlgng on the basis of continued high fuel prices for 2007. With the support of the
proceeds from its recent capital increase, the Austrian Airlines Group is examining its options regarding
implementation of a small-scale, rolling hedging strategy in this area,

Reorientation of long-haul destinations
I

In the long-haul segment, the Austrian Airlines Group is now cancentrating specifically on profitable niche
markets. The company is focusing on routes with high point-to-point potential and high transfer volume. The
product range in NorthllAmerlca is being expanded with the introduction of the new destination of Chicago,
with frequencies to New York being increased simultaneously. Destinations in Australia, Shanghai, Phuket,
Mauritius, Colombo/Ma!e and Kathmandu are to be taken out of the programme due to their negative results.
The Austrian Airfines Group will also build on the successful Focus East specialisation programme in 2007
by continuing with the targeted expansion of its short- and medium-haul route network. Special emphasis
will be laid on the optlmlsatlon of connections to strategically important secondary markets. Alongside its
planned incarporation ?f scheduled connections to Burgas in Bulgaria and a sixth destination in the Russ-
ian Federation, the Group will open up more secondary markets over the 2007 summer schedule, under-
lining its role as a pan _IEuropean market leader in the Central and Eastern European region. At the same

time as new destinations are added, frequencies on existing routes are being increased.

Fleet redimensioning

A Boeing 777-200 is to be integrated into the fleet in 2007 to replace the long-haul Airbus A340-200 aircraft
sold. In the second half-'!year of 2007, the Group will also lease out two Airbus A340-300 to Swiss tong-term as
part of the redimensioning of long-haul. Four Airbus A330-200 will be removed from production at the end
of Q1 2007 Afterwards,'the Austrian Airlines Group intends to dispose of these aircraft, three of which are

currently owned by thefGroup and one of which has been leased out.

In the short- and medfium-haul segment, the Group is planning to bring into service the final two of
15 Fokker 100 aircraft aéquired at a highly competitive purchase price. An aircraft by the type Canadair R) 100
will also be disposed dff At the same time, the Group is looking into the possibility of harmenising its
medium-haul fleet around a single aircraft type. The essential criteria that remain to be clarified in reach-
ing a decision over th|5 project are the economic and strategic framework conditions. The redimension-
ing of the long-haul product range that became necessary in the report period will require targeted re-
ductions in personnel numbers across the company in 2007. A plan featuring generous redundancy offers
is being worked out together with staff representatives to ensure these cutbacks are as socially tolerable
as possible. The Grouplgintends to provide as effective a social cushion as possible for employees whase
personal lives have beén impacted by the changes in any way.
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New advertising line

In an effort to create lasting differentiation in the hard-fought market for aviation services, the Austrian
Airlines Group will highlight its corporate image and focus products more strengly as core advertising
messages from 2007 onwards. The new advertising line will be designed to emphasise the international
positioning of the Austrian Airlines Group as a specialist in segl‘vices to the east and as a quality airline, so
providing targeted support for sales and marketing activities.'

|

Reinforcement of family brand l'

In line with the Austrian family brand strategy, the Austria_h Airlines Group is streamlining its brand
portfolio. In 50 doing, it is strengthening its brand presencé and simultaneously using Group syner-
gies. Most importantly, the Lauda Air brand will be brought closer to the Austrian family brand, and
its Group |dent1ty emphasised more strongly with the tag “The Austrian way to holidays”. This
harmonised presence is also to become increasingly visible through the uniforms worn. From summer
2007 onwards, Lauda Air and Austrian arrows will also appear in the distinctive “Austrian red”. |
future the outfit will only differ through accessories, to*be defined by the brands and fields of
business being represented.

l
‘ i
Transfer of Group headquarters ' -

In an effort [0 design its internal processes to be more eff"curnt and cost-effective, the Austrian Airlines
Group will soon transfer its headquarters to a new centre curr rently under construction at the Office Park
site near Vienna Schwechat Airport. This greater concentration of the Group's functional divisions on a
single site is also intended to improve operational performarice. Construction of the building is now un-
derway, with completion and the move scheduled to take pla;l:e in Q3 2007.

Significant events after 31 Decemt?)er 2006

The company TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co I\G was sold, in accordance with an earlier
agreement, on 1 January 2007, Due to the scope of its busine’ss activities this company did not form part
of the core business of the Group. H
;
Due to the unsatisfactory capital situation at Stovak Airlines and the failure of its co-owner to meet
contractual obligations, it has not so far been possible to restructure this subsidiary. As a result, Slovak
Afrlines has begun looking into the legal steps now necessary. The Austrian Airlines Group has taken the
appropriate preventative measures in the balance sheet du{e to the situation and fetched back two at
Slovak Airlines leased aircrafts to secure company property. °
I
One Boeing 777 was delivered to the Austrian Airlines Group‘and incorporated into its long-haul fleet in
January 2007 jj
: |i
With regard to the reduction in personnel necessitated by the redimensioning of the long-haul segment,
management also succeeded in reaching agreement with staff representatives over the content of one-
off severance payments under the collective agreement an:l the social plan for commercial/technical
employees at the beginning of February. ]l
: i
Details of significant events after 31 December 2006 are alsorlprovided in Note 44,
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Human Resources

I |

[t
Even at a time of major economic c'hal]enges, the Austrian Airlines Group aims to
offer its employees attractive working conditions and an equitable participation
in the commercial success of the company. The extensive range of training and
further training offered by the company is evidence of this, as is its concern for
the health and motivation of employees. The Austrian Airlines Group ensures
that any redimensioning of employee numbers that is necessary is as socially toler-
able as possible, and that it takes place by agreement with staff representatives.
Despite the current restrictive personnel policy, the number of people employed
by the Group rose marginally in the report period as a result of production.

2006 was a demanding year for the employees of the Austrian Airlines Group. The successfully completed
capital increase and a number of different restructuring exercises in particular offered challenges in ;
the past year. Thanks to the exemplary commitment of its loyal and motivated employees, however, the |
Austrian Airlines Group succeeded in maintaining and centinued to build upon its excellent reputation and
strong market position, even under the testing circumstances of the financial year 2006. The Board of
Management would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude to its team and all employees at
the Group for the high level of commitment to work they have shown throughout the year.

Employee trend in 2006

In order to take the commercial situation of the company into account, the Austrian Airlines Group con- Slight production- ;
tinued to observe its restrictive employment policy throughcut the financial year 2006. Despite this, the related increase

total number of people employed by the Group increased over the report period to 8,582 (+1.3%). At the

end of the year, 8,421 people (2005: 8,434) were employed at the Group.

|
This marginal growth in personnel was almost exclusively col!icentrated on those divisions directly driven
by production. Due to expansion in the regional segment, for instance, employee numbers at the Tyrolean
Airways Production Company increased substantially (+7.6%). The growth in personnel in the production-
driven divisions of the Group is below the level of production growth as measured in seat kilometers (ASK)
of 1.6%, however.

Above all, this increase in efficiency was achieved through the Group’s restrictive employment policy.

There was no specific build-up in staff numbers during the report period; new positions were only filled

selectively to guarantee ongoing operations. Despite the minimal growth in numbers of personnel, the Optimisation in
Austrian Airlines Group adopted targeted measures throughout the Group in an effort te optimise the administrative divisions
work burden of employees. ;
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Programmes of speciﬁc measures also enabled the company to continue to increase its administrative
efficiency. The number of flight attendants increased by 2.5% as a result of the increase in flight availability.
The number of pilots employed increased slightly, by 0.3%.

Employees® 2006 2005 +/-abs. +/-%
Austrian Airlines? 6848 1 -
Tyrolean Airways F_éi_::ﬁ;_ } 103 AW’?TET
ok Atines’ I
Other Grou;}mployees —_11.'; 15 -1."!.?
Austria-r;-ipz\-i:fl_ia_e-s: Group :___S:EST 1 114 13_ |

1 Annual average on full-time basis, including employees in training and similar
2 Including Lauda Air .
3 Including Techinique Bratislava 1

Number of employees

by division* 2006 2005 +/-abs. +/-%
Markefing. Sales, Administration 2,010 3 01
Technical Services o _t_13_3‘§ - 28 #’—__:“;j—
Ground Services T - *v lifi):f-Dﬁ 18 1.7
Carge 515_ 1 5.17
Flight Aftt;e.r;.dants F21354] MV Zé;? 57 "2*5—
— 2 | Y D)
Flight dﬁérations Support’ 341§ R 34}8 -7 7)‘7-72.0 7

Total 8.582 8.468 114 13

1 Average on full-time basis, inclu!ding employees in training and similar
2 Including off duty cases, trainee flight attendants

Reduction in employees due to
redimensioning of long-haul routes

The redimensioning of the long-haul product range that became necessary in the report period also
requires a targeted reduction in the number of employees across all divisions of the company. In order
to make this process as socially tolerable as possible, a social plan featuring generous redundancy
offers is currently being worked out for employees impacted directly by the reduction.

Amongst pilots, any redundancies necessary in the direct production division will take place in
accordance with current figures and by mutual agreement. In addition to this, a special package of
measures has been put together for this target group ensuring that almost all structure-related
personnel adjustments are possible without the need for redundancies. For flight attendants, as well
as offering to dissolve employment relationships by mutual agreement, the Austrian Airlines Group is
looking at all available outsourcing measures such as new part-time models and reductions based
on fluctuation. The Group has also made the greatest possible efforts to maintain a sense of social
perspective in handling the reductions in personnel necessitated by the redimensioning of the
commercial-technical field.
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é
Just as the optimum implementation of planned personnel measures is an important issue to the
Austrian Airlines Group, so is designing unavoidable redundancies to be socially tolerable with the ac-
tive involvement of staff representatives. The Group offers measures on outplacement and uses targe-
ted cooperation with other high-value companies in an ongoing effort to transfer employees into si-
milar positions elsewhere, I

|

;l
Performance related system of remuneratlon

The Austrian Airlines Grougp offers employees a system of pe rformance related remuneration. Through
a range of incentive models and, amongst managerial staff, \rarlable salary components, employees are
specifically rewarded for strong performance and above- average levels of commitment. A Stock Option
Programme is also in place for members of the Board of Management divisional managers, managing
directors and executives of some subsidiaries. Details of the 'Stock Option Programme are contained in
Note 41. _ 1

|. i
f:

From the financial year 2007 onwards, the Austrian Airlines hmup also aims to introduce performance-

oriented pay across-the-board at employee level through thsg variabilisation of its salary system. The ap-
propriate model is currently beeing worked out. Subject to the precondition that implementation of the
new medel proves possible under the collective agreement, employees should in future have the oppor-
tunity to participate in the success of the company accordimj to their level of performance by means of
directly target-related, variable salary components. A system of employee participation is also planned: in
future. employees will be able to convert part of the variable remuneration for the tax-deductible acqui-
sition of shares, : !i
!
) .
Employee development and further training
i
Despite the challenging economic conditions, development and further training of employees continued
to provide an important focus for the Austrian Airlines Grou‘p in 2006. To complement the expansion of
the Group-wide Focus East strateqgy, the company maintainéd its emphasis on special courses revolving
around the Central and Eastern European region, as well as targeted language courses and intercultural
training sessions. In addition to specialised training courses, the Austrian Airlines Group offers its em-
ployees a wide range of seminars not directly related to thEII'| everyday activities. Coaching for employees
and management, internal presentations at divisional level and support for individual departments in the
form of workshops complete the extensive range of training ‘and further training provided by the Group.
i
The Austrian Airlines Group is also setting new standards for employees in the area of provision for
physical and mental health. Stress management, achieving a positive work/life balance and dissociation
from conflict are just some of numerous examples of this. Another highlight is the “feel fit" fitness pro-
gramme worked out by the Austrian Airlines Sports Club, which contributes to improving physical health
not only with a fitness check but also through participation in an active fitness programme supervised
by a personal coach. i:l '
In the Technical Services Division, the Group continued the sﬁccessfu!ly introduced cultural process in the
report periad. By incorporating the basic values and attitudes of all employees, the object of the process
is to define a role model for Austrian Technical Services, enabling staff to broadly live that model.

|
i

|
f
it
[
3
I
i
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Group-wide ideas management

In an effort to support and make more effective use of the potential of its employees’ experience, the
Austrian Airlines Group introduced a new form of ideas management at the end of 2005. This process al-
lows each employee to contribute new ideas, which are evaluated according to objective criteria for their
feasibility and potential for reducing costs or increasing revenue. An “employee platform” {(commission)
consisting of twelve members and a “facilitator” from the Human Resources Department then functions
as a jury. The job of the platform is to appraise, discuss and debate the ideas in order to develop the ini-
tial stages of solutions. All ideas are treated with equal weight. Subsequently the suggested solutions
generated in this way are presented to the Board of Management. A total of 58 ideas were contributed in
the report period. A management jury will evaluate the ideas from now on and work to implement them
accurately within the bounds of the line function, A further expansion of the ideas management pro-
gramme is planned for 2007, Particularly strong suggestions are to be rewarded with cash and goods in
future, and publicised internally as a result.

Comprehensive employee information

The Austrian Airlines Group is also concerned that its employees should always be in possession of the
mest up-to-date, transparent information available, This is particularly the case during economically tur-
bulent periods. The key elements of the Group’s internal information work include requiar newsletters,
the employee newspaper compass, which is published ten times a year, and a broad choice of online
products on the Group-wide intranet. The high quality of the one-intranet internal information
system was confirmed when it received the IT industry’s “Silver Feather” award in 2005. 2006 also saw the
Group's internal communications prove their outstanding quality in the annual FEIEA (Federation of Euro-
pean Industrial Editors Association} rankings. The department won 1st Place for its intranet presence and
2nd Place for the employee newspaper.

1
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Reduce the range of aircraft brands and types, and provide the option to
react flexibly to fluctuations in demand: the most important focal points of
the fleet management of the Austrian Airlines Group. In the last five years,
by selling aircraft and converting existing orders, the company has managed
to significantly harmonise its fleet. Within the bounds set by the restrictive
investment programme of the Austrian Airlines Group, 2006 saw two new
aircraft incorporated into the fleet, with two other short-haul aircraft, Fokker
100, also brought into service. Four aircraft were sold in 2006 in total, with
one other leased out temporarily. The report period saw the high quality and
safety standards of the Austrian Airlines Group confirmed once again when
the company passed an 10SA audu

The strategic fleet management of the Austrian Airlines Grmjlp is primarily designed to achieve proactive
management of the key commercial risks involved in the aviation industry. To this end in particular, a cost-
efficient and homogenous fleet structure needs to be created that can offer the flexibility necessary to
smoothly harmonise capacity with demand, even following sharp fluctuations in that demand. The num-
ber of different aircraft brands ('fleet families’) and types us2d in the fleet is one of the most important
cost factors for acquisition, operation and maintenance. Concentrating on a small number of families and
types enables an airline not only to generate substantial benefits at an operational level but also to in-
crease cost-efficiency and flexibility.

Restrictive investment programme

The fundamental principle of Austrian Airlines Group fleet policy is the development of demand-based ca-
pacity in accordance with the forecast market trend. In light of the current conditions, the Group cantin-
ues to pursue an extremely restrictive policy over the acquisition of new aircraft. Any capacity no longer
needed is leased or sold wherever possible.

Two new aircraft were added to the Austrian Airlines Group fleet in the report period, delivery of which Two new acquisitions

was already covered by longstanding orders. In concrete terms, these were an Airbus A319 and a Boeing
737-800. The Austrian Airlines Group spent a total of EUR 154.7 million on purchasing aircraft, reserve en-
gines and rotables and on madifications in the financial year 2006.

5 @A
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Reduction to eight fleet families

In the years between 2001 and 2006, the Austrian Airlines Group succeeded in reducing the composition
of its fleet from eleven fleet families with 22 different aircraft types to eight families with 16 different
types. This reduction in the range of types was achieved by the targeted conversion of existing orders, se-
lective sale of aircraftjwith a limited connection to the rest of the fleet and long-term lease-out of sec-
tions of the fleet no longer required.

Fleet structure of the Austrian Airlines Group

Short-haul Medium-haul Long-haul Charter
Dash 8 Airbus A313 788 | Airbus A330 Airbus A320 Iﬁ
Canadair R Airbus A320 Airbus A0 ‘Boeing 737
Fokke{rilb - 2 Boreing;g';' o ---’—--- - -”‘

[ Fokker 100 B o i
Total Short-haul 58 Total Medium-haul 23  Tota!Long-haul 15  Total Charter

Successful harmonisation in long-haul segment

The Austrian Airlines Group took another important step towards harmonising its long-haul fleet in
2006 with the sale of its two Airbus A340-200 type jets. Neither aircraft was well suited to the existing
A340 fleet of the Group due to their low seating capacity and limited cost-effectiveness. Both aircraft
were transferred to their new owners in 2006 following sales modification work. To offset this sale, a
Boeing 777-200ER ordered in September 2005 was delivered at the beginning of 2007 and has been in-
corporated into the existing Boeing 777 fleet. Due to the greater revenue potential and significantly
lower seating costs of the new aircraft, the change is expected to produce a marked improvement in
long-haul production costs.

The Group has chosen 2007 to sell the remainder of its long-haul Airbus fleet, with two A340-300 to be
leased out long-term to Star Alliance partner Swiss in the secand half-year. The Group’s four remaining Air-
bus A330-200 long-haul aircraft will also be removed from service with the fleet. The Austrian Airfines
Group expects to return one of the aircraft to the lessor at the beginning of 2008.

Following these changes, the fleet will grow only marginally in the current planning period, to 2010, and
then only in the shert- and medium-haul segment. No firm orders were placed for aircraft in the report
period, as current routes can be satisfactorily covered with existing capacity,

Further optimisation in short- and medium-haul segment

In recent years, the Austrian Airlines Group has acquired a total of 15 value-for-money medium-haul jets
of the Fokker 100 type, which had previously been in service with American Airlines. Six Fokker 100 en-
tered service with the Croup fleet in 2004, with a further five units following in the financial year 2005
and two more in 2006. The final two aircraft are to be converted in 2007 and transferred to production
with the Austrian Airlines Group, The Fokker 100 can be operated in a single fleet family with the Fokker
70, which already features in the fleet. The Fokker 100 is distinguished by its state-of-the-art technology
and high level of passenger comfort.

\
|
i
i
i




{ Austrian Airlines on the Capital Market

{ Management Report

The Austriaﬁ Airlines Group began operating its seventh medium-haul aircraft of the type Airbus A319 in
the report period, having taken over its first six aircraft of this type in the preceding two years. Since the

|
i
|

|
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A319 belongs to the A320 fleet family, all the models can beI flown by a single corps of pilots.

Aus der Flotte ausgeschieden und verkauft wurden im Jahir 2006 zwei Kurzstreckenflugzeuge des Typs
Canadai R)-100. Fiir 2007 ist die Abgabe des letzten Kurzstreckenjets dieses Subtyps geplant.

, ! e
Two short-haul aircraft of the type Canadair RJ-100 were removed from service with the Austrian Airlines
Group fleet and sold in 2006. The company intends to disﬁose of its final short-haul jet of this sub-type

fi

in 2007.
The Boeing‘f 737-800 that also entered service in the rep::ort period will primarily be used to provide
charter services, .
Medium-term fleet development’
Owned ﬁnanc’ie Operating
Scheduled fleet outright lease lease 2007 2008 2009 2010
Dash-8 2 1 - o2fl a2l zf =
Canadair R} . 10 4 - 13 13 13 13
Fokker 70 9 C BRI 9 9
Fokker 100 13 = - 15 15 15 15
[ Aot - El':: A A A A
A320 - 6 -l s 6 6 6
A321 3 3 Al sl sjl _sft s
BI37 i :13 - 4 4 4 4
Short- and medium-haul 57 4 - 82 82 83 83
B767 1 3 2 6 6 6 6
A330 - 3 - 1 -] - - -
A340 - 2 - - - - -
B777 - 3 o 4 4 4
Long-haul 15 a 8 3 10 10 10 10
Total scheduled 96 61 2 3 %2 92 93 @
1i
Charter fleet . *
A320 g 2 1 1 A2l 2 N E
B737 ——] v 1 5 1 K] 8 8 8
Total charter 9 2 16 1 9 10 10 10
1 i
Total 105 63 38 4 101 102 103 103

1 All figures refer to 31 December 2006 and take account of aperationally employed airzraft including the Slovak Airfines

fleet {also includes replacement aircraft for maintenance-related standing times). Plaaning status at present;

other harmonisation steps possible.
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Average age of fleet 8.4 years

As at 31 December 2006, the Austrian Airlines Group (including Slovak Airlines) had a total fleet of 105
aircraft in operaticnal sérvice, Taking into account the reduction in the A340 long-haul fleet and the
seasonal leasing of cne charter aircraft, the fleet was reduced in size by one aircraft compared to the
previous year. Seven other aircraft were leased as at the balance sheet date. The average age of the
fleet — due mainly to the incorporation of the used Fokker 100 aircraft — rose slightly to 8.4 years in the
report period (2005: 7.6 years).

IATA confirms highest safety standards

The Austrian Airlines Group has always been one of the world's leading airlines in terms of its quality and
safety standards, and this has also been confirmed by external evaluations. The Group took part in an
IOSA (IATA Qperational Safety Audit) evaluation in the report period, and fulfilled all the required criteria.
IOSA is the first internationally recegnised system of checks designed to evaluate the flight operations
processes of airlines, the flight and maintenance technology employed, cargo and ground organisation
procedures, training and maintenance programmes and management systems. The inspection process is
strictly supervised by the International Air Transport Association. Over 800 standards and processes in
regular use at Austrian, Austrian Arrows and Slovak Airlines are precisely inspected every two years with-
in the framework of the wide-ranging 10SA audit. The audit carried out in 2006 confirmed the high stan-
dards of safety within the Group.




€ Austrian Airlines on the Capital Market € Management Report Resources and Service Consolidated Financial Statements » ‘Notes >

Corporate Responsibility |

|
Austrian Airlines Group employs a wide range of measures to meet its obligations as
a major Austrian company and domestic employer of significant importance. Based
on a policy of open dialogue with all stakeholder groups, these measures range from
targeted sports and cultural sponsorship, through supporting social organisations
and projects, to working wisely with the environment and resources.

1

A commitment to social responsibility '

Even during periods of intensive competition in the aviation market, the Austrian Airlines Group fully recog-
nises its commitment to social responsibility — both in Austria and around the world. The Group is extreme-
ly proud of its internationalised and tolerant corporate culture, This is decisively shaped by the diversity of
the company’s employees, who originate from 53 different countries.

Ongoing, constructive dialogue with all stakeholders in the Group remains a central factor in shaping the

long-term orientation of all company activities. This communication is the basis for the Austrian Airlines Dialogue with all
Group’s ability to reasonably take the concerns of its employees and the public into account in addition stakeholders

to the interests of its shareholders. At the same time, the company is always keen to proactively minimise

the environmental impact of its business activities at every level.

Despite the continuing cost reductions that are necessary and the challenging conditions, the Austrian
Airlines Group once again supported numerous projects in the social, cultural and sporting fields in the
2006 financial year. The Group continued to focus stronigly on the training of young people, once again
recognising its responsibility as an Austrian employer of key importance. The Austrian Airlines Group is
currently training a total of 45 apprentices.

Sponsorship concept ‘:
Traditionally, Austrian Airlines Group sponsorship has f‘ocused on promotion of cultural and sporting Targeting specific
activities. In harmony with the active brand policy of the Group, particular emphasis is placed on the focus points
modern entertainment scene and selected types of leisure and mass sporting activities. At the same

time, pramoting a range of activities with an Austruan connection in this way serves to emphasise the

company’s strong regional associations.

|
Social |
The Group alsa respects the position of Austrian Airlines as the Austrian national flag carrier through its
support for a range of charitable and social organisations and initiatives, and spontanecus aid campaigns.
Examples of services provided in this field include the rapid operation of aid flights, provision of cargo
space and passenger seats an scheduled flights (often at extremely short notice) and flexible, unbureau-

cratic organisation of global aid deliveries.
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The Austrian Airlines Group provided a range of noted national and international aid urganisations and
sacially committed private individuals with support of this nature in 2006. The total vaiue of the support
provided was approximately EUR 0.4 million. Examples included the backing given to charities such as
Care Qsterreich, 505 Kinderdorf, Allianz fiir Kinder, Global 2000 and Hilfswerk Austria. The Austrian Air-
lines Group also supports the 505 Kinderdorf arganisation as a partner by collecting donations on board
its aircraft. The Austrian Airlines Group’s transportation of the Peace Light from Bethlehem around the
world symbolises the company's humanitarian and social commitment.

Culture and entertainment

Within the bounds of what is possible, Austrian Airlines also contributes to the promotion of Austria’s interna-
tional reputation as a haven of culture and an important tourist destination. Amongst other things, the com-
pany supports a range of Austrian cultural events to this end. Meeting the cost of flights plays a central role in
this field, while the Austrian Airlines Group also sponsored various musical productions by Vereinigte Bithnen
Wien, the Vienna Jazz Festival and a range of pop concerts in the 2006 financial year.

Sport

In the area of sports sponsorship, the Austrian Airlines Group acted as the official partner of the Euro-
pean Volleyball Confederation (CEV) in the report period. The Group also functioned as ‘official carrier’ for
the Austrian Olympic Team at the Turin 2006 Winter Olympic Games, and for the Austrian Paralympic
Committee at the Turin 2006 Winter Paralympic Games.

Environment '

At the heart of the Austrian Airlines Group’s activities in the field of environmental protection is its angoing
conversion to greener aircraft and engines. The company collaborates closely with aircraft and engine manu-
facturers in this area, with reduction of emissions and noise levels the key priorities at the present time. Con-
tinuing the ‘Eco-Business Plan’ initiative launched by the City of \ienna in 2005, the Austrian Airlines Group
was certified as an ‘eco-profit’ company in 2006. The initiative is designed to produce improverments to the en-
vironment combined with a commercial profit for companies. The award entitles the Group to bear the offi-
cial Okoprofit logo. By implementing a series of concrete environmental measures under the scheme, the
Group succeeded not only in saving resources but also in reducing its operating costs in a number of different
areas. Measures aimed at saving power in the hangar area, for example, resulted in an underproportional in-
crease in the operating costs of the Austrian Technical Services Division compared with overall preduction.

The Austrian Airlines Group's consistent policy of modernising its aircraft has produced steady rises in fuel
efficiency in recent years. The short- and medium-haul aircraft with the highest fuel consumption in the

fleet were removed from service in the years preceding the report period, followed in 2006 by the Group’s

two A340-200, the long-haul aircraft with the highest levels of fuel consumption per seat. The Austrian
Airlines Group will continue to remave aircraft with high fuel consumption leveis from service in 2007 by
leasing out long-term the last four-engined Airbus long-haul aircraft still in use at the company.

Noise reduction is another focal point for the efforts of the Austrian Airlines Group to protect the envi-
ronment. As the most important hub for Group traffic of all types, Vienna Airport is naturally the main fo-
cus of attention in this context. Following the conclusion of the mediation process involving the con-
struction of a third takeoff and landing runway, the participants in that process founded a new
association, the Vienna Airport Dialogue Forum, in late 2005. The Dialogue Forum provides a platform for
ongoing discussion of the complex subject of flight noise and airport expansion. It has been designed to
ensure fair and balanced settlement of stakeholder interests. The constructive cooperation between all
involved that is encouraged by the structures of the Dialogue Forum has already enabled a number of
changes to be made to approach and landing flights. These changes have produced noise reduction at a
regional level and more reasonable distribution of noise pollution. The Dialogue Forum has also driven
forward the associated preparatory work for the environmental tolerability statement on the construc-
tion of a third runway.

'
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: : !
Consolidated Balance Sheet | |
as of 31 December 2006 |
Assets
EURm Notes 31.12.2006 31.12.2005 +/- +-%
Intangible assets Fo1s | 193 251 -5.8 -231
Aircrafts P19 | 2133.2| 2,2744 -141.2 -62
Other tangible assets 00 | 519 | 5.2 0.7 12
Investrments in associates using the equity methed P 128 127 01 08
Securities and loans i 22 98.9 197.3 -98.4 -49.9
Other non-current assets \f 25 311 74.2 -431 -581
Defarred tax assets i 26 [ 95.8 95.2 06 0.6
Non-current assets i j 2,445.0| 27361 -2871 -10.5
Inventories . J‘ 23 498 579 -81 -140
Trade receivables ‘ 24 152.8 178.2 -254 -143
Cther current assets b2 214} 64.3 -36.9 -574
Cash and cash equivalents Lo28 | 516.1 120.8 3953 -
Long-term assets of disposal group classified as held for sale P2 136 42.0 -284 -676
Current assets l 759.T| 463.2 296.5 64.0

\
Total assets J | 3,208.7 3,199.3 9.4 0.3
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities i
EURM : Notes 31.12.2006 31.12.2005 - %
tssued share capital " I 7T ) 2472 98 4.0
Reserves and accumulated results 30 | 526.1] 3169 209.2 B6.0
Equity attributable to shareholders of Austrian Airlines AG | 783.1 564.1 215.0 388
Minority interests | 17 15 02 133
Shareholders’ equity [ | 784.8 | 565.6 219.2 38.8

i
Provisions ‘ 31 3141 268.6 455 16.9
Interest-bearing liabilities L3z | 12671 1,326.3 -59.2 . -45
Other liabilities [t [ 230 275 -45 -16.4
Non-current liabilities \ [ 1,604.2 | 1622.4 -18.2 -1.1
Provisions o3n 1796 1655 141 85
Interest-bearing liabilities i3 264.9 469.5 -2046 -436
Income tax liabilities i 34 36 -0.2 -5.6
Other liabilities i 33 3679 3541 138 349
Liabilities directly assaciated with the leng-term o
assets classified as held for sale I 39 18.6 -14.7 -79.0
Current liabilities : 819.7 I 1,011.3 -191.6 -18.9
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities [ 3,208.7 3199.3 9.4 0.3
The following Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an intagral part of this Cé?nsulidated Balance Sheet.
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
1 January 2005 to 31 December 2006

EURm Issued Reserves Accumulated Equity att- Minority  Share-
share capital losses / profits  ributable interests  holders’
to share- equity
holders
Capital  Currency Reserve accord-  Share owned of Austrian
reserves  translation  ingtolAS 39 by the company Airlines AG
As at 1.1.2005 restated 2472 247 - -93 -148 436.7 684.5 19 6364
Currency differences 01 01 01}
Valuation investments 09 09 0.9 |
Other changes from hedging instruments 9.6 9.6 26
Other changes from deferred taxes -0.6 -0.6 -0.6
Other changes 03 03 -2.0 =17
Total sums not affecting the operating result - - 01 99 - 03 103 -2.0 83
Net result for the year ) -1307 -1307 16 -1291
Total result for the year - - 01 99 - -1304 -120.4 -04 -120.8
As at 31,12.2005 2472 4.7 01 0.6 -148 3063 564.1 15 565.6
Currency differences ’ -
Valuation investments -0.9 -0.9 -09
Other changes from hedging instruments 14 14 14
Other changes from deferred taxes 05 05 0.5 I
Qther changes -05 -05 -05 |
Total sums not affecting the operating result - - -05 1.0 - - 05 - 05 |
Net result for the year -1301 -1301 0.2 -129.9 |
Total result for the year - - -05 10 - -130.1 -1296 0.2 -1254 |
Simplified capital decrease -145.2 -145 158.7 - -
Capital increase 155.0 2118 . 366.9 366.9
Cost of capital increase -183 | -183 -18.3
As at 31.12.2006 2570 2037 -04 16 -14.8 3359 7831 17 784.8

i
*
i
4
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EURm i Notes 2006 2005 +/- H-%
Result before tax I | -1381 -1296 -85 -66
Depreciation and amortisation I 2938 3378 -44.0 -130
Result from disposal of non-current assets ‘I 302 I -91 393 -
Share of results in associates “ -01 I -1.0 09 -
Financial expenses I 679 | 726 -47 -65
Financial incame i -257 | -286 29 101
Increase/decrease in inventories I 81 I -5.1 132 -
Increase/decrease in receivables and other assets H 78.2 | 6.6 71.6 -
Increase/decrease in provisions ” 59.6 | -145 741 -
Increase/decrease in other liabilities i 73 | 08 65 -
Foreign currency results . i | -193 | 285 -4738 -
Income taxes paid I | -17 | 14 -31 -
Cash flow from operating activities ¥ 37 | 3602 | 259.8 100.4 38.6
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets !! -194.7 -293.4 98.7 336
Praceeds of securities, other loans and equity interests H 1443 I 814 62.9 713
Purchase of securities and other loans ' I -395 | -76 -319 -
Purchase from subsidiaries minus cash and cash equivalents !! -32 | =209 177 847
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets Ii 75.8 | 131.0 =552 -421
Financial income received i 153 | 283 -130 -459
Cash flow from investing activities i 37 | -20 | -81.2 792 975
Capital increase " 3486 - 348.6 -
Borrowing of interest-bearing liabilities ! 1699 | 2511 -812 -323
Payment of interest-bearing fiabilities ) -4337 | -276.1 -1576 -571
Financial expenses paid ] -670 | -723 53 73
Cash flow from financing activities | 7 | 178 | -97.3 1151 -
Increase/decrease of cash and cash equivalents L 37 376.0 813 294.7 -
Foreign currency resuits I { 193 | -285 478 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ﬂ 28 120.8 . 68.0 52.8 776
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ¢ 28 | 516.1 | 120.8 395.3 -

| F
The foflowing Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of this Cc nsolidated Cash Flow Statement.
[ . i
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“Notes

General

The Consoclidated Financial Statements of Austrian Airlines Osterreichische Luftverkehrs-
Aktiengesellschaft (in theilfollowing; Austrian Airlines AG) and its subsidiaries have been pre-
pared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by
the EU, and are to be approved for publication by the Supervisory Board in its meeting to be
held on 06.03.2007. All the standards mentioned were also applied to the financial statements
of the previous year. The financial year 2000 was the first in which Austrian Airlines took the
opportunity to employ IFRS to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in millions of euros. The data for
the financial year 2006 relate to the balance sheet date 31.12.2006 and the period from
(1.01.2006 to 31.12.2006 respectively.

In its domestic market of F!\ustria, the Austrian Airlines Group is the market leader in terms of
passenger volume handle_d. It covers all sectors of the aviation industry. The commercial
sectors of the Group’s operative airlines include scheduled and charter services, the trans-
portation of cargo and airmail and the performance of technical and handling services for
other airlines. ‘

The seat and headquarteré of the company are located at Fontanastrasse 1, 1107 Vienna. The
company appears in the commercial register in Vienna under FN 111000k.

As well as its three operative airlines of Austrian, Austrian arrows and Slovak Airlines, and
Lauda Air as a marketing company for the holiday flight segment, the Austrian Airlines Group

‘includes a number of other companies in the transport, tourism and financial sectors, all of

which provide strategic su=pport for its flight operations.
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1» Preparation of financial statements

The annual financial statements of the consolidated companies have
been prepared on the basis of historical cost as of the balance sheet
date of the consolidated financial statements, with the exception of
financial instruments available for disposal and derivatives, which are
assessed at the associated market value. The bock value of assets and
debts, which have been hedged within the framework of a Fair Value
Hedge and are otherwise valued at the cost of acquisition/manufac-
ture, has been adjusted by the change to the associated values, which

relate to hedged risks. |

j

2 » Significant effects of new accounting |
standards

The accounting standards chosen are consistent with previous

years, with the exception of the newly applicable standards, appli-

cation of which had no effect on the assets, finance and revenue

. - f
of the Austrian Airlines Group, however. :

The change to IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) creates an additional
right to choose that makes it possible to show actuarial gains and
losses fram payment-based pension provisions immediately. This
option provides for the recerding of all actuarial gains and lasses
outside the income statement in the form of a "statement of total
recagnised gains and losses™. The change also states (a) that a con-
tract between a collaborative plan of several employers ("rnulti-
employer plan™} and participant employees which establishes how
a surplus is to be distributed or a deficit to be financed is to be
reported in the balance sheet, (b) how payment-based pension
provisions are to be reported in the respective annual financial
statements of the comparies participating in the plan, and {(c)
what additional duties of publication the companies mustfulfil.
The change applies to financial years beginning on or “after
01.01.2006.

IFRIC 4 {Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease)
regulates which agreements are to be characterised as lease rela-
tionships according to the reporting requlations of I1AS 17 (Leas-
es). IFRIC 4 applies to financial years beginning on or after
01.01.2006. The application of this standard does not affect the
situation of the Austrian Airlines Group with regard to assets,
finances and revenue. ‘

IFRIC 5 (Rights to Interests Arising From Decommissioning, Restora-
tion and Environmental Funds) regulates the treatment of capital
returns from funds that have been set up to cover the costs of
decommissicening, restoration and similar liabilities, IFRIC 5 aaplies
to financial years beginning on or after 01.01.2006. The application
of this standard does not affect the situation of the Austrian
Airlines Group with regard to assets, finances and revenue.
IFRIC 6 (Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market-
Waste electrical and electronic equipment) regulates the record-

ing of liabilities arising from the EU Guideline on the disposal of
electronic waste. IFRIC 6 applies to financial years beginning on or
after 01.01.2006. Application of these standards has no effect on
the assets, finances or revenue of the Austrian Airlines Group.

The changes to IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement-Amendment for financial gquarantee contracts;
Amendments for cash flow hedges of forecast intragroup transac-
tions; Amendments for the vair value option) apply to financial
years beginning on or after 01.01.2006. They relate to the applica-
tion of the Fair Value option for financial assets and debts for the
consideration of valuations at Fair Value with reporting of value
changes in the Income Statement, and permit the definition of for-
eign currency risk of intergroup forecast transactions as hedging
transaction in a cash flow relationship, where the transaction takes
place in a second currency. Application of the changed standard
has no effect on the assets, finances or revenue of the Austrian
Airlines Group.

IFRS 7 {Financial Instruments: Disclosures), which merely extends
the reporting scope of financial instruments for financial years
beginning on or after 01.01.2007, was not applied in advance by the
Austrian Airlines Group.

IAS 1 (Amendment-Capital disclosures), IFRS 8 (Operating seg-
ments), IFRIC 7 (Applying the restatement approach under IAS
39 financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies), IFRIC 8
(Scope of IFRS 2), IFRIC 9 (Reassessment of embedded deriva-

_ tives), IFRIC 10 (Interim financial reporting and impairment},

IFRIC 11 (IFRS 2-Group and treasury share transactions) and
IFRIC 12 (Service concession arrangements) have not been
applied by the Austrian Airlines Group in the past. Application
of the changed standards is not expected to have any significant
consequences for the assets, finances or revenue of the Austrian
Airlines Group.

3 » Accounting principles

Income and expenditure

Income from services and the sale of merchandise are recognised
when the corresponding service has been performed or when the
risks and rewards associated with the right of ownership are trans-
ferred to the buyer. The other criteria included in 1AS 18 (Revenue)
are normally also met at this time. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received taking into account the
amount of any trade discounts.

Financial income and financial expenditure are valued on a pro-
portional basis, taking the effective interest rate into account.

Dividends are recognised at the time at which the legal claim to
the dividend is established. At the time at which the income is

recognised, the refating expenditure is also recognised (matching '

1 B
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principle), provided that, if the expenditure has not yet led to an
outflow of resources, a liability exists. ‘

|
Intangible and tangible assets
Intangible and tangible assets are calculated as acquisition or pro-
duction costs less amortisation and depreciation charges based on
the Group’s accounting principles. The acquisition or production cost
is recognised as being the amount paid in cash or cash equivalents
or the market value of another form of payment being attached at
the time of the purchase or production. Depreciation of the intangi-
ble and tangible assets is calculated on a straight-line basis. Assets
are depreciated from the time of their readiness for operation
onwards, Interest expenses are not capitalised. The estimated useful
life of intangible assets, all of which report a limited usefultlife, is
unchanged from the preceding year: '

Type Estimated useful life in years

Software licences and other rights 3-10

The costs of goodwill acquired in connection with corporate pur-
chases are valued at the time of acquisition as an excess of
expenditure for the purchase by means of Fair Value of the acqui-
red assets minus debts and potential liabilities. The goodwill is
subsequently recorded as an excess of the costs of acquisition
minus the necessary impairment. The necessity of impairment of
goodwill is tested once annually, when the discounted present
value from the assets and debts assignable to the goodwill is
reported and compared to the goodwill. Existing synergies within
the segments to which the goodwill is assigned can also be inclu-
ded if necessary. In the sale of equity interests, assignable good-
will is deleted from the accounts in part.

The depreciation peried of tangible assets is based on the esti-
mated useful life of the asset. The estimated useful life ofl each

type of aircraft when new and of the Fokker 100, which was

acquired in used condition, is set out in the following table.
Depreciation is on the residual value of 10% of the respective
acquisition cost:

Type Estimated useful life in years Residual value in %
B777 / B76T f A340 f A330 20 10
8737 / A310' f A321 / A320 / A319 18 10
Fokker 70 / Embraer R)' / Canadair R} 15 10
Dash-8 12 .10
Fokker 100 8 |10

1 Nat in operational use with the Austrian Airlines Group

m 72

In addition to this, individual aircraft components are depreciated
to the shorter scheduled useful life and in the case of engines, the
"bwilt in overhaul” method applied, wherein acquisition costs being
allocated to the significant overhauls are depreciated to the dura-
tion of the interval between overhauls,

When carrying aircraft as an asset, essential components (cabin,
engine and interior) are recorded and depreciated separately.
Essential overhauls are carried as an asset and depreciated to the
estimated useful life until the next overhaul.

The estimated useful life of the remaining tangible assets is essen-
tially as follows:

Type Estimated useful life in years
Buildings 20-50
Office fixtures and fittings 10
Commercial machinery and equipment 5-10
Cars 8
Technical equipment 5
EDP equipment 3-10

The residual value, estimated useful life and methods of amorti-
sation are checked on an annual basis.

If the achievable value of an asset is lower than its book value,
an impairment is recognised on this value.

According to the market value estimates produced for the air-
craft stock of the company under review, depreciation to a
lower achievable amount is not required for those aircraft
employed in the longer term. In detail, calculations are per-
formed on the basis of so-called Cash Generating Units. Since all
aircraft are used for all traffic streams according to the trans-
ferral concept of the Austrian Airlines Group, the total Group
fleet has been included as a single Unit. An interest rate of 5.0%
(5.0% the previous year) has been set for the purposes of calcu-
lation. Fer the cash flows of the periods from 2011, which lie
outside the limits of the calculations of the current corporate
plan, the cash flow for the year 2010 was measured and esca-
lated by 1.75% per annum. See Note 19 for further details of the
way in which the impairment of aircraft is calculated. Because
the book values of those aircraft and spare parts specified for
disposal but used in regular flight operations until that time
were above the market values, total impairments were recog-
nised of EUR 5.0m. The regulations of IAS 16.51 state that assets
are to be deleted from the accounts in the year in which the
item was sold or no longer used in service.




€ Austrian Airlines on the Capital Market

{ Management Report

{ Resources and Services

{ Consofidated Financia$ Statements

Lease financing .
Under 1AS 17 {(Accounting for Leases), economic ownership of
the lease is attributed to the lessee if this person essentially
bears all the risks and rewards connected with the ownership of
the lease. If it is determined that economic ownership lies with
the Austrian Airlines Group then the lease is capitalised, effec-
tive from inception of the lease agreement, at the present value
of the future lease payments including, if appropriate, any inci-
dental costs borne by the lessee. Whether a contract includes a
lease transaction is established at the time of conclusion of the
contract according to whether fulfiiment of the cor.tract
depends on the usage of the asset or the contract mcludes the
right to usage of the asset. Both the depreciation charge and
the estimated useful life correspond with those of compérable
assets purchased. )

Sale and lease back
"Sale-and-lease-back™ transactions are reported in the ba!ance
sheet in accordance with IAS 1758ff. Treatment of book proflts is in
accordance with this standard, depending upon whether a Fnance
lease or an operating lease exists. ;

Financial instruments
Securities held to maturity are valued at cost subject ta the
effective interest method, or - in the event that long-term
impairment is expected - at the market or stock exchange price,
whichever is the lower. All other securities are recognised at
their market value, whereby changes in valuation are recognised
in shareholders’ equity {available-for-sale). The market value
corresponds to the respective market price value on the balance
sheet date. {
iﬁ
On the balance sheet date, forward transactions were in%place
. for the general hedging of USD positions. The derivatives in exis-
tence on the balance sheet date were attributed to the "Held for
trading” category and the effect on the result of the change in
valuation recognised. A written CHF option in connection with a
short-term loan in CHF also existed as at 31.12.2005. _'
An asset is deleted from the accounts when the contractual
rights to the cash flows connected with the asset expire. In the
event that all significant risks and rewards from an assét are
transferred, the asset is also deleted from the accounts.
;
In accordance with IAS 39, Trade receivables have been attrib-
uted to the Loans and Receivables category. Short-term
accounts receivable are valued at cost subject to the effactive
interest methad. Doubtful accounts receivable are written down
to the lower realisable value and the required individual valua-
tion allowances made on the basis of recognisable risk.

Accounts receivable in foreign currencies, which are essentially

held in USD, GBP, AUD and JPY, are translated at the mid-market
price as at the balance sheet date. The Other accounts receiv-
able item also includes deferred expenses for maintenance
costs paid in advance. Derivatives are used to provide coverage
against interest rate and currency risks. Fuel price hedging was
not being used either on 31.12.2005 or on 31.12.2006.

The option premiums paid at the inception of the interest rate,
currency or fuel price hedging transactions are carried as an
asset. Changes in value during the term are carried as an asset.
At the expiration/exercise date, the full-capitalised amount is
charged/credited either to interest expense, foreign currency
exchange differences or fuel expenditure. Exclusively interest-
rate swaps are used to hedge interest-rate risk, while both
currency and forward swaps are used to hedge against currency
risk. In relation to reporting according to IAS 39, primarily
Cash Flow Hedges, and in 2005 also Fair Value hedges, are used.

Other derivatives are used for the commercial hedging of future
foreign currency risks. The hedging relationships cannot fulfil
the detailed requirements of Hedge Accounting according to
IAS 39. The other derivatives are calculated at Fair Value accord-
ing to the “Held for trading” category and recognised in the net
profit/luss for the year.

The hedging policy and financial instruments in use as at the
balance sheet date are shown in Note 36.

Derivatives recorded as assets appear in the balance sheet
under Other current assets, while derivatives recorded as debts
appear in the balance sheet under Other current liabilities.

Inventories

Inventeries include non-reparable spare parts, raw materials and
supplies and related goods, and prepayments on inventories.
Inventories are valued at cost. Cost is based on acquisition cost,
while the use of the item is based on average cost. Interest
expense is not included. As at the balance sheet date inventories
are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, minus any
other costs accrued. Net realisable value is determined by the
net selling price of the final product.

Provision for pensians, severance payments and

anniversary bonuses

In addition to specific pension commitments with senior employ-
ees, especially former members of the Board of Management of
the Croup and their dependants, the following individually defined
pension plans are in place:

[E |
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In addition to specific pension commitments with senior employ-
ees, especially former members of the Board of Managemént of
the Group and their dependants, the following individually daned
pension plans are in place: ii
With effect from 31 Decermnber 1994, the previousiy valid pénsion
contribution requlation for commercial and technical emplf:oyees
of the company was transferred into a pensien fund am:lI con-
verted to a defined contribution scheme. The rates of contribu-
tion for commercial and technical employees who joinefd the
company on or after 01.01.1995 were increased from 1% “to 3%
with effect from 01.01.2005 (4% from 2009). A similar arrllange-
ment exists with employees in Germany whereby this is based on
an agreement. The company made the appropriate provusmuns for
this liability until 31.12.2002; from 01.01.2003, it was converted to
a local pension contribution system. With effect from 31. 12 1998,
the pension contribution regulations for the pilots and cabln
attendants of Austrian Airlines AG were also transferred o an
external pension fund whilst retaining the contributions- based
model. The collective bargaining agreement provides for a pen-
sion for pilots, payable at the earliest at the age of 55, amount-
ing to 60% of the final salary, whereby this incorporates the enti-
tlement of the ASVG pension, an invalidity benefit as well as the
widows' and orphans’ pension with its upper limit. For “cabm
attendants, a direct contribution scheme dependent upo'n the
length of service and limited to 20% of final salary is in place. A
pension for the surviving dependants of flight attendants, the
amount of which will be restricted, is also in place. For those
inflight employees of Austrian Airlines AG who join the company
on or after 01.04.2004, and those pilots and cabin attenj:dants
who have moved from Lauda Air to Austrian Airlines in the course
of the transfer of the business, the following contrlbutlons-
based pension fund regulation is in place: pilots receive a contn-
bution of 4% (5% from 2009), cabin attendants a contrlbut[pn of
3% (4% from 2009) of the respective gross monthly salary. '

||

Provisions have also been made at Tyrolean Airways for a.| new
contributions-based employee pension guaranteed on a collec—
tive basis and amounting to 3% of respective gross annual ijemu-
neration (4% from 2009 for inflight personnel). A commitment
has alse been made to a contributions-based employee pension
for commercial and technical employees of Lauda Air, for \;vhich

3% (4% from 2009) of the respective gross annual remuneratlon

is paid to the pension fund by the employer. iI

Employees subject to Austrian Law have the right, if their perlod of
employment has lasted for three years without mterruptlon to a
severance payment in case of termination of their terms of
employment by the employer or resignation for an |mportanic rea-
son, if they have been employed for at least 10 years and: upon
retirement in any case. The level of this payment depends on the

annual salary at the time of termination and the length of service.

m 4 i

In addition to this, collective employee commitments to the pay-
ment of anniversary bonuses dependent upon the term of service
exist for employees of Austrian Airlines and Tyrolean Airways. The
provisions for pensions, severance payments and anniversary
bonuses have been calculated under the ‘Anwartschaftsbarw-
ertverfahren’, which roughly correspends to the 'Projected Unit
Credit Method'. The provisions are calculated annually as at the
year-end by an external actuary.

For employees who have joined the company after 01.01.2003,
legally prescribed contributions of 1.53% of gross monthly salary
are to be paid into an employee severance fund (contribution-
based system), For this reason, formation of a provision is not nec-
essary to fulfil legal requirements.

For details of the actuarial assumptions used, see Note 31.
When income or expenditure resulting either frem a change in

one of the assumptions or from actuarial gains and losses
exceed the defined benefit obligation as at the previous year-

~end by more than the 10 % corridor relating to severance pay-

ments and pensions as defined in I1AS 19 (Employee Benefits),
the excess over the 10% is distributed annually by the amount of
the remaining period of service. Use has not been made of the
voting right provided for under |1AS 19 as of January 2006 to
report the income and expenditure resulting from changes in
the assumptions on which they are based directly in the Income
Statement. The pension provision is calculated in accordance
with |AS 19 (Employee Benefit Costs) using the 'Anwartschafts-
barwertverfahren’,

Tax, other provisions and contingencies

Tax and other provisions are recorded to the extent that an obliga-
tien exists to third parties, that future payments are probable and
that the pravisions can be reliably measured. Should none of these
criteria be applicable, then the correspondent obligations are
reported under contingencies. Provisions payable after more than
one year are recorded at the net present value. The requirement
and valuation of the provisions are re-examined at the balance
sheet date each year. Provisions in foreign currency are translated
at the closing rate. The provision for commitments under the ‘Miles
& More' frequent flyer programme is calculated in line with the
agreements reached with Lufthansa.

Liabilities

Liabilities arising from financing lease agreements are valued at
the present value of future lease payments in force at the con-
clusion of the agreement. All other liabilities are valued at the
purchase cost recognising the effective interest method. Liabil-
ities in foreign currencies are translated at the mid-market rate
on the balance sheet date, and were held primarily in USD, JPY
and CHF.
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In connection with lease financing, a commitment has been
made to contractual partners that specific defined ratios of bal-
ance sheet cover will be observed in case a fundamental change
in ownership structure should occur. ;
I
For details of liabilities towards credit institutions, see Not: 32,
i
Deferred taxes i
Deferred taxes are calculated in accordance with IAS 12 (Inzome
Taxes) subject to the 'Full Liability Method'. According to 1AS 12
(Income Taxes), deferred tax is calculated on temporary ti'ming
differences between the tax value and the IFRS book vali;e of
the assets and debts. A deferred tax asset has been capitalised
for tax losses only to the extent that these will be utilised in the
foreseeable future. The calculation of the tax deferral is based
upan the standard rate of income tax in the country at the time
of the expected reversal of the value difference. ;
Lang-term assets/liabilities of disposal group classified
as held for sale ’

The assets and debts of subsidiaries purchased with an intention to

sell and non-current assets available for sale are recognised at the
lower of their book or market value minus the costs of disposal.,

i
Estimates f

In the consolidated financial statements, it is necessary to make
certain estimates and assumptions, which can have an infiuence
upon the value of assets, liabilities, income and expenses in, and
on the notes to, the financial statements for the report period.
Assumptions and estimates are primarily applied when deter-
mining the useful life of the value of assets (Note 3), calculating
discounted cash flows within the scope of impairment tests
{Notes 18 and 19) and forming provisions for legal proceedings
{Note 31), pensions and other guarantees of performance
{Note 31), taxes (Notes 17 and 26) and guarantees (Note 34). It
is possible that the actual amounts may vary from.such
estimates used.

Currency translation

Where transactions are performed in a foreign currency,
exchange rate differentials arising from the conversion of mon-
etary foreign currency positions, which occur due to exchange
rate fluctuations between the booking in of the transaction and
the balance sheet date, are reported as full-capitalised entries
in the period affected. Non-monetary entries valued at the
acquisition or production cost are converted at the historir: rate.
Where foreign currency receivables or liabilities are hedged by
forward transactions, valuation is on the balance sheet date
subject to application of the Hedge Accounting provisions of IAS
39. The trends in the most important exchange rates in relation
to EUR are as follows:

Currency conversion
EUR 2006 2005

Market price Average Market price Average

on reporting on reporting

date date
uso 13170 1.2630 1.1797 1.2380
JPY 156.93 146.81 138.90 136.89
CHF 1.6069 15768 1.5551 15478
GBP 06715 06819 | 06853 0.6830
AUD 16691 16683 16109 1.626%
SKK 34.435 37088 37.880 38.578

Stock Options
As the stock options were granted before 07.11.2002, the provisions
of IFRS 2 were not applied.

4 » Methods of consolidation

Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial state-
ments applying IAS 27 if the Group exercises a dominant influ-
ence. Significant associates on which a decisive influence can

be exerted are accounted for under the "Equity Method™. Other |

investments are carried at cost, In the capital consolidation, the
purchase values of the equity interests at the time of acquisition
are compared to the Group share in the newly calculated share-

holders’ equity in the respective company. In subsequent con- |

solidations, the hidden reserves and encumbrances thus dis-
closed are carried forward, amortised or released in accordance
with the treatment of the corresponding assets and debts. Any
excess of the costs of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is
recognised as goodwill. The recoverability of such goodwill is
audited by means of an impairment test in accordance with the
regulations of IFRS, in connection with IAS 36 (Impairment),
According to the provisions in I1AS 22 {Business Combinations),
goodwill arising up to 31.12.1994 is charged directly to the
reserves. Should the goodwill not be covered by the present
value of future revenues, a reduction is recognised on the
achievable amount. Where in the past the value of the net
assets acquired had exceeded the acquisition cost, this was
recognised as negative goodwill. The full-capitalised negative
goodwill in existence as at 01.01.2005 was released in 2005. The
carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the
equity method is increased or reduced respectively at each
reporting date by the Austrian Airlines Group’s pro rata share of

the associates’ or joint ventures’ changes in equity capital. The |
difference between the carrying amount of the equity invest- |

ments and the prorated equity of the company is allocated and
carried forward on the basis of the same principles as those
applicable to full consclidation. Effects resulting from inter-
Group transactions are eliminated. Receivables and liabilities

B N
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between consolidated companies are netted; inter-Group prof-
its and losses included in fixed assets and inventories are elimi-
nated, and earnings within the Group are offset against the cor-
respondent expenses.

5 » Scope of consolidation

The expansion of the scope of consolidation of the fully consoli-
dated companies in 2005 primarily affected Slovenske Aerclinie,
a.s. (Slovak Airlines), acquired in 2005 by means of a capital
increase (EUR 2.8m), as well as, to a lesser extent, SLL sro.
Bratislava Technik Center s.ro.. Travidata Inc., Travidata (UK)
Limited, Wien Oberlaa Liegenschaftsentwicklung GmbH and TRAVI
Holding GmbH. Within the scope of the initial consolidation of Slo-
vak Airlines, non-current assets of EUR 1.0m, current assets of
EUR 16.8m and current debts of EUR 19.2m have been included in
the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statement. The scope of consoli-
dation was only extended in 2006 by the newly founded Austrian
Airfines Technik Bratislava. Airest Restaurant- und Hotelbetriebs-
gesellschaft m.b.H., which was newly incorporated into the scope
of full consalidation in 2005, was reported to 31.12.2005 in accor-
dance with the regulations of IFRS 5, "Assets Held for Sate”. The
assets of TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH and of TVW Trav-
el Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co KG were reported under this
item as at 31.12.2006. Items disposed of from the scope of full con-
solidation in 2006 related to the sale of Airest Restaurant- und
Hotelbetriebsgesellschaft m.b.H. ‘

Twenty-two (22 the previous year) subsidiaries are fully consoli-
dated. The investments in five {5 the previous year) associates
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statement under
the equity method. The following subsidiaries were included in
the consolidated financial statements on the basis of full con-
solidation:

{ Departure into the Future| € Top Quality as Success Factor

Company Headquarters Holdingin %
AUA Beteiligungen Gesellschaft mb.H. Vienna 100.0
Austrian Airlines Lease and Finance Company Ltd. St. Peter Port 1000
Tyrolean Airways Teroler Luftfahrt GmbH Innsbruck 100.0
Lauda Air Luftfahrt GmbH Schwechat 1000
SLL sro. Bratislava 100.0
TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH Schwechat 1000
TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co KG Schwechat 100.0
Austrian Airlines Technik - Bratislava, s.ro. Bratislava 100.0
Austrian Airlines Technik Marketing GmbH Schwechat 100.0
Bratislava Technik Center, sr.o. Bratislava 100.0
UIA Beteiligungsgesellschaft m.bH. Vienna 160.0
AUA Versicherungs-Service Gesellschaft m.b.H, Vienna 1000
AVICON Aviation Consult Gesellschaft m.bH. Vienna 10040
Wien Oberlaa Liegenschaftsentwickiungs GmbH Schwechat 10040
Travidata Inc. New York 1000
Travidata (UK} Limited tendon 100.0
ACS Aircontainer Services Gesellschaft m.b.H. Fischamend 76.0
TRAVI Holding GmbH Vienna 670
Traviaustria Datenservice fiir Reise und

Touristik GmbH & Co. Nfg. KG Vienna 670
Slovenske Aerolinie, a.5. (Slovak Airlines) Bratislava 61.991
SCA Schedule Coordination Austria GmbH Schwechat 54.0
AVS Privatkunden Versicherungsservice GmbH Schwechat 51.0

The investments in the following associates were accounted for
under the equity method: -

Company ) Headquarters Holding in %
“AirPlus” Air Travel Card Vertriebsgesellschaft m.bH. Vienna 3333
Gulet Touristik GmbH & Co KG _ Vienna 250
Gulet Touristik GmbH Vienna 25.0
TUI-Austria Reiseveranstaltungs GmbH & Co KG Vienna 250
Ukraine International Airlines Kiev 225

An overview of the equity interests can be found on page 101.

6 » Currency translation

In accordance with IAS 21, the annual financial statements of for-
eign consolidated companies are converted into the euro accord-
ing to the functional currency concept. For the majority of the
companies this is the respective national currency, since these
companies operate their businesses independently in the finan-
cial, commercial and organisational regard. Assets and debts are
converted at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date, there-
fore, while expenses and income are converted at the annual
average exchange rate.

The resultant differences relative to the rates on the balance
sheet date are reported separately under Shareholders’ equity as
a difference arising from currency conversion.
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Notes to the Consohdated
Income Statement

7 » Flight revenue

Flight revenue l;y type of service
i

EURm | 2006 2005
Scheduled | Passengers I 2,0159 1,829.1
! Excess baggage | 10.0 J 89
| cargo 1615} 1519
! irmail 9.7] i 86
Scheduled Total | o] 21971 13985
Charter | o 2617 262.0
] ' 2458.8 2,260.5

|
I
: ]

! .
The increase m passenger revenues from scheduled services; is a

result not only of the increase in the number of passengers car-
ried and partlal takeover of long-haul holiday flights still Wlthln
the scope of resp0n5|b|I|ty of the charter segment last year but
also an |ncrease in the average yields achieved. The i |ncrease in
cargo revenue results both from the introduction of new c:nrgo-
only flights and from price increases. In the charter area the
reduction in the number of passengers carried compared to the
preceding year that was caused by the transfer of flights tn the
scheduled serwces segment was nearly offset by the i |ncrease in
average yle[ds ’

8 » Other révenue “

EURm 2006 2005
Sales of goods | 541 | 515
Commissions | 134 Y122
Technical services | 289 ;298
Handling services | 115} i 134
Aircraft lease | | 13.0{ f130
Revenue from sérvice provider charges l 8.2 i 85
Other | 5.2 | 40

134.4 132.4

Sales of goods consist primarily of revenues from the Duty Free
Shops, which were handled by TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs
GmbH & Co KG, and inflight sales. TYW was sold with effect from
01.01.2007. The commissions are primarily due to ticket sales for
other airtines. The revenue from aircraft leasing of EUR 13.0m in
the report period relates principally to the leasing of aircraft of
the types A310, B737 and ER|. The Other revenue item includes
revenue from personnel leasing. Revenue from service provider
charges and the corresponding lease of equipment is over-
whelmingly attributable to TRAVIAUSTRIA.

9 » Other income

EURm 2006 2005
Result from disposal of non-current
assets excluding financial assets -32 74
Income from release of provisions 7.7| 505
Income from charges to :
third parties 25 30
Rental income I 36 | 09
Foreign currency gains | 18.3 I -
Damages I 45 I 32
Other income | 30.0[ 213
64.4 92.3

The losses from the sale of tangible assets in 2006 are primarily
attributable to the scrapping of rotables, while the sale of two
Airbus A340-200 and two Canadair RJ, which were also settled in
2006, produced no significant bock income. The book income in
2005 of EUR 7.4m was overwhelmingly the result of the sale of
four MD-87, two MD-83 and wharf facilities and other buildings at
the Technical Base in Schwechat. The reduction in Income from
the release of provisions is primarily the result of the lower
release of the provision for tickets issued but not used in previous
years and other liabilities.

7o
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10 » Expenses for materials and services

Average number of employees

2006 2005
EURm 2006 2005 Austrian Airfines’ 6.849 6,848
Aircraft fuel 530.0] 4543 Tyrolean Airways 1458 1,355
Landing and handling charges 2745 284.0 Slovak Airlines? 147 152
En route charges 1238 126.6 Other group employees 123| 13
Aircraft parts 26.5 25,0 L inel. Lauda Air 8582 8468
Subcentracted aircraft overhauls 89.5 481 2 ingl. Bratislava Technik Center
Travel expenses of crew 337 336
Long-term aircraft lease 19.7 181 .
- The figure of 8,582 employees includes 30 blue-collar employees
Short-term aircraft lease . . . . .
(ground transports, Blocked Space (36 in the previous year). This breakdown includes part-time
Agreements, etc.) 52.7 476 employees on a proporticnate basis of their working hours.
Expenditures on commissions 127.9| 1396
Passenger servicing 1043 978 12 » Depreciation and amortisation
Passenger landing charges 188.4 169.9
Expenditure on reservation systems 53.7 465 EURm 2006 2005
Merchandise for resale 28.1 276 Depreciation intangible assets 8.9[ 106
Other passenger refated expenses 26.6 - 215 Depreciation aircraft 263_91 2156
1,659.4 1,546.2 Depreciation other
! tangible assets 118 195
The increase in the individual items of Expenses for materiﬁls and Total scheduled depreciation 284.6 3057
services results overwhelmingly from the expansion of prodgchon. Impairment 92] 321
with additional price increases in the price of aircraft fuel, passen- 7938 378

ger landing charges and expenditure on reservation systems also
being reported throughout the year. The Aircraft parts item
includes allocation of the valuation allowance for inventories of
EUR 3.8m (preceding year's figure EUR 0.2m). The lower expendi-
ture on commissions is a result of the reduction in the percentage
of commissions granted to travel agencies.

11 » Personnel expenses

EURm 2006 2005
Wages and salaries ! 3744 3519

Severance payments and
payments to an employee

severance fund 615 16.1
Pensions 713 337
Compulsory social expenses 909 853
Other social expenses | 132 151

611.3 502.1

The rise in Personnel expenses is attributable to the increase in
the average number of employees and salary adjustments in line
with the collective agreement. In addition to this, a total of EUR
44.8m was put in reserve for severance payments in the area of
Other non-current liabilities and EUR 36.5m for pensions for
employees who leave the company in the course of the redimen-
sioning of long-haul and accept the relevant offers of severance
payments and pension provisions.

For a breakdown of the depreciation and amortisation and
impairment amounting to EUR 233.8m (EUR 337.8m the previous
year), see the respective entry in Notes (Note 18ff) The reduc-
tion in Depreciation other tangible assets is the result of the
sale of hangar facilities at the Technical Base and other build-
ings in Schwechat as at the end of 2005. The Impairment item
includes EUR 5.0m (EUR 32.1m the previous year) for an aircraft
of the Canadair R) type that, although specified for disposal in
the report period, was used in regular flight operations, and
impairment of the goodwill of Slovak Airlines on the amount
achievable.

|
;;
|
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13 » Other expenses i

EURm 2006 2005
Other costs of premises and plant | 69.4} 584
Insurance | T.lf - 72
Advertising and representation expenses 297 1303
Consultancy costs 10.1 1118
Claims 1.4 ; 05
Losses of receivables 102 ) 24
Postage and telecommunications charges 49 ! 54
Travel expenses of ground staff 6.8 {68
Taxes (excluding taxes on income) | 3.3! " 45
Support materials | 13.3{ 148
Other material usage and purchased services 24.9} ' 225
Foreign currency losses - 28.5
Other expenses 6.2 ' 66

187.3 199.7

The increase in other costs of premises and plant is the rjesult
of the re-rental of hangar facilities and other buildings a: the
Technical Base in Schwechat, which were sold at the end of 2005.
While the foreign currency liabilities and the balance sheet-related
rate valuation as at the balance sheet day 2006 produced a profit
of EUR 19.3m, reported under Other income, the assessment as
at 31122005 led to expenditure of EUR 28.5m, which was
contained in Other expenses. The Other expenses item includes
bank charges, various administrative cost and similar. |
|
|

|

i
14 » Result from associates
The profit from associates of EUR 0.1m in the report period
includes the contributions to the result made by the associates
AirPlus, Gulet Touristik, TUI Austria and Ukraine International
Airlines. For further details of relationships with other associates,
please see Notes 22 and 39.

15 » Financial expenses and income

EURm 2006 2005

Income from other securities and other

long-term financial assets 79 | 80

Other interest and similar income 173 1206

Interest and similar financial expenses -619 -72.6
-42.2 -44.0

The fall in Other interest and similar income results on balance
from the lower average stock of cash and cash equivalents and
securities and the higher results due to the termination of lease
transactions. The decrease in interest and similar financial
expenses is due on balance both to the rise in interest rates as a
result of the change in the composition of foreign currency

liabilities - refinancing of variable interest in foreign currencies
to fixed EUR rates — while the interest-bearing liabilities fell by
EUR 263.8m compared to the preceding year's balance sheet value,

16 » Other financial expenses and income

EURm 2006 2005

Result from other equity interests 04| 0.1

Income from sale of securities

and loans 07 . 32

Result from securities and loans | -81 l 101
-1.0 134

The reduction in the negative result from securities and loans is
primarily because the value of investments held in foreign curren-
cies stopped falling due to the exchange rate, appreciating in the
previous year.

17 » Income taxes

Both incomes taxes paid or owed by the individual companies |

and deferred tax charge (income) are reported as income taxes.

EURm 2006 2005
Deferred tax income | -| 139
Other income tax expenses | 15| -02

15 1.7

For a detailed breakdown of the assets and liabilities on which |

deferred tax income is based, please see Note 26. income from
Other income tax expenses in 2006 is the result of additional tax
payments of corporation tax, while the previous year it included
retrospective tax credits.

The effective income tax credit in the report period is as follows:

EURm 2006 2005 |
Result before taxes | -138.1 | -129.6
Income tax expense (+}/income {-) applying

the Austrian corporate income tax rate of 25% =345 -32.4
Allocation (+)/cancellation {-) of vatuation

allowance tax losses carry forward +435 +438
Effect of tax rates deviating from Austrian

corporate income tax rate -7.2 -93
Other -03] -0.4

Effective tax income {-)/expense (+} +1.5 +1.7

Tax expenses arising from changes in the value of financial
instruments reported directly in shareholders’ equity amount to
EUR 0.2m. The tax expenses of Airest amounted to EUR 0.6m in
2005, and have been balanced in the result from operations held
for sale.

7
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Notes to the Consolidated
- Balance Sheet

18 » Intangible assets

EURm Industrial Goodwill Negative Advance Total
property rights goodwill payments

and similar rights (Badwill}
Acquisition costs and licences
Balance 1.1.2006 806 133 - - ] 939
Additions 6.7 - - - 6.7
Disposals 06 - - - | 06
Reclassifications 0.7 - - - 07
Balance 31.12.2006 874 133 - - 100.7|
Depreciations
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 89 - - - | 89
Impairment - 42 - - | 4.2|
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 723 9.1 - - | 81.4[
Book value 31.12.2006 151 a2 - - 19.3| '
Book value 1.1.2006 16.7 8.4 - - 251]
EURm Industrial Goodwill Negative Advance Total

property rights goodwill payments

and similar rights (Badwill)
Acquisition costs and licences
Balance 1.1.2005 835 91 -16 - 91.0}
Additions 70 42 - | n2
Disposals 9.9 - -16 - 83
Balance 31.12.2005 80.6 133 - - 93.9
Depreciations
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 106 - - - 106
Impairment - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 639 49 - - 68.8
Book vatue 31.12.2005 16.7 84 - - 251
Book value 1.1.2005 213 a2 -16 - | 239|

The estimated useful lives defined in Note 3 were applied in the
case of all intangible assets. Additions refer to the purchase of
rights for the improvement and expansion of information sys-
tems, as well as goodwill from the purchase of Slovak Airlines

(EUR 4.2m) in 2005.

W 80

In the capitalised goodwill, the test for possible impairment
required according to IFRS 3 produced a need for depreciation
at Slovak Airlines of EUR 4.2m in 2006. See Note 3 for further
details of the calculations used in the test. Existing negative
goodwill as at 01.01.2005 of EUR 1.6m was amortised in 2005,
affecting the result.
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19 » Aircraft
EURm ; Aircraft Reserve Advance Total
. engines, payments and
!‘ spare parts assets under
Acquisition costs i and equipment construction
Batarice 1.1.2006 ' 37205 2007 514 | 35726
Additions i 1466 81 202 | 1749
Disposals 2016 78 - 209.4
Reclassifications f a0.7 -18.0 -227 | -
Balarice 31.12.2006 I 3,706.2 183.0 489 39381
Depreciations U
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 1. 246.4 175 - 2639
Impairment i 5.0 - - 50
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ! L2z 90.7 2.0 1.804.9
Book value 31.12.2006 ) 1594.0 92.3 46.9 21232
Book value 1.1.2006 ; 2,102.6 1223 495 | 2,2744|
EURm ‘ Aircraft Reserve Advance Total
f engines, payments and
‘ spare parts assets under
Acquisition costs I and equipment construction
Balance 1.1.2005 ‘ 36829 211.0 918 | 3985.7|
Additions i 2398 12.0 226 2144
Disposals \ 2652 223 - 2875
Reclassifications I 63.0 - -63.0 . -
Balance 31.12.2005 ) ! 37205 200.7 514 39726
Depreciations !
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled i 256.3 18.9 03 ] . 2755
Impairment : 321 - - 321
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 'H 16179 784 19 '1,698.2
Book value 31.12.2005 2,102.6 122.3 49.5 2,214.4
Book value 1.1.2005 2,116.9 1359 89.8 | 2,3426|

A total of EUR 154.7m was spent on the acquisition of aircraft,
reserve engines, rotables and modifications. In the medium-haul
segment, one A319 and one B737-800 were purchased. In adtlition
to this, EUR 70.3m was capitalised from significant aircraft over-
hauls. Additions related to the advance payments for aircraf: and
assets under construction totalling EUR 20.2m relate principally to
items of equipment required for the planned conversion of the
interiors of aircraft in the long-hau! segment. Disposals of aircraft
relate primarily to the sale of two A340-200 and two Canadzir RJ.

Due to the impairment test carried out on the aircraft fleet, there

is no requirement for impairment to a lower recoverable value for

the aircraft employed in the longer term. In detail, calculation is

performed on the basis of so-called Cash Generating Units. Since
L

alt aircraft are used for all traffic streams according to the trans-
ferral concept of the Austrian Airlines Group, the total Group fleet
has been included as a single Unit. An interest rate of 5.0% (5.0%
the previous year) has been set for the purposes of calculation.

For the cash flows of the periods from 2011, which lie outside the |

limits of the calculations of the current corporate plan, the cash
flow for the year 2010 was measured and escalated by 1.75% per

annum. Because the book values of those aircraft and spare parts |

specified for disposal but in regular flight operation until that
time were above the market values minus disposal costs, impair-
ments were recognised amounting to EUR 5.0m (EUR 32.1m the
preceding year). Due to the redimensioning of long-haul, there
was no need for impairment in the aircraft no longer being con-
sidered in the fleet plan.

81 ®
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20 » Other tangible assets i
|
EURm Land and Plant and Fixtures, plant Advance Total
buildings machinery anq office payments and ‘
equipment assets under
Acquisition costs construction
Balance 1.1.2006 84.5 19.3 99.2 48 2073 | |
Additions 17 05 91 34 147 |
Disposals 20 01 16 01 38 |
Reclassifications : 01 - 35 -43 -0.7
Balance 31.12.2006 843 197 1102 38 2180
Depreciations
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 24 10 83 - 117] :
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 53.2 16.9 30.0 - 1601 |
Book value 31.12.2006 311 2.8 20.2 38 57.9
Book value 1.1.2006 ' 330 33 16.1 a8 | s51.2)
|
EURm Laﬁd and Plant and Fixtures, plant Advance Total l
buildings machinery and office payments and
; equipment assets under
Acquisition costs . construction
Balance 1.1.2005 , 2131 178 93.0 6.2 3901
Additions ;34 15 5.9 31 138
Disposals . i 192.0 - 20 22 | 196.2
Reclassifications - - 23 -2.3 -
Balance 31.12.2005 845 19.3 99.2 438 207.8 I
Depreciations
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 89 13 93 - 19.5|
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 515 16.0 831 - 150.6
Book value 31.12.2005 33.0 33 16.1 4.8 57.2
Book value 1.1.2005 136.1 32 17.8 6.2 | 163.3|

Additions in 2006 reported as plant equipment are primarily
attributable to new purchases for the improvement of IT infra-
structure.

Disposals in 2005 essentially relate to the sale of hangar facilities
and other buildings at the Technical Base in Schwechat, which
were |eased back in the course of an operating lease agreement
with an unspecified term.

21 » Leased assets

The item Aircraft and other tangible assets also includes leased
assets that, due to the substance of the lease agreements, are
treated as finance leases although there is no legal ownership
by the Group. At the end of the report period, this included

39 used aircraft - two A340, one A330, four A321, four A320,
seven A319, three B777, three B767, nine B737 two DHB8-300,
one F70 and three ER|. 101 aircraft with a total book value of
EUR 1,931.1m, as well as the deposit payments, are pledged with-
in financing agreements to the benefit of the financing institu-
tions or - in the case of finance leases - represent the proper-
ty of the financing institutions or project companies. Junior liens
(Hyperocha) also serve as a security for credit lines. The total
amount of leased assets, which are attributable to the beneficial
ownership of the Group according to IAS 17 (Accounting for
Leases), is as follows:
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Leased

EURm Leased aircraft

: andreserve  buildings

Acquisition costs engines i
Balance 1.1.2006 1,6875 ;101
Additions/Reclassifications 634.4 Eoo-
Disposals 3308 P
Balance 31.12.2006 19911 {101

Depreciations . ‘
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 140.7 i 02
Accumulated depreciation 7013 34

&
Book value 31.12.2006 1,289.8 i 6T
Book value 1.1.2006 10725 J. 6.9

§
EURm Leased aircraft Leased
and reserve buildings

Acquisition costs engines M
Balance 1.1.2005 939.6 ;101
Additions/Reclassifications 905.2 -
Disposals ‘ 1573 ro-
Balance 31.12.2005 16875 i 101

Depreciations :
Depreciation charge for the year scheduled 105.9 P02
Accumulated depreciation 615.0 Y32
Book value 31.12.2005 10725 ,I 6.9
Book value 1.1.2005 521.2 P71

For further details of leasing obligations, see Note 35.

22 » Investments in associates, securities

and loans ‘
The bock value of investments in associates, which were balanced
at equity, is EUR 12.8m. For further details of the relatlon5h1ps to
associated companies, see Note 39,

The stock of securities primarily includes fixed and variable
interest-rate loans from both domestic and international
issuers. The interest rates on the balance sheet date ranged
between 3.35% and 6.50%. The average effective interes: rate
yield in the report period was 4.99% (3.89% in the previous year).
For securities not listed on the stock exchange, the market value
disclosed by the custodian bank has been recognised. On the
total stock of securities with a book value of EUR 58.3mjas at
31.12.2006 (EUR 149.4m the previous year), EUR 58.3m wss not
freely available and primarily served as additional securltles
within the scope of aircraft financing.

EURm 2006 2005 2006 2005
held-to-maturity available-for-sale

EUR 2.7m was accumulated in interest on securities held-to- |

maturity in the report period.

The following table compares the book and market values of the |

securities that are held to maturity:

EURmMm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005
Baok value 54.6 I ' 92.7;
Market value 54.6 | . 93.1:
Unrealised profit/loss - 0.4

The Other loans item overwhelmingly represents deposit pay-
menits for aircraft financing,

23 » Inventories

Inventories, which total 49.8m, consist of technical commodities
required and purchased for use in servicing the fleet, goods for
inflight sale and in Duty Free shops and other merchandise. Valua-
tion allowances of EUR 25.5m (EUR 21.7m the previous year) were
deducted as at 31.12.2006. Expenses arising from the allocation of
the valuation allowance of EUR 3.8m (EUR 0.2m the previous year}
are reported in Expenses on materials..

EURm : 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Operational supplies and consumables a3 | . 453

Goods for sale and other merchandise 85 | . 122
49.8 579

24 » Trade receivables

Due within one year

EURm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Trade receivables | 1528} 1782

In principle, trade receivables are interest-free and the overwhelm-
ing majority have a term of up to 30 days. The receivables in their
given state as at 31.12.2006 included EUR 13.4m in USD, EUR 4.2m in
DKK, EUR 4.0m in INR, EUR 3.7m in JPY and EUR 3.6m in AUD.

As at 31.12.2006, valuation allowances amounted to EUR 10.5m
(EUR 10.5m the previous year). Trade receivables refer primarily to
agents and credit card companies in Austria and abroad, other
airlines and airmail authorities. The reported book values of the
monetary assets described in these items correspond to their
market values.

8 n

Quoted on stock exchange | 323 62.6 | 37 312 |
Not quoted on stock exchange | 224 | -] 255 |
54.6 92.7 37 56.7

i
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Of the receivables as at 31.12.2006, EUR 62.5m (EUR 50.6m the pre-
vious year) is ceded as securities for a rediscount fi Fnancmg |

25 » Other current assets |

Due within one year ‘

EURm 31.12.2006  31.12.2005
Other accounts receivable 131 ; 442
Prepaid expenses 143 i 201
274 I 64.3
Due after more than one year j
EURm 31.12.2006 31.1_2.2005
Qther accounts receivable I 18.7] | 344
Prepaid expenses ] 12.4] i 398

311 L 742
!

As at 31.12.2006, valuation allowances amounting to EUR 1.7Tm
were made on Other current assets (EUR 1.5m the previous
year}. Other non-current assets also include accrued inf;erest
income of EUR 1.8m (EUR 2.6m the previous year). The rep‘orted
book values of the monetary assets described in these items
correspond to their market values. The Accrued expenseé item
mainly consists of maintenance expenses and rental payments
made in advance.

26 » Deferred tax assets
The deferred tax assets reported in the balance sheet are based on
the following temporary differences between the carrylng
amounts for {FRS financial reporting purposes and the tax base.
The deferred tax assets were reported subject to application of the
25% tax rate valid in Austria as of 01.01.2005. 3\

EURm 31122006  31.12.2005
Tax loss carry forward | 3163 12754
Assets (primarily aircraft) and associated - :

financing liabilities 52.4 11122
Provisions for pension obligations ] 1251 i 191
Provisions for severance payments | 1085} | 1099
Provisions faor anniversary banuses ! 72 1 62
Provisions for additional depreciation 9.7 |-25.6
Other provisions -28.4 L =17
Untaxed reserves 1 —35.8| . (‘{—40.5
Other liabilities ! -149.7 | 4‘;—1?3,5
Other temporary differences =-2.7 I -07
Tax base 383.2 380.8
Deferred tax assets { 95.8 | 95.2

|
The deferred tax on tax loss carry forwards was carried as an asset
insofar as these can probably be charged with future tax-r?lated
income. According to Austrian tax law, no time restrictions exist

| 1] I

with regard to the consumption of tax losses carried forward. Due
to maturity considerations in connection with the duration of the
settlement of future tax-related income, no deferred taxes were
accounted for tax loss carry forwards amounting to EUR 323.3m. No
deferred taxes were accounted for profits of A.L.F, which are not
intended for distribution.

27 » Long-term assets/liablities of disposal group
classified as held for sale

As at 31.12.2006, these essentially result from the respective assets
and debts of TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH and TVW Trav-
el Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co KG, which operated the Duty
Free sales handled by the Austrian Airlines Group at VYienna Airport
until 31.12.2006, which was reported in the Other services segment.
As at 31.12.20086, the assets of this subsidiary including goodwill
acquired amounted to EUR 13.6m, while the debt attributable to the
company was EUR 3.9m. The company generated revenue of EUR
44.2m in the financial year 2006, its total expenses were EUR 38.4m
and it achieved a profit before tax of EUR 9.3m. The companies
being held for sale are not in a relinquished business segment in the
sense of [FRIC 5, as a result of which the income and expenditure in
the relevant items of the Income Statement have been reported
within the framework of the continued business segments. As this
is a limited company, the limited partnership interest has been bal-
anced with the tax-related losses of the limited partner, as a result
of which no income tax expenditure accumulated; as at 31.12.2006,
the company was reporting a balance sheet total of EUR 13.6m. The
business activities of TVW were insignificant for the Group in tems
of revenue and costs. The company was able to increase its revenue
by 75% compared to the previous year due both to the increase in
the numbers of passengers departing from Vienna and the higher
revenue per invoice. TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co KG
was seld by mutual agreement as at 01.01.2007 and is leaving the
scope of consolidation.

Last year, the "Long-term assets/liabilities of disposal group clas-
sified as held for sale” item resulted from the non-current assets of
the subsidiary Airest Restaurant- und Hotelbetriebsgesellschaft
m.b.H.

The Croup acquired the remaining 65% of shares in this company
on 13.05.2005 with the intention of disposing of all its shares. As a
result, this company was reported in the balance sheet as at
31.12.2005 according to the provisions of {FRS 5. The assets of this
subsidiary as at 31.12.2005 including the goodwill acquired
amounted to EUR 42.0m, while the debt attributable to the com-
pany is EUR 18.6m. The company generated revenue of EUR 70.8m
in the financial year 2005, its total expenses were EUR 72.3m and it
achieved a profit before tax of EUR 2.4m. Related income tax
expenses amounted to EUR 0.6m; as at 31.12.2005, the company
reported a balance sheet total of EUR 23.6m. The profit of EUR 9.7m
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resulting from the sale of the company as at 01.01.2006 is report-
ed in the "Result from operations held for sale” item. The total
disposal price was EUR 31.1m and was transferred in full; cash on
hand and at bank of EUR 8.6m was used in the course of the
disposal. ‘

28 » Liquide Mittel ;

EURm : 31122006 31122005
Bank deposits and cash stocks 372| | 40.7
Fixed deposits 478.9| i 801
Total cash on hand and at bank accarding
to Consolidated Balance Sheet 516.1 120.8
Bank deposits and cash stocks in |
investments specified for disposal 6.4 i 86
522.5 “_1.29.4

On the balance sheet date, EUR 14.6m (EUR 5.9m the previous
year) of the stock of cash on hand and at bank reported accord-
ing to the consolidated balance sheet was pledged as securities.

The following: table shows the book and market values of the
securities an current assets as of the balance sheet date: |

EURm , 31122006  31.12.2005

Book value | 516.1] 1208
Market value | 5161] 12038

!
The following is a breakdown of bank deposits by currency:
: F

EURm 31122006  31.12.2005
EUR ' | 466.0| 1033
usD | 36.4 I 36
CHF | 04 .03
JpY ' | 02} P05
Other currencies ] 13.1| 131

516.0° 208

29 » Issued share capital 3‘
On the strength of the resolution of the Extracrdinary General
Meeting of Shareholders held on 02.11.2006, a simplified czpital
reduction was:used to reduce shareholders’ equity by EUR 145.2m,
from its previous level of EUR 247.2m to EUR 102.0m. by lowering
the amount as a propertion of total shareholders’ equity per share
to cover a balance sheet loss otherwise reported in the individual
conclusion prelpared in accordance with the Austrian Commerciat
Code. The authorisation by the Board of Management of 22 May
2006 to increase shareholders’ equity by up to EUR 123.6m by
12.08.2011 at the latest with the issue of up to 17 million unit shares
in exchange for a cash injection was revaked at this General Meet-
ing of Shareholders. :

A resolution was also reached to use an ordinary increase to increase
the reduced shareholders’ equity against a cash payment by up to
EUR 204.0m through the issue of up to 68 million new shares with
profit entitlerment made out in the helder’s name from 01.01.2006 at
the minimurm issue amount of EUR 3.00 per share {proportionate
amount of shareholders’ equity). The Board of Management was
authorised to determine the more detailed conditions of this capital
increase with the consent of the Supervisory Board. The capital
increase went ahead with an issue volume of 51,680,000 shares at an
issue price of EUR 710 per share, and was entered in the company
register at the beginning of December 2006. As a result of these
changes, the total shareholders’ equity of Austrian Airlines AG as at
31.12.2006 is EUR 257.0m, and is divided into 85,680,000 unit shares.

The shares of the company are listed on the Prime Market of the
Vienna Stock Exchange.

In the Ordinary General Meeting of 8 May 2002, authorisation was
given to buy back up to 10% of the issued share capital, subject to
a time restriction of 18 months. In 2002, the authorisation was
used to buy back 5% of the shareholders’ equity. and 1.7 million
shares bought back to put in place a ‘Share Purchase Option Pro-
gramme’ for managers. The repurchase value of EUR 14.8m has
been balanced as part of the reserves.

The net loss for the year is recorded under accumulated results. The
sums gained from the simplified capital reduction and the associat-
ed lowering of the reserves have been reported in the accumulated
results. In accordance with IAS 27 (Consolidated Financial State-
ments and Accounting for Investments in Subsidiaries), minority
interests are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a sep-
arate line item from the shareholders of Austrian Airlines AG.

In accordance with [AS 39, the stock of reserves results from the
valuation on the balance sheet date of the ‘available-for-saie’
securities and the valuation of the cash flow hedges.

30 » Reserves

The composition and development of the reserves are disclosed in
the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. Only the balance
sheet capital of the parent company can be used for the payment
af dividends. Due to the simplified capital reduction, payment of a
dividend of more than 4% of the shareholders’ equity will not be
possible until the end of the financial year 2008 at the earliest.

The capital reserves of EUR 24.7m as at 31.12.2005 were reduced by
EUR 14.5m to EUR 10.2m in the course of the simplified capital reduc-
tion; due to the capital surplus from the ordinary capital increase of
EUR 211.8m, minus the associated issue costs of EUR 18.3m, there was
an increase of EUR 1935m to EUR 203.7m. Restrictions are in place
with regard to any potential distribution for the capital reserves.

855 M




€ Highlights { The Group

€ Departure into the Future| € Top Quality as Success Factor

{ Corporate Management and Centrol

31 » Provisions

Long-term provisions

Arising during

EURm 31.12.2005 Utilised Unused the year 31.12.2006
Provisions for severance payments 1105 ~153 - 141 ] 1093
Provisions for pension obligations C 1313 -161 - 59.5 | 1747
Provisions for anniversary bonuses 2638 -11 - 44 | 301 I
268.6 -325 - 78.0 3141

According to IAS 19 (Employee Benefits), the valuation of provi-
sions for employee benefits is determined under the Projected
Unit Credit Method'. According to this method, the amount
necessary for the accumulation of the full accrual is charged
to the period to which the benefit growth is allocated. In
the course of the redimensioning of the long-haul segment,
employees were offered agreements concerning early termina-
tions of their employment contracts. This relates to pilots, flight
attendants and members of the commercial/technical staff. The
resultant additional severance and pension expenditure of
EUR 81.3m is reported in Personnel expenses as expenses on
pensions {past service costs; reported in Pension provisions at
EUR 36.5m) and Expenses on severance payments (reported in
Other liabilities at EUR 44.8m).

The provisions for social capital show the following development:

Provisions social capital

The provisions have been calculated using the following actuarial
assumptions: '

B Biometric parameters: 'Rechnungsgrundlagen far die Pen-
sionsversicherung AV(Q 1999-P (Angestellite)’

B Fluctuation: for severance payments and anniversary bonuses de-
pendent upon age (flight attendants} between 0.0% and 15.0% and
length of service {commercial/technical employees), between 0.0
and 20.0%:; for pensions depending on age (with flight attendants),
between 0.0 and 15.0% (same parameters the previous year);

B Age of retirement: earliest possible legally pensionable age in
accordance with the 2004 Pension Reform {exception: Collec-
tive Agreement: pensionable age 615 years and ASVG pension
- comparative calculation with 2004 Pension Reform} (as previ-
ous year, earliest possible legally pensionable age in accor-
dance with 2004 Pension Reform);

Pension obligations

Severance payments

Anniversary payments

EURm 2006 2005 2006. 2005 2006 2005
Present value of obligations (funded) as 31.12. (DBO) 423.0 3639 - - [ - ’ -
Present value of obligations (unfunded) as 31.12. (DBO} 15.6 16.7 1146 117.4 301 | 26.8
Recaverable fair value of scheduled assets on 3112 -1950 -181.3 - - - -
Actuarial (losses)/profits not recorded as at 3112, -68.9 -68.0 -5.3 -6.9 I - -
Provisions as at 31.12. 1747 1313 109.3 110.5 301 26.8
Current length of service 116 16.9 86 a7 31 1.0
Past service costs 365 - - - I - -
Interest costs 187 175 55 49 | 13] 13
Expected income from scheduled assets ! -8.8 -8.2 - - - | -
Recorded actuarial loss | 15 15 -1 - - -
Annual expenses 59.5 277 141 146 4.4 23
Provisians as at 1.1. 1313 1208 1105 1024 26.8 256
Curtailment - - I -94 - - | -
Annual expenses 1 59.5 277 I 141 146 l 44 | 23
Payments made | -16.1 -z | -59 | -65 | -1 -1l
Provisions as at 31.12. 1747 1313 1093 110.5 301 26.8
Expected income from scheduted assets 89 8.2 - - 1 - I -
Actuarial (losses)/profits from scheduled assets I -40 -10 - - - -
Actual income from scheduled assets 4.9 7.2 - - - -

| 86
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B Discount rate: fixed at 5.0% per.anrium taking into consideration
the very long average terms (5.0% per annum the previous year});

B Salary increases: betwéen 3.75% and 6.25% per annum, deﬁend-
ing upon membersh:p of collective agreement and level of re-
muneration, whereby increases incorporate estimated rates of
|nﬂat|02 of 1.75% - 2.0% per annum and career assumptions de-
pendent upon the collective agreement (same parameters the
previous year);

B Pension i increase: 0% for commercial/technical employees and

/ 1.75% for infiiaht personnel, 2.0% for retired members of Board

of Management executives and widows (same parameters the
previous year)

The increase in provisions for Unearned transportation revenue |

arising from flight documents sold and not used is attributable to
the increased flight programme compared to the end of the previ-
ous year. The risk in measurement is defined by the scope of usage
of flight services by the customer. The Other provisions item es-
sentially includes provisions for risks arising from other operating
and administrative costs such as advertising, operation and main-
tenance costs and other areas. (see table Short-term provisions)

The scheduled assets in the pension fund were invested as follows
in the report period:

B Pension fund surplus: 5.0% for commerual/techmcal employ- * 31.12.2006  31.12.2005
ees and inflight personnel for employees joining company be- Euro shares | 2641} 138
fore 31.03.2004, 5.5% for inflight employees of Austrian Airlines Non-euro shares | 106} 146
and Lauda Air joining Flight Operations New after 01.04.2004. Euro bonds | 62.2} 716

: Non-euro bonds 0.9 -

Contributory payments of EUR 6.2m (EUR 5.6m the previous “year) Property . 02 -

were made for employees in contribution-based models. Perfar- 100.0 100.0

mance-related pension fund contributicns of EUR 19.9m WIH be-

come due in the financial year 2007, :

The pension fund has developed as follows over the past five )"!ears:

/

Pension obligations

EURm 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Present value of obligations as 31.12. (DBO} r 4384 | 3806 3536 3277 2979

Recoverable fair value of scheduled assets on 3112. £ -195.0 -181.3 -166.9 -142.3 -1225

Actuarial (losses}/profits not recorded as at 31.12. -68.9 -68.0 -65.9 -59.5 -42.0

Provisions as at 31.12. 174.7 1313 120.8 125.9 133.4

Severance payments ;

EURm 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Present value of obligations as 3112. (DBO) 1146 1174 1034 795 B82.0

Recoverable fair-value of scheduled assets on 31.12. - - - - -

Actuarial (losses)/profits not recorded as at 31.12. i 53 -69 -10 01 -6.0

Provisions as at 31.12, 104.3 110.5 102.4 79.6 76.0

Anniversary payments

EURm ; 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Present value of obligations as 31.t2. (DBO} I 301 | 26.8 256 175 14.2

Recoverable fair value of scheduled assets on 31.12. | - | - - - -

Actuarial (losses)/profits not recorded as at 31.12. i - | - - - ~-0.6

Provisions as at 31,12, : 3041 26.8 25.6 17.5 13.6

Short-term prm{isicns i Arising during

EURm ; 31.12.2005 Utilised Unused the year  31.12.2006

Unearned transportation revenue arising from flight documents sold and not yet used 1231 -89.4 -30 1096 | 1403}

Provisions for valuation risks ! : 80 -5.3 -10 - 17}

Provisions for arising from frequent fiyer programmes obligations 15 -13 -0.2 11 1 i 1.1‘

Provisions for plant projectsnot yet charged ; 2.8 -16 ~0.3 35 [ 4.4i

Other provisions 301 -233 -3.2 28.5 I _ 32.1i

f 165.5 -120.9 =77 142.7 179.6
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32 » Interest-bearing liabilities

Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 1

EURm 31.12.2006 31.12:.2005
Bonds issued 373 . 386
Amounts owed to banks 682.9 :| 495.8
Lease liabilities ] 5469 | {7919
1,2671 1,326.3

|

Current interest-bearing liabilities |;
EURmM 31.12.2006 31.12.2005
Amounts owed to banks | 1169 ] 268.2
Lease liabilities | 148.0 | 2013
264.9 14695

The bonds issued consist exclusively of a bond in CHF bearmg
interest of 5 3/4% amounting to CHF 60.0m, which does not feature

a limited term (‘perpetual bond’). i
|

Amounts owed to banks also include rediscounting financing of

EUR 58.1m with Osterreichische Kontrollbank.

0On balance, the reduction in"Amounts owed to banks and Other
liabilities is a result of new crechts taken out in the course of the
acquisition of new aircraft, mlnus the~corresp0ndmg amortisa-
tions. New credits were taken outsin the\report period for the
A319 and one B737 newly |ncorporate€ into the fleet, which were
reported in the accounts at EUR 49.9m as at 31.12.2006.

The effective interest rate yield was 3.81% (3.51% the previbus‘year).

For these liabilities, in accordance with standard, practice in the
industry, aircraft with a book value of EUR 1.931.1m‘(§urz 2,2045m
the previous year), securities with a book value of<EUR 58.2m
{EUR 134.4m the previous year) and cash on deposit with a value
of EUR 146m (EUR 5.9m the previous year) were pledg?d as

securities, | N
kN

The following table contains the terms and conditions of interest-
bearing liabilities, as well as their book values as at 31.12.2006:

usD CHF JPY

EURm i EUR book value
Up to one year i )

of which fixed ;1361 - 9.4 104 155.9

of which variable . "l 836 99 155 - 109.0|
After one year and up to two years H

of which fixed ¢ 1546 05 415 24 199.0

of which variable 11877 127 6.7 - 2071
After two years and up to three years ; ‘

of which fixed I 1103 12 - 2.4 1139
. of which variable i 1113 104 49 - { 126.6}
After three years and up to four years |

of which fixed ! 849 32 - 1.9 100.0

of which variable i o182 - 41 - - 223
After four years and up to five years ) .

of which fixed | 835 239 - - 1074

of which variable I 200 73 39 - 952
More than five years H

of which fixed | 2344 - 373 - N7

of which variable 1192 4.2 0.5 - 239 f

1,243.8 1373 1238 271 1,532.0

m 88 |
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Liabilities in USD are covered by hedging transactions and stocks
of securities and cash on deposit in USD amounting to EUR 154.9m
(EUR 164.7m the previous year).
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33 » Other liabilities .

Other non-current liabilities .
31.12.2005

EURm 31.12.2006
Other liabilities 0] B1
Accrued income 16.0 ‘134
23.0 275
Other current liabilities i
EURm 31122006  31.12.2005
Advances received from customers 43 L 42
Trade accounts payable 1847 1935
Liabilities relating to personnel costs 114.8 , 516
Liabilities relating to other taxes 51 0253
Liabilities relating to social security (A P73
Other liabilities 336 50.7
Accrued income 79 : 151

3679 3541

Trade accounts payable essentially result from flight opera'fions
and from sales commissions not yet charged in Austria” and
abroad. Personnel accounts payable essentially result from provi-
sions for holidays, increased efficiency credits, partial retirement
credits, target achievement bonuses and similar that have not yet
been used; as at 31.12.2006, additional handling obligations of
EUR 44.8m resulting from the redimensioning of long-haul were
also reported in this item.
|
Other liabilities include various liabilities from interest chalrges.
passenger charges, etc. !

:
34 » Cantingencies |
Cuarantees and contingencies amounting to EUR 385.6m relate
primarily to centingencies arising from sale-and-lease-back agree-
ments set up for the scheduled repayment of liabilities and cffset
with the appropriate deposits, as well as guarantees referring to
aircraft financing, the majority of which are reported as liabilities
in the balance sheet. On the basis of the profit and loss transfer
agreement already concluded and the Production Company Con-
cept, the Group parent company bears the capacity and currency
risks of the operating subsidiary companies with immediate eifect.

Contingent liabilities
31.12.2005

EURm 31.12.2006
Guarantees from aircraft financing 3726 2470
Other contingent liabilities 130 'n

385.6 254.1

35 » Other financial obligations

EURm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Order commitments for aircraft

incl. advance payments 3389 2769

Order commitments for other

planned investments 1083 1030

Other 1299 292
5771 4091

The order commitment relates to one aircraft of the type Boeing
777 and essential aircraft overhauls that have been capitalised as
at 31.12.2006; the Other item includes long-term obligations in the
catering field.

Operating Lease Commitments -
Austrian Airlines Group as lessee

EURm 2006 2005
Up to one year 327 455
After one year and up to five years 1123 1591
More than five years 1958 2153

340.8 419.9

The company concluded operating lease agreements as the oper-
ating lessee for two aircraft of the type B767 one aircraft of the
type B737 and one aircraft of the type A330 with terms until 2012,
as well as for hangar facilities and other buildings at the Technical
Base in Schwechat with an unspecified term, and other commercial
machinery and equipment and vehicles with terms of between one
and twenty years. Although the contracts end immediately after

expiry of the contractual term as a rule, tenancy extension options |
exist in some cases. Payments of EUR 19.7m arising from leasing |

relationships were reported in the report period, having an effect
on the result,

Operating Lease Commitments —
Austrian Airlines Group as lessor

EURm 7 2006 2005

Up to one year | 76 107
After one year and up to five years I 114 127
More than five years | 90} 125

28.0 359

The company concluded lease agreements as the lessor for one
aircraft of the type A310, three B737 and three ER). The agreements
had terms of up to one year and featured extension options.
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Finance Lease Commitments - Austrian Airlines Group as Iessee‘
EURmM

Total minimum

2006 2005
Present value of Present value of

minimum lease Total minimum minimum lease

! lease payments payments lease payments payments
Up to one year 1571 1480 | 2438 2331
After one year and up to five years 479.0 3916 | ) 562.3 4841
Mare than five years 222.6 155.3 | 3659 2636
Total minimum lease payments 858.7 694.9 11720 980.8
Less amounts representing finance expenses I -163.8 -1591.2
Present value of minimum lease payments | 694.9 980.8

The company concluded finance lease obligations as the ressee
with terms ranging between one and sixteen years for 3% alrcraft
and one hangar building. The majority of the contracts feature
fixed leasing rates and purchase options at the end of the lease

|
Finance Lease Commitments - Austrian Airlines Group as lessor |
EURm |

term. While the contracts can be extended on the part of the les-
see, they cannot be terminated. The expected minimum lease pay-
ments based on permanent tenancies for aircraft being held by
the Group as a Finance Lease are EUR 20.9m.

2006 . 2005
Present value of Present value of

i Totalof - finance lease Total of finance lease

! investing commitments investing commitments
Up to one year | " 2.7 : 2.5| 30 28
After one year and up to five years f‘L 10.0 8.0 119 9.6
Moare than five years ‘1' 12.4 6.6 16.0 8.1
Total of investing ; 251 171 309 205
Less amounts representing finance expenses J; -8.0 -10.4
Present value of finance lease commitments |

|
|
The company concluded finance lease agreements as the“lessor
for one aircraft of the type B737 and one Dash-8/300 with terms to
2017, the majority of which include fixed lease rates and purchase
options at the end of the term. While the contracts can be e‘;‘<tend-
ed on the part of the lessee, they cannot be terminated. |
i
36 » Hedge policy and financial derivatives |
As a globally active company, the Austrian Airlines Consolidated Group
is routinely exposed to fluctuations in prices, interest ratés and
exchange rates. In recognition of this fact, itis company policy, subject
to precise observation of the existing risk positions and market 'jcrends.
to balance any such risks internally as far as possible; to control net
positions in such a way as to produce the optimum effect on net
income; and to hedge open positions wherever this is deemed Useful.
|

Risk management system ‘
Because it is in the international aviation sectar, the Austrian Air-
lines Group operates in a complex econemic environment in,which
conditions are constantly changing and experiences a rafjge of
types of risk as a result. To ensure that it continues to enjoy long-
term success under such conditions, the company has put |q place
a system of targeted management of risks and opportunitie‘ls.

The strategy of the Austrian Airlines Group is based on the basic
principles of value-oriented corporate management. This heans

I
|
I
m 90 i
1

171 205

that the Group is ready to accept commercial risk as long as the
business activities undertaken and resultant additional income
opportunities can reasonably be expected to produce anincrease in
the value of the company.

The Austrian Airlines Group uses a system of risk management
organised according to a decentralised concept, featuring a single
risk manager and eight decentralised risk coordinators to cover all
divisions of the Board of Management. The central risk manage-
ment office is responsible for the {ongoing) conceptual develop-
ment, implementation and maintenance of the Group-wide risk
management system of the Austrian Airlines Group. A specialist
department in its own right, the risk management office supparts
divisions and subsidiaries in tackling risk management issues.
Essentially this support includes helping those divisions and sub-
sidiaries to prepare and draw up risk definitions and analyses;
deriving and subsequently coordinating risk improvement meas-
ures; and providing feedback on the data used. The risk manage-
ment office is also responsible for writing risk management
reports for the Board of Management.

Every division of the Board of Management and subsidiary has a

risk committee whose responsibility it is to discuss the key risks in

the respective field, check the plausibility of data collection and

evaluation, and to examine the appropriateness of the measures
b

i
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taken to manage the risk. These risk committees consist of r:'nem-
bers of the Group Board of Management, executive management
in the case of subsidiaries, the respective executives and risk coor-
dinator in question.
The risk management of the Austrian Airlines Group is based on a
systematic process of risk identification, evaluation and manage-
ment cavering the entire Group. This process, which takes dlace
twice a year, guarantees that the relevant risks in the Grou2 are
acknowledged and that the measures necessary to overcome them
are scrutinised thoroughly. The risk inventory of the Austrian Air-
lines Group generated as a result of this approach puts the Board of
Management in a position to recognise difficult developments'at an
early stage, before the Group is compromised in any way, and to
implement countermeasures if necessary. :

Foreign currency risk :

" Foreign currency risks are vatued from both the “cash flow at risk
and 'value at risk’ perspectives, and are hedged and controllec with
the objective of planning security and result optimisation. From a
cash flow perspective, the USD position is relatively neutral when
holdings of dollar-dependent currencies in the Group are taken into
account, while in JPY surpluses exist from ticket sales in the Japanese
market. On the assets side, the aircraft fleet represents a book value
of around EUR 2.1 billion denominated in US dollars. According to
IFRS, however, aircraft are not subject to ‘mark to market’ valuation
and therefore ‘cannot be used to offset liabilities in dollars. Due to
the positive exchange rate trend for Austrian Airlines, liabilities held
in Japanese yen were partly reduced. Financing surpluses exist in
CHF, with the aim of using the favourable Swiss interest rate. A call
option was sold on a short-term loan, with the premium received
having been collected upon maturity of the opticn in September
2006. Where necessary, derivative instruments will continue to be
used with first-class partners for the settlement of balances or the
closing of open positions. As at 31.12.2006, hedging transactions
existed using financial derivatives for the coverage of exchanga rate
and interest rate fluctuations. The market values of financial d=riva-
tives as reported in the following tables correspond to the particutar
price at which an independent third party would assume the rights
and/or ebligations from this financial instrument from the Austrian
Airlines Group. The market values were determined on the basis of
the market information available on the balance sheet date. Nega-
tive signs mean a possible obligation in a sale or a realisation of the
item at the financial year-end. The following currency hedging,
reported according to business types, exists in relation to banks and
other financial institutions. :
Currency hedging :

EURmM Terms List price at List price at Proﬂ"t +Y/
: to settlementday 31.12.2006 loss (-)

USsD 9,2m; Forward ,
exchange purchase 23.11.2007 6.7 6.9 i 102

;: +0.2

Currency hedging |

EURm Terms Listpriceat List price at Profit (+)/
to settlementday 31.12.2005  loss(-)

USD 118,5m; Forward

exchange purchase 23.11.2007 96.6 99.3 +27 |
JPY 6.2bn; Forward - |
exchange purchase 29.9.2006 443 453 +1.0 |
437 1
FX Swaps
EURm Terms Listpriceat List price at Profit (+)/
to settlementday 31.12.2006  loss(-)
USD 70.0m FX swap 14.3.2007 52.6 529 +0.3
USD 270.4m FX swap 6.7.2015 2053 1931 -12.2
251.9 246.0 -119 |
FX Swaps
EURm Terms List price at List price at Profit (+)/
to settlementday 31.12.2005 loss {-)
USD 70,0m FX swap 14.6.2006 83.0 8318 +0.8
USD 270.4m FX swap 20.9.2006 57.8 575 -03
140.8 141.3 +0.5

Fair Value valuation was used to the effect that banks performed
valuation on the basis of recognised valuation modeis.

Ten currency swaps {foreign currency hedging at fixed agreed
exchange rates) exist in the area of swap currency hedging. For
further details, see the sections ‘Effects of valuation of Cash Flow
Hedges' and ‘Effects of vafuation of Fair Value Hedges'.

Interest rate risk

The programme to reduce interest rate risks was rigorously contin-
ued in 2006. At the end of 2006, the proportion of financing cov-
ered by fixed interest rates was around 61.4% (53.0% last year). As
a result, the risks to the Group from fluctuations in interest rates
have been suitably reduced.

New financing is principally concluded in EUR at fixed rates of
interest; at the same time, hedging transactions amounting to
approximately EUR 177.6m are in place that are counted as a
EUR liability with fixed interest for the Group. Similarly, subsequent
financing is converted into EUR with fixed interest rates, where
the market allows. See Note 32 for details of the maturities of
fixed-interest and variable interest-bearing liabilities. f

Interest rate change risks

Change in expenses at +/- 0.1%

interest rate change in EUR (000) 2006 2005
£UR 2114 | 1507
UsD 13 | 847
CHF | 201 | 57,

91 N
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Price risk
The price risks associated with the fuel price trend - fuel exbendi-
ture represents around 19.3% (17.5% the preceding year) of opérating
expenses - were partially hedged in 2004 by means of ﬁxecj price
transactions (‘swaps’) on the basis of the crude oil price and fixed
price transactions with a limited payout (‘capped swaps). This
approach increases planning security and, although it canndt pro-
vide protection against persistent, long-term price increases, helped
to absorb the impact of the sharp increase in oil prices in 2Q04. In
such cases, there remains no alternative to coverage other th%m the
appropriate increases in flight revenues and the temporary|intro-
duction of fuel surcharges. In the past, sharp increases in thé; price
of oil were normally triggered by brief crises and tended to be rela-
tively short-term in nature. The increase in the cost of kemséne in
the report period once again deviated from the expectations offore-
casters, once again rising significantly abave the figure for the pre-
ceding year. The average jet fuel price, which stood at USD 562 per
ton in 2005, rose to an average of USD 645 per ton in 200&:3. also
exceeding the internal planning assumptions of the Austrian Airlines
Group of USD 615 per ton. The trend was irregular over the year asa
whole: while the kerosene price rose continually in the first half -year
of 2006, reaching a new record level of more than USD 750 per ton
at the beginning of the third quarter, September saw the price fall
back to its level at the beginning of the year. Towards the end of the
year, the kerosene price eventually stood at around USD 600 per ton.
. ]

The fuel hedging policy of the Austrian Airlines Group is based on
a comprehensive assessment of all risks involved. The Groufj pur-
sues a strategy of risk minimisation. In the past. the challéfnging
financial situation of the company has left no room for manq'euvre
in which to react to short-term price spikes. Following the |l:ecent
successful capital increase, however, the Group is now considering
taking measures to protect against the risk of price change v W|thm
a defined hedging framework. :

Risk of non-payment - .;

In the majority of cases, the sale of passage and freight « docu-
ments is handled via agencies within the sphere of |nf|uence of
IATA, These agencies are overwhelmingly connected with coun-
try-specific clearing systems for the settlement of passage or
freight sales. Individual agents are checked by the partlcular
clearing houses. The credit risk from sales agents is relatlvellly low
due to their dispersion worldwide. Unless the agreementsiupon
which a payment is based explicitly state otherwise, claiml:s and
fiabilities arising between the airlines are usually settled' on a
bilateral basis or via a clearing house of the International Air
Transport Association (1ATA}. Settlement takes place prinéipally
through the balancing of all receivables and liabilities at régular
monthly intervals, which contributes to a significant reduction in
the risk of non-payment and in the past stood at less than EUR
20m in a single month at the biggest partners. The maximum

| i
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credit risk, albeit an unlikely one, includes trade receivables,

- securities and loans, as well as other current assets at the level

of their book value. In individual cases, a separate security may be
required in the particular payment agreement for other transac-
tions, securities may be required or credit information/refer-
ences obtained. Historical data from the business relationship up
to that point, particularly in relation to payment behaviour, may
be used in an effort to avoid non-payment. Recognisable risks
are accounted for by valuation adjustments on receivables.

The credit risk from investments and derivative financial instruments
arises from the danger of non-payment by a contractual partner,
Since the transactions are concluded with contracting parties of the
highest possible credit rating, the actual risk of non-payment is
extremely low. Loans to contracting parties of less certain credit rat-
ing are only made if offset by assessable strategic advantages corre-
sponding to the non-payment risk, or if securities are provided.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity in the Group is protected on the cne hand by appropri-
ate liquidity planning and on the other through the financing
structure, high financial stocks and sufficient short-term credit
facilities. Around 80% of interest-bearing liabilities have a due
date of more than one year. As at 31.12.2006, liquid funds in the
broader sense, consisting of securities on assets, bank deposits
and cash stocks, totalled approximately EUR 574.4m, of which
EUR 5015m was freely available. As a result of suitable invest-
ment strategies, only costs at a justifiable level can be allocated
to the holding of liquidity. As at 31.12.2006, the agreed credit
lines were almost entirely exhausted.

Concrete financing measures were already being prepared as at
the balance sheet date for the aircraft deliveries due in 2007, to
ensure that these investments could also be financed in the long
term, Despite the investment additions of EUR 189.6m, which also
include expenses for capitalised major repairs amounting to EUR
70.3m, and despite the negative result in 2006, interest-bearing
liabilities fell by EUR 263.8m compared to the previous year.

Effects of valuation of Cash Flow Hedges

Future payment streams as a result of financial liabilities and futu-
re rental obligations from operating lease commitments are hed-
ged against the risk of change in the interest rate and against cur-
rency risk. Only swaps concluded with international banks of first-
class creditworthiness are used for this purpose. The swaps repre-
sent all OTC transactions. The hedging transactions extend over
terms ranging from one year to nine years.

The Group heclds nine USD interest rate swaps, two |PY interest rate
swaps and one CHF interest rate swap for the purpose of risk
reduction from market rate behaviour.

|
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Interest rate swaps

out of USD out of |PY’ out of CHF
EURm 31.12.2006 31.12.2005  31.12.2006 31122005  31.12.2006  31.12.2005
Up to one year { I 22 374 104 a1 | 31 38
After one year and up to five years | 1247 106.6 16.8 307 l 37 76
More than five years | 534 536 | - - _ _
205.3 197.6 27.2 348 74 1.4
The market valuation of the swaps as at 31.12,.2006 was EUR 16§n Swaps
. i EURm . Currency swaps Interest rate swaps
The Group manages four forward transactions for the purpose of 31.12.2006 31122005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005
foreign currency hedging in the area of current aircraft leasing. Up to one year | - - - 35
: After one year and
I up to five years - 23.7 - -
Forward transactions i
: More than five years - -1 - -
EURm out of [PY outof USD | 237 5
31122006 31122005 31.12.2006 31122005 - - -
Up to one year - a3 | 6.7 68 L
Embedded derivatives
After one year and . N . . .
up to five years - - - ' 7 In some financing, derivatives were incorporated into non-deriva-
Mare than five years _ _ -} ': _ tive basic contracts. In accordance with the provisions of IAS 39,
— 233 6.7 135 these derivatives are classified as ‘embedded derivatives’ and val-

The market valuation of these forward exchanges as at 31.12.2006
was EUR 0.2m. '

In accordance with tAS 39, financial derivatives used to hedge the
risks are reported in the balance subject to the Hedge Accaunt-
ing regulations. In the area of Cash Flow Hedging, hedging trans-
actions are valued at the Fair Value and the changes in value
reported against the preceding period in the Cash Flow Hedge
reserve (shareholders' equity) with no effect on profit. As at
31.12.2006, the value by which the shareholders’ equity increased
was EUR 1.8m. Proportional changes in volume or revaluations
are then reported in or cancelled from the accounts on the bal-
ance sheet dates. EUR 28.9 (000) was rebooked from the Cash
Flow Hedge reserve into the periodic result in the report period.

Effects of valuation of Fair Value Hedges

A liability bearing a fixed rate of interest is hedged against the Fair
Value change by means of a swap. The only such swap used for this
purpose was one concluded with an international bank of first-
class creditworthiness. The swap represents an OTC transaction.
Both basic and hedging transactions were valued at the Fair \."alue
and the change in value reported against the preceding period via
the Income Statement, having an effect on the result.

The Group operates two currency swaps and one interest rate swap
for the purpose of market value stabilisation and comparability of
ongoing payments.

ued with the basic contract on which they are based.

USD Embedded Derivatives

EURm 31122006  31.12.2005
Up to one year | 143 165
After one year and up to five years 1115 519
Mare than five years -1 825

125.8 156.9

Effectiveness measurement

The Group regularly measured the effectiveness of all its hedging
transactions. Effectiveness was demonstrated in accordance with
IAS 39 throughout the financial year 2006.

Other derivatives
The Group holds ten foreign currency swaps for the purpose of
reducing the risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

FX Swaps

EURmM out of USD ' out of CHF
31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Up to one year 798} 830 - 578

After one year and I

up to five years : 1247 - - -

More than five years |’ 53.4E - —I -

2579 83.0 - 518

The market value of the currency swaps as at 31.12.2006 was
EUR -11.9m.

3 n
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37 » Consolidated cash flow statement

The Cash Flow Statement of the Austrian Airlines Group is pre-
sented according to the indirect method. The Group’s financial
resources (for details of the figures involved, refer to Note 28)
include cash, cheques and deposits with banks held as current
assets with a maturity in general of less than three months. The
effects of the change in the scope of consolidation are thereby
eliminated and presented as a separate item. Financial income is
presented as part of the investment activity. The interest paid is
charged to financing activity. .

The net cash flow from operating activity increased from
EUR 259.8m to EUR 360.2 despite the increase in the loss before
tax, primarily due to improvements in working capital; a stronger
increase in provisions compared to the previous year and a reduc-
tion in receivables also played a particularly important role.

The net cash flow from investment activities, at EUR -2.0m, was
above the figure for the previous year of EUR 81.2m. On balance,
this trend is based on the fact that investments in 2006 - first and
foremost from the delivery of one Airbus A319 and one Boeing
B737-800, as well as capitalised essential aircraft overhauls -
totalled EUR 194.7m, lower than the figure for the preceding year
(EUR 293.4m, essentially from the purchase of three Airbus A319,
two Boeing 737-800, two Dash-8/400 and downpayments and cap-
italised essential aircraft overhauls), with receipts of EUR 144.3m
from the sale of securities, other loans and equity interests also
above the figure for the previous of EUR 81.4m; on the other hand,
receipts from the sale of tangible and intangible assets in 2006,
which came to EUR 75.6m and essentially originated in the sale of
two Airbus A340, were lower than the figure for the previous year
t

of EUR 131.0m, which came from the sale of the hangar. EUR 20.9m
was reported in expenditure from the purchase of subsidiaries
minus the cash and cash equivalents acquired in 2005. The interest
earned was EUR 15.3m, while the comparable figure for the previ-
ous year was EUR 28.3m. EUR 1.2m was invested in the report peri-
od that only became payable after the balance sheet date.

The net cash flow from financing activities totalled EUR 17.8m,
while an outflow of EUR 97.3m was reported in the previous
year; on balance, this trend is based on the fact that there
was an inflow of EUR 348.6m from the capital increase, minus
the associated costs, in the report period; offsetting this, the
incorporation of funds in the course of aircraft deliveries, at
EUR 169.9m, was lower than the previous year (EUR 251.1m),
while the return of credits, at EUR 433.7m, also produced a higher
outflow of funds than last year (EUR 276.1m). Interest paid in
2006 reached EUR 67.0m (EUR 72.3m in 2005).

On balance, the change in cash on hand and at bank, taking
exchange rate differentials into account, produced an increase of
EUR 395.3m to EUR 516.1m in 2006; an increase of EUR 52.8m to
EUR 120.8m was reported the previous year.

38 » Segment reporting

Inter-Group services are charged on the basis of allocated costs
without a mark-up. In light of the restructuring of the Group, new
limitations and allocations in segment calculation may become
necessary in future.

The primary reporting format by strategic business segment for
the financial year 2006 is as follows:

EURm Scheduled Charter Complementary Consolidation Tota!
services

External sales 21571 261.7 1344 - I 2,593.2[
Intercompany sales 113 35 162.4 -2712 - }
Revenue 2,308.4 265.2 296.8 -2712 2593.2
Other income 58.8 70 3.8 - 69.6
Operating revenue 2.3672 2722 3006 -277.2 1 2662.8
Operating expenses 24501 282.8 296.1 -2772 2,751.8
EBITDAR® 2408 305 59 - 2712
Result from operating activities (EBIT}

before associates -829 -10.6 45 - ~-89.0
Assets 2,695.6 88 1,358.2 -8539 3,208.7
Liabilities - 19555 4.6 1.009.7 -5459 2.423.9!
Segment investments 1204 01 742 - 1947}
Depreciation 1993 0.2 851 - 284.6 [
Impairment 83 08 - - 9.2 f
Other non-cash inceme 6.7 - - - 6.7]

1 Result from operating activities (EBIT) before associates, befere depreciation and rentals
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Total expenditure on impairments in the report period was EUR 4.2m
on goodwill and EUR 5.0m on aircraft specified for sale (EUR 32.1m the
previous year), which was allocated on a proportionate basis to the
scheduled services and charter segments. :
The primary reporting format by strategic business segment fcr the
financial year 2005 is as follows:

Total ‘

EURm Scheduled Charter Complementary Consclidation
services f
External sales 19984 2621 1324 - | 23929 ‘
Intercompany sales 106.2 23 1240 -232.5 | -1l
Revenue £,104.6 2644 256.4 -2325 | 23929
Other income 77 105 47 - | ~ o 929p|
Operating revenue 21823 27149 #61.1 -2325 I 2.485.8| ;
Operating expenses 22721 2899 256.3 -2325 [ 2,585.8]
EBITDAR! 2549 418 6.8 - ] 3035)
Result from operating activities (EBIT) :
before associates i-89.8 -15.0 4.8 - -100.0
Assets 2.575.1 365 11114 -5237 | 31993]
Liabilities 2.079.8 21 986.1 -434.3 1 26337
Segment investments 134.4 01 158.9 - | 2934
Depreciation L2532 01 524 - I 305.7
Impairment . o321 - - - | 321
Other non-cash income . i 448 06 01 - | 455]
1 Result from operating activities (EBIT) before assaciates, before depreciation and r:nlal:: !
!
The secandary reporting format of revenue by strategic geographical i
segment (destinations) is as follows: '
EURm : Scheduled Charter Scheduled Charter
2006 2006 2005 2005
Austria ! 639 02} 586 02!
Switzerland | 774 03 688 02|
Germany | 2630 08 2465 17 |
Scandinavia 1152 14 86.8 19 |
Other Western Europe 236.7 165 229.0 16.3 |
Southern and South-Eastern Europe . 198.8 154.2 1846 1219 |
Central Europe ; 261.4 6.0 2246 73 |
Middle East \ 1539 624 | 1380 660 |
Africa ' | 44 04 02 74 |
Asia/Oceania ! | 626.6 a7 579.4 159 |
North America | 1958 1438 1819 233 |
; 2,1971 261.7 1,998.4 262.1 |
As the assets-can be allocated almost entirely to Austria, a regional :
breakdown has not been used. ‘
%5 H
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39 » Related party transactions ‘i

EURm Sales to Purchases fi'om Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
: related parties related parties related parties related parties
Associate . 112 1-12 3112 3112
Gulet Touristik 12006 981 -01 0.8 -01
; 2005 99,0 ) -06 - -4.4
TUl-Austria 1 2006 - - - -
12005 - - - -
LAirPlus” Air Travel Card } 2006 33 =85 0.8 -0.6
2005 29 -6.2 07 -13
Ukraine International Airlines 1 2006 37 -2.2 02 . -
1 2005 27 ~15 - -12

Related party transactions i
GULET Touristik GmbH & Co KG was unable to achieve its C(;)rpo-
rate goals due to the difficult market conditions (a collapse in
demand in one if its main markets, Turkey, particularly at Magic
Life). The company continues to be Lauda Air's key client i |r| the
charter segment. Revenue of EUR 373.3m (EUR 389.6m the prew-
ous year) and a result of EUR -6.8m were generated in 2006; the
company's balance sheet total reached .EUR 23.7m and debts
amounted to EUR 24.2m as at 31.12.2006. Gulet employed an
average of 200 people in the report period. i

5|
Despite the difficult environment, TUI-Austria Reiseveraﬁstal-
tungs GmbH & Co KG exceeded its budgeted figures. In the finan-
cial year 2006, the company generated revenue of EUR 116.7m
{EUR 109.1m the previous year) and a result of EUR 1.4m:; the bal-
ance sheet total reached EUR 36.1m, and debts ran to EUR 32 9m
as at 31.12.2006. An average of 50 people were employed at the
company over the report period. . .|

i
"AirPlus’ Air Travel Card Vertriebsgesellschaft m.b.H. - the Austri-
an credit card specialist in company and credit cards — was able
to continue building on its position as a specialist and market
leader in travel management and card-based billing systems‘wmh

its product portfolio of Diners Club, UATP and VISA. While the

.number of cards issued grew by 8.6%, the company succeedéd in

increasing its billing revenue by over 12.3% an the precedlng year
All areas - the core segment of corporate clients, the ‘road
account and private clients - contributed double-digit growth
rates. Revenue of EUR 25.2m (EUR 23.4m the previous year) and a
result of EUR 1.3m, the same as the year before, were generated
in 2006; the balance sheet total reached EUR 100.0m and debts
amounted to EUR 90.8m as at 31.12.2006. The company employed
an average of 78 people in the report period. |

|
m % !
I

In the financial year 2006, Ukraine International Airlines (UIA)
carried approximately 1,000,000 passengers on scheduled and
charter services using its eleven B737 aircraft. UIA primarily con-
nects Kiev with the key cities of Western Europe - Amsterdam,
Barcelona, Berlin, Brussels, Frankfurt, Helsinki, Lisbon, London,
Madrid, Milan, Paris, Rome, Vienna and Zurich - as well as Kuwait
and Dubai. In the charter segment, the company operates flights
in particular to destinations in Spain, ltaly and Egypt. In Ukraine
itself, UIA provides services to the cities of Danetsk, L'viv. Odessa
und Simferopol. The company plans to expand its fleet and route
network in the financial year 2007. The company generated pro-
visional revenue of EUR 151.9m (EUR 129.8m the previous year)
and a provisional profit of EUR 0.4m in 2006; the provisional bal-
ance sheet total reached EUR 52.3rm (EUR 53.7 the previous year}
and provisional debts amounted to EUR 27.0m as at 31.12.2006
(EUR 25.2m the previous year). The company employed an average
of 1,060 people in the report period. An aircraft of the type Boe-
ing 737 is being leased to UIA by means of a finance lease contract.

Proportionate losses of EUR 2.0m at companies balanced at equi-
ty have not been reported, as the equity interest book value is
already depreciated to ‘zero’ in the Group.

Transactions with related persons

The fixed and perfarmance-related components of the remuneration
of the three current members of the Board of Management of
Austrian Airlines AG and of Vagn Sgrensen, the former Board
of Management member who retired from office in 2006, are
as follows (due to the result situation in 2006, our provisienal
calculation show a 38% reduction in the total possible earnings of
the board of management in 2006. This means the performance-
related proportion with a payment point of 2007 is just 24%, rather
than the possible 100%): -
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2006 2005

performance- performance-
EUR (000) " fixed® related®  31.12.2006 fixed* related’ 31122006

Alfred Otsch* 3340 - 3340 - - -

Vagn Saerensen* 5836 2815 8711 559.0 1676 726.6
Josef Burger 1 " 346.3 939 440.2 3094 1086 418.0
Thomas Kleibl | 379.4 1023 4817 336.0 1179 4539
Walter Bock* | - - -1 324.0 1543 478.3
16433 4837 21270 1,528.4 548.4 2,076.8

1 inctudes benefits in kind and pension fund contributions

2 Relates to performance-related remuneration of the previous year 4 Retired from the Baard of Management in 2006
3 Relates to the period 1.4.2006-31.12.2006 5 Retired from the Board of Management in 2005

Of this figqure, EUR 81.8 (000) was assigned to pension fund payrents
(FUR 119.4 (000} in the previous year). In addition to this, EUR 136.0
(000} was assigned to pension provisions for the governing merabers
of the Board of Management (EUR 305.1 (000} the previous year).

For an explanation of the Stock Option Plan and the number of aptions
granted to the members of the Board of Management, see Note 41.

At the balance sheet date, the members of the Board of Ma€1age-
ment held the following stocks of shares: |

Board of Management 31.12.2006 31.12.2005
Alfred Gtsch | 28540, -
Vagn Serensen’ 16,195, 16,195
|osef Burger : 18,862 8,862
Thamas Kleibl 23786, 13786
Wialter Bock? ' - "8,862

Total owned shares 87783 ' i47’,7’(!05

1 Retired from the Board of Management in 2006 : [
2 Retired from the Board of Management in 2005, therefore no indication

s i
EUR 962.4 (000) (EUR 995.8 (000) the previous year) was paid outin
pension cbligations to former members of the Board of Manage-
ment and their surviving dependants. Members of the Supervisory
Board received attendance fees and compensation for expenses
totalling EUR 140.5 (000) (EUR 1355 {000) the previous year). .

40 » Long-term contractual relationships

Star Alliance

The principles of cooperation in the Star Alliance with regard to
objectives, brand usage and mutual projects are documented in a
‘Memorandum of Intent’. Details of the cooperation are regulated by
bilateral framework agreements with the individual members of thr
Star Alliance. These agreements have terms of up to ten years and
regulate the particularly relevant cooperation projects, i.e. on the
network, frequent flyer programme, etc. A joint venture is also in
place with Lufthansa covering traffic between Austria and Germany.

DO&CO :
The framework agreement concluded by Lauda Air with DO&CO
Partyservice und Catering AG, to exclusively supply aircraft with

inflight catering and other supplementary services, provides for
first right of termination for the Austrian Airlines Group effective
as of 31.12.2009. According to the contract, the minirmum annual
sales volume must be 865,000 meals, producing minimum revenue
of approxiri'lately EUR 7.3m. A penaity of EUR 1.5m is to be paid
should these figures not be reached. The current purchase volume
amounts to approximately EUR 27.4m per annum.

41 » Stock Option Plan and stocks of shares

The key points of the Stock Option Plan introduced before

0711.2002 are as follows:

B Those entitled to participate in the Stock Option Plan are the
members of the Board of Management of Austrian Airlines, its
Divisional Managers, Departmental Managers reporting di-
rectly to a member of the Board of Management and the
Managing Directors or Chief Executive Officers of Lauda Air
and Tyrolean,

M The prerequisite for participation is an own investment by the -
above-mentioned options holders, that is the purchase of |
shares in the company. '

B The options to be granted are calculated as follows: the own
investment amount is divided by the average closing price of
the Austrian Airlines share on the Yienna Stock Exchange in
the month of October 2001 on a euro basis. For each share de-
termined in this way, the option holders receive 12 options. The
option exercise price is the average exercise price of the Aus- |
trian Airlines share in the month of October 2001 {EUR 7.02).

B The prerequisites for the exercise of the options are an increase i
of 50% in the share price at the time of exercise compared to |
the average closing price of the Austrian Airlines share on the !

Vienna Stock Exchange in the month of October 2001 (option ! .

exercise price), and the achievement of pasitive ‘Cash Value |

Added’ (until February 2003, ‘Economic Value Added’) as de-
fined by a ratio of 0JAG. ' '

B The participants can choose whether to exercise their options .
in the form of shares or a cash payment. i

B The options can be exercised after a qualifying period of 2 years, "
and must be exercised within 4 years. i

I

i

M The conditions for exercising the options were not met in 2006;
no options were exercised, and no options expired.
# The number of options granted is divided up as follows:
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Board of Management 31.12.2006 3112.2005 2006 2005
Alfred Otsch ] -| Po- Net result for the year attributable to
Vagn Sprensen’ ] 170940 } 170,940 shareholders of Austrian Airlines AG in EURm -1301 -130.7
Josef Burger I 119664 l 119664 Weighted average number of ordinary
- - shares outstanding during the period 36,606,667 32,300,000
Thomas Kleibl | 119664 119664 , :
Walter Back? | 1 664] i19664 Earnings per share in EUR [ -355 | -4.05 ‘
alter Boc , , .
e rm—— o - Diluted number of shares 38,306,667 | 34,000,000
ota Management 1,932 29,932 - - ;
Qard of Manas Diluted earnings per share in EUR’ -355 I -4,05
Total management’ 917828 952,016
~ 1 Due to the loss reported for the year, the diluted eamings per share corresponds
Total options granted 1,447760 1481948 1o the erings per share \

1 Retired from the Board of Management in 2006
2 Retired from the Board of Management in 2005
3 34 people in 2006 |

42 » Supervisory Board and
Board of Management w
The members of the Board of Management and the Superwsory

Board in the report period were as follows: !

Board of Management -
Alfred Otsch - Chief Executive Officer (CEQ since 01.05. 2006)'
Vagn Sarensen - Chief Executive Officer {CEO until 30.04. 2006)
Josef Burger - Chief Commercial Officer (CCO} . :
Thomas Kleibl - Chief Financial Officer (CFO) X

Supervisory Board )
Peter Michaelis, Chairman (since 30.06.2006) "
Herbert Koch, First Deputy Chairman }
Rainer Wieltsch, Second Deputy Chairman I
(Chairman until 30.06.2006)
Alfred Otsch, Second Deputy Chairman (until 28.2.2006) |
Alain D. Bandle !
Erhard Schaschl

Walter Knirsch (since 22.05.2006)
Robert Blichelhofer (since 22.05.2006) :
Carl Michel (since 22.05.2006) ‘ 1}
Martine Dornier-Tiefenthaler (untif 22.05.2006) i
Johann Zwettler (untif 22.05.2006) i
Walter Rothensteiner (until 22.05.2006) ;

Delegated by the Works Council: i
Alfred Junghans i
Thomas Haringer (since 11.01.2006) |
Wolfgang Hable !|
Michael Eder

Franz Pennauer (from 11.01.2006 until 22.05.2006) :
Gabriele Millmann (unti 11.01.2006) !
Franz Marsak (until 11.01.2006) ?

43 » Earnings per share, proposed |
allocation of profit !
Earnings per share are determined as the quotient from the net
result for the period and the weighted average number of ordnnary
shares outstanding during the financial year. I

When calculating the weighted average number of shares, both
the initial stock for an entire year and the volume of 51,680,000
shares newly issued during the capital increase, weighted with one
manth, were included. There were no other shares or instruments
outstanding at 31.12.2006 and at 31.12.2005 which could have a
potential dilutive effect on the earnings per share in the future.
In accordance with the provisions of the Austrian Stock Corpora-
tion Act, the individual account set up according te the accounting
principles of Austrian Airlines Osterreichische Luftverkehrs-
Aktiengesellschaft as at 31.12.2006 forms the basis for the divident
payment. These financial statements show & balance sheet loss, A
dividend payment is therefore not possible.

44 » Subsequent events after the balance sheet date
The contractual transfer to the purchaser of TVW Travel Value Wien
Betriebs GmbH & Co KG, previously responsible for handling the
Duty Free sales of the Austrian Airlines Group at the airport, took
place with effect from 01.01.2007; as 'a result, the company has
now left the scope of consolidation of the company.

The social partners reached agreement at the beginning of Febru-
ary 2007 over a social plan for commercial/technical employees
during the redimensioning of the long-haul segment.

A Boeing 777 was delivered for operation with Austrian Airlines in
January 2007,

Due to the dissatisfactory capital situation at Slovak Airlines and the
failure of the co-owner of the company to meet its contractual obli-
gations, it has not so far been possible to restructure this subsidiary.
Slovak Airlines has begun to examine the legal steps that may be nec-
essary. The Austrian Airlines Group took appropriate preventative
measures to counter the situation, and has repatriated two aircraft
leased to Slovak Airlines in order to safeguard Group property.

Vienna, 2 February 2007

Board of Management

W o

Alfred Otsch Josef Burger Thomas Kleibl
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Report of the

Supervisory Board 2006

The year 20086 has been an extremely dynamic one for the Austri-
an Airlines Group. First of all, it has succesfully carried out a capi-
tal increase of around EUR 367 million in an extremely challenging
market envircnment. The positive feedback received from
investors during the preliminary presentations shaw that the spe-
cialisation strategy of the Austrian Airlines Group is taking it in the
right direction,

Other than the capital increase, the crucial issues requiring the
consultative and decision-making skills of the Supervisory Board
in the financial year 2006 have been the launch of extensive
restructuring and organisational measures at the company, These
primarily affect the cutting of lass-making routes in the long-haul
segment and a consistent arientation to market requirements.

The past financia! year, therefore, needs to be viewed in the light
of these ‘milestones’. Although the company shows a loss for the
year as a whole ~ due above all to the high costs of restructuring
and reorganisation — the measures introduced should ‘create a
mood of positive change and the foundation of a profitable
future. Working together with a competent Board of Manage-
ment, motivated employees will contribute to the achievement of
this objective.

In the past financial year, the Supervisory Board has discharged its
responsibilities with commitment and competence, and support-
ed the Board of Management in the fulfilment of its difficult tasks.
The Supervisory Board held a total of six meetings and convened
five times in committee in 2006. it discussed the management and
business trend of the company, dealt with its planning issues,
received reports from the Board of Management and passed the
respective resolutions where necessary. Average attendance at
the meetings of the Supervisory Board was 34%.

| 100

In this manner, the management af the company was kept under
ongoing review.

The financial statements of Austrian Airlines AG and consolidated
financial statements as drawn up by the Board of Managerment to
31 December 2006 have been audited by the appointed auditors,
Ernst & Young, and issued with an unqualified audit opinien. The
Management Report is in line with the financial statements and
consolidated financial statements.

The Supervisory Board approves the Annual Report 2006, which is
therefore audited in accordance with Section 125, Clause 2 of the
Austrian Stock Corporation Act, and declares that it approves the
consolidated accounts and Group Management Report drawn up
in accordance with Section 246 and in cannection with Section
245a of the Commercial Code, whereby said documents are
deemed to be officially approved.

The Supervisary Board would like to express its gratitude to all
employees of the Group in recognition of the work done in the
past financial year. it would also like to thank all our customers,
suppliers and above all shareholders for their loyalty throughout
the year.

Vienna, March 2007

Peter Michaelis m.p.
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Equity Interests

At the balance sheet date, Austrian Airlines Osterreichische Luftverkehrs-AG held a minimum equity interest
of 20% in the following companies, either directly or through AUA Beteiligungen Gesellschaft m.b.H.:

. Austrian Airlines Shareholders Net profit/net Method of

: holding equity plus  loss for the year inclusion in

' in% untaxed reserves in EUR {000) consolidated
Company name an headquarters : in EUR (000) accounts
AUA Beteiligungen Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna g 100 18.481 8.004 KV
Austrian Airlines Lease and Finance Company Limited, St. Peter Port 100 344645 28,767 Kv
Tyrolean Airways Tiroler Luftfahrt GmbH, Innsbruck 100 75,240 8,278 KV
Lauda Air Luftfahrt GmbH, Wien-Schwechat : 100 4159 -3,665 KV
SLL, s.ro., Bratislava : 100° 1 -3 KV
TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH & Co KG, Schwechat : 100 9475 9,440 Kv
TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH, Schwechat ; 100 35 r KV
Austrian Airlines Technik - Bratislava, s.r.o. Bratislava : 100 5 - Kv
Austrian Airlines Technik Marketing GmbH, Schwechat : 100* 80 1429 KV
Bratislava Technik Center, s.r.o., Bratislava ) 100! 10 5 Ky
UIA Beteiligungs-Gesellschaft m.bH., Vienna ; 100 7894 -3 Kv
AUA Versicherungs-Service Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna 100* 40 351 KV
AVICON Aviation Cansult Gesellschaft m.bH., Vienna : 100* 4% -444 Kv
Wien Qberlaa Liegenschaftsentwicklungs GmbH, Schwechat : 100° 100 -4 Kv
Travidata Inc., New York ' ! 100 : § KY
TRAVIDATA (UK) Limited, London 100* i * Xv
ACS Aircontainer Services Gesellschaft m.b.H., Fischamend ! 76 360 86 Kv
TRAVI Holding GmbH, Vienna 67 54 6 KV
Traviaustria Datenservice fiir Reise und Touristik GmbH & Co. Nfg. KG, Viénna &7 3575 2,115 Kv
Slovenske Aerclinie, a.s. (Slavak Airlines), Bratislava ' - 61.99Y -1.365 17 Kv
SCA Schedule Coordination Austria GmbH, Schwechat i 54! 226 136 Kv
AVS Privatkunden Versicherungsservice GmbH, Schwechat : 51 735 -16 Kv
LAirPlus” Air Travel Card Vertriebsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna : 3333 9244 1,395 KE
Gulet Touristik GmbH, Vienna : 25 46 2 KE
Gulet Touristik GmbH & Co KG, Vienna 25 75 -8.185 KE
TUl-Austria Reiseveranstaltungs-GmbH & Co KG, Vienna 25 3161 1421 KE
Ukraine International Airlines, Kiev i 22.5 4961° -371* KE
DOZCO - Lauda Air Restaurants, Catering & Handling GmbH, Vienna 50 66° 54° KO
Link & Learn Aviation Training GmbH, Zirl ' 3333 55 5 KO
Osterreichische Luftfahrtschule AVIATION TRAINING Center Austria GmbH,
Feldkirchen bei Graz ’ 26* 225 112 KO

! Result transferred to Austrian Airlines on basis of profit and loss transfer agreement and limited partnership transfer with Austrian Airlines.
2 85.0% of holding held by AUA Beteiligungen Gesellschaft m.b.H. and 15.0% of holding held by AVICON Aviation Consult Gesellschaft mbH.
3 Holding held by 5LL, s.ro.

4 Holding held by AUA Beteiligungen Gesellschaft m.b.H.

% Net profit for the year not yet known.

6 Holding held by AUA Versicherungs-Service Gesellschaft m.b.H.

7 Holding held by UIA Beteiligungsgesellschaft m.bH.

8 Adjusted figures according IFRS as at 31.12.2005.

9 Figures as at 31. 3. 2005.

KV Fully consolidated.
KE  Included at equity in the consolidated accounts,
KO Mot consolidated dus to minor significance.
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Group structure f
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v
AUSTRIAN AIRLINES
Osterreichische Luftverkehrs-AG*

Lauda Air
Luftfahrt GmbH

Tyrolean Airways
L Tiroler
Luftfahrt GmbH

Ukraine
Internaticnal
Airlines 4

22.5%

Slovenske
Aerolinie
as.’s

I sitines

Stand Dezember 2006

.

Austrian’Airlines

Jleaseand Financel
B Company,Ltd!

100%

[

|

TVW Travel Value
Wien Betriebs
GmbH & Co KG

AUA Beteiligungen
GmbH !

JUCAUS i)
(GmbHELCOIKG

25%

[Traviaustria
Datenservice, i,

[ReiselundiTouristik
o R CINTSYEG

67%

oo
Service,GmbHL

100%

AirgTravel Card

vertriebsg
gesellschaftimbHg

33.3%

Austrian Airlines
H Technik Marketing
GmbH

Avicon Aviation
Consult GmbH

SCA Schedule
IH Coordination
Austria GmbH

ACS Aircontainer
Services GmbH

Star Alliance

Services GmbH

. Financial and Insurance Services

1 Austrian Airlines Gsterreichische Luftverkehrs-AG halt weiters Antaile an der TVW Travel Value Wien Betriebs GmbH und an der Do & Co
Lauda Air Restaurants, Catering & Handiling GmbH. -

2 Die AUA Beteiligungen GmbH hilt weiters Anteile an der Travidata Inc., Travidata (UK} Ltd., TRAVI Holding GmbH, Gulet Touristik GmbH, OPODO Ltd,
AeroXchange Ltd,, Link & Learn Aviation Training GmbH, SLL sr.o. UIA Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH und Wien Oberlaa Liegenschaftsentwicklungs GmbH.

3 Die AUA Versicherungsservice GmbH ist mit 51% an der AVS Privatkunden Versicherungsservice GmbH betedligt.

4 Die UIA Beteiligungsgeseltschaft mbH, an der die AUA Beteiligungen GmbH zu 100% beteiligt ist, hilt 22.5% der Anteile.

it
¥

Osterreichische
Luftfahrtschule
Aviation Training
Center Austria GmbH

. Other Services

5 Oie SLL, sr.0.,an der die AUA Beteiligungen GmbH zu B5% und die Avicon Aviation Consult GmbH zu 15% beteiligt sind. hait 62% der Anteile.

*
[
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€ Austrian Airlines on the Capital Market

Glossary

BEGF AVAILABLE copy

AEA

Association of European Airlines

ustrian Airlines Group

Austrian Airlines, Tyrolean Airways, Lauda Air and other Group companies (scope of cansolidation for the
IFRS Group financial statements); in marketing terms, the umbrella brand for Austrian. Austrian Arrows and
Lauda Air.

Available seat kilometers (ASK)

Total of seats availablz times distance travelled

‘Available ton kilometers (ATK)

Total of weight capac.ty available in tons times distance travelled

Block hours

Time from departure 3f aircraft from loading position until its return to unloading position after landing

Blocked space agreement

Agreement regarding the purchase of a fixed block of seats from another carrier: these seats are then
marketed and sold by the purchaser

Cash Value Added (CVA)

(ROTGA minus WACC) x Total Gross Assets (= Fixed assets at acquisition cost plus other assets minus
non-interest-bearing debt)

Cash-iike items

Cash in hand, cheques, bank balances and securities

Code sharing agreement

Agreement under which at least one of the airline designator codes on a flight differs from the code used
by the operating carrier

Result from operating activities Ay
BIT margin Result from operatiny activities in relation to revenues ey
EBIT before depreciation and rentals
Airport functioning as the central transfer point of an airline
International Air Transport Association. i
et Gearing Long-term debt excl. provisions and tax accruals/deferrals minus cash-like items, in relation

to shareholders’ equity

Route network of an airline

perating revenue

Total turnover plus changes in inventories, services rendered for own account and carried as fixed assets
and other operating revenues

Overall load factor

Utilisation of available weight capacity in percent (RTK x 100/ATK})

Passenger load factor

Available seats in relation to the number of revenue passengers in percent (RPK x 100/ ATK)

Passengers carried

Number of revenue passengers carried on individual flights. Flights with one fight number are counted as one
flight only, regardless of the number of stopovers™

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

NOPAT (= EBIT minus taxes) in relation to Capital Employed (= shareholders’ equity plus interest-bearfng
debt minus cash-like items)

Return on Equity (ROE)

Profit befere tax in ralation to average shareholders’ equity

Return on Total Gross Assets (ROTGA)

EBITDAR in relation 1o Total Gross Assets (= Fixed assets at acquisition cost minus
non-interest-bearing debt)

Revenue passenger kilometers (RPK)

Total number of seats sold (passengers carried), times distance.travelled,
T

|Revenue ton kilometers (RTK)

Total weight capacity sold in tons times distance travelled

lSector flight Flight frem take-off to the next landing (e.g. individual section of a long-haul flight)
lUnit costs Adjusted overall operating expenses in relation to ASK

WACC Weighted average cast of capital

Yield Adjusted passenger flight revenue from scheduled services in relation to scheduled RPK

(0]

u
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Key Figures

: 2006 2005 /=% 2004 2004 2003 2002
+iiness Performance (IFR5} restated’
<, ht revenue EURm 2,2605 88 20870 2,0870 1906.4 2,055.2
. Jerating revenue? EURmM 248538 A 23579 2.3635 22427 2.398.0
\ erating result = EBIT EURm -100.0 11.0 ‘784 ¢ T34 633 41.4
'ferating cash flow EURm 2508 386 2104 11482 3452 5209
| GA? % 68 52 0.2P 59 59 6.2 77
9 Value Added (CVA)* EURmM 112.9) -165.0 - —2070 LR L2070 -1948 -109.8
£rge in CVA EURm {501 42.0 - -122 ~12.2 -850 143
_E:'s:ho!ders’ equity 31,12, EURm 8278 565.6 388 686.4 630.9 6045 557.0
F earing® % [G1%7] 1191.6 - ... 1813 1973 199.5 2504
;‘ “ments and downpayments EURM 154+7] '293.4 s =338, 2679 205.7 201.0 2487
} ;inel (average) 8,468 :' T3 7662 7662 7167 7,358
Li (Zal market figures
! rs code AUAVVI
i. ngs per share?® EUR -4.05 - 134 124 1.42 1.29
o -d earnings per share® EUR -4.05 - 1.27 118 135 1.26
¢ 22nd’ EUR - - - - - -
-7ket capitalisation 31.12.° EURm 2122 - 312.0 C 3207 210.6 2229
“’_‘.‘:T;c statistics (scheduled and charter trafﬁc)
- '-;19ers carried’® {000) 10.119.8 71 9.404.9 94049 8,479.4 B8,834.7
" ich on scheduted flights {000) 83161 9.4 78238 "' 78238 70517 7.269.2
;/a'ssenger load factor® )
(scheduled services) % | 738 0.2P. 21 0 f B 73 705
ATK per employee™ (000) 4903 08 513.2 513.2 47049 458.4
Aircraft 106 -09 97 97 88 87

1 Restated; please see Note 3 for details of the adjustment in the Annual Repart 2005 (retrospective application of the component approach).
2 Operating revenue: total turnover plus changes in inventories, services rendered for own account and carried as fixed assets and other operative revenues,
3 Return on Total Gross Assets (ROTGA): EBITDAR in retation to Total Gross Assets (= assets at acquisition cost minus non-interest-bearing debt).

4 Cash Value Added (CVA): (ROTGA minus WACC) x Total Gross Assets (= assets at acquisition cost minus non-interest-bearing debt).

5 Net Gearing: long-term debt excl. provisions and tax accruals/deferrals minus cash-like items, in relation to shareholders’ equity.

\

", e number of stopovers.

x

b}

[

?

6 Adjusted by average number of own shares held by the company.

7 Dividend 2006: due to the negative net result of the parent company, payment of a dividend i is not ‘allowed.
8 Adjusted to account for 1.7m bought-back shares from 2002 and considering the nummber of shaies newly-issued as a result of the capital increase in 2006.
" Passengers carried: number of revenue passengers carried on individual flights. Flights with one flight number are counted as one flight only. regardless of

K ?}enger load factor: available seats in relation to the number of revenue passengers in percent (RPK x 100/ASK).
P - /}ilable ton kilometers per employee: weight capacity available on scheduled services in tons times distances travelled per airline employee (yearly average).
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Ad-hoc Release

STRONG IMPROVEMENT IN OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND
RESULT SITUATION DESPITE EXTRAORDINARY EFFECTS

Financial result of Austrian Airlines Group for business year 2006

Offering an overview of the Austrian Airline Group’s annual results, which were released today,
Chief Executive Officer Alfred Otsch said: “In the business year 2006, the Austrian Airlines
Group has introduced crucial restructuring steps and started out on an important new course. We
have significantly improved our operating performance and result. The key factors in this have been
the increase in our flight revenue and the significantly stronger growth in our yields compared to
unit costs. On the other hand, extraordinary effects - overwhelmingly the result of the restructuring
of the Group's long-haul segment and the personnel cost provisions this necessitated ~ had a
negative influence on the result. In this challenging environment, it proved impossible to achieve a
positive result. Following the successful conclusion of the capital increase, however, we have taken
another important step towards completing our restructuring programme, and are now in a position
to implement key measures more quickly. We are pursuing a clear strategy focussing on the
markets of Central and Eastern Europe, basing that strategy on a well-established, strong brand. We
shall continue to move forward with our quality and product offensive in 2007.”

Improvement in result situation

Although the adjusted EBIT of the Group remained marginally negative at EUR -8.3m, this figure.
was up by EUR 43.7m, a major improvement on the previous year., The unadjusted EBIT including
extensive extraordinary positions - mainly provisions for the redimensioning of long-haul routes,
exchange rate gains and value adjustments for Slovak Airlines — improved from EUR -100.0m to
EUR -89.0m.

The balance of financial income and expenses improved in the report period, overall the financial
result of the Austrian Airlines Group decreased by EUR 19.5m to EUR -49.1m in 2006 (2005:
EUR -29.6m) due to exchange rate-related depreciations of securities in the report period and
appreciations in 2005. On this basis, the result before tax reached a value of EUR -138.1m (2005:
EUR -129.6m). Overall, this produced an annual result of EUR -129.9m (2005: EUR -129.1m).
However, one of the most important factors in this result trend, which was below expectations, were
the continuing high kerosene prices experianced in 2006, which generated total additional costs for
the Group of EUR 75.7m.

Chief Financial Officer Thomas Kleibl made the following statement on the balance sheet of the:
Austrian Airlines Group: “The key objectives of the Austrian Airlines Group in 2006 were to continue
reducing the Group's liabilities and to improve the balance sheet structure. The past year has seen
us bring down net debt from EUR 1,083.5m to EUR 715.7m and improve our net gearing (net debt
in relation to shareholders’ equity) from 191.6% to 91.2% through the increase in our shareholders’
equity. The capital increase successfully completed last year also helps -to reinforce our equity
position, making us substantially more resistant to external crises.”




Increases in revenue, operating revenue and yields

The Austrian Airtines Group succeeded in improving its flight revenue by 8.8% to EUR 2,458.8m in
2006 (2005: EUR 2,260.5m). This increase was considerably stronger than the rate of expansion in
production of 1.6% (measured in ASK) over the same .period. The key factors here were the
improved market environment, the increase in passenger numbers, the fuel surcharges and higher
average revenues achieved through the introduction of a traffic flow management system designed
to optimise average revenue.

Other revenue also increased slightly in the report period, at EUR 134.4m (2005: EUR 132.4m),
while other income fell from EUR 92.9m to EUR 69.6m. In total, operating revenue rose by 7.1% to
reach EUR 2,662.8m.

The yields of the Austrian Airlines Group improved substantially in the report period 2006. A number
of different factors played a role in this result, including the partial offsetting of increased fuel costs
with continued fuel surcharges.

Increase in expenses

As in the preceding business year, the expenses trend of the Austrian Airlines Group was strongly
influenced by the development of kerosene prices in the report period. Another significant factor was
the increase in personnel provisions for the redimensioning of the Group’s long-haul activities and
the reduction in staff numbers this involvad. Overall, however, the operating expenses of the Group
increased at a rate of 6.4% to reach EUR 2,751.8m, markedly less than the rise in operating
revenue. While total expenses for materials and services increased by 7.3% to EUR 1,659.4m in the
report period, the growth in fuel expenses - which rose by 16.7% to EUR 530.0m - was
substantially above the expansion in production of 1.6%. .

The background to this increase in costs is the trend in the price of kerosene, which climbed sharply
above the preceding year’s figure once again. The average price of kerosene, USD 562 per ton in
2005, rose to USD 645 per ton in 2006, also exceeding the internal planning assumpticns of the
Austrian Airlines Group of USD 615 per ton. The trend was uneven over the course of the year:
while the price of kerosene increased steadily throughout the first half of 2006, reaching a new
record level of more than EUR 750 per ton at the beginning of the 3rd quarter, by September it had
fallen back to around its level at the beginning of the year. By the end of the year the kerosene price
eventually stood at approximately USD 600 per ton.

The fuel hedging policy of the Austrian Airlines Group is based on the comprehensive evaluation of
all associated risks. In the past, however, the tight financial position of the company has meant it
has been unable to engage in hedging. Now, following the successful completion of the capital

increase, the Group is set to launch a staged hedging programme to strategically hedge against

future fluctuations in kerosene prices. The aim is to hedge anything up to 20% of the Group’s annual
kerosene requirement on a step-by-step basis,

In an effort to partially absorb additicnal expenditure on kerosene, the Austrian Airlines Group - like:

the majority of its competitors — has levied staged fuel surcharges since May 2004, which appear as

additional revenue in the flight revenue position. The company has only been able to cover a

proportion of its additional costs with these surcharges, however.

The personnel expenses of the Austrian Airlines Group increased by 21.7% to EUR 611.3m in the

report period. This increase was primarily the result of personnel provisions made in the course of’

the restructuring, which had an effect on net income. When adjusted to account for the effects from

the formation of personnel provisions during the redimensioning of the long-haul segment, the.

Group’s personnel expenses increased by EUR 27.9m. This is the equivalent of an increase of 5.6%
compared to the previous year,




Rise in net cash flow from operating activities

At EUR 360.2m, the net cash flow from gperating activities of the Austrian Airlines Group was 38.6%
above the level for the previous year. This was based on an improvement in working capital. A
greater increase in provisions and a reduction in receivables also contributed to thls figure,
particularly compared to the previous year.

Despite having clearly oriented its business strategy towards growth in CEE, the Austrian Airlines
Group continues to pursue a restrictive investment programme. In 2006 no further aircraft orders
took place. An Airbus A319 and a Boeing 737-800 which have been incorporated into the fleet in
2006 strengthen and modernize the medium haul segment.

Despite these acquisitions, payments (investments) from the purchase of tangible and intangible
assets fell by -33.6% in the business year 2006 to EUR 194.7m (2005: EUR 293.4m). Due to the
lower investments in aircraft, net cash flow from investing activities improved to EUR ~2.0m (2005:
EUR -81.2m). Net cash flow from financing activities reached the figure of EUR 17.8m (2005:
EUR -97.3m) in the report period. This rise was based first and foremost on the injection of capital
facilitated by the capital increase.

Slight increase in unit costs

Due to the increase in fuel and personnel-related costs, the Austrian Airlines Group found itself
unable to continue reducing its unit costs in the business year 2006, something it had succeeded in
doing since 2001. Against this background, unit costs (total adjusted operating expenses In relation
to ASK) increased year-on-year by 3.4% to 8.46 ct/ASK (2005: 8.18 ct/ASK). Employee
productivity, on the other hand (measured in ATK/employee)}, improved slightly in the report period,
primarily. due to the Group's restrictive staffing policy, rising by 0.5%.

Strong growth in traffic and market share gains

Chief Commercial Officer Dr. Josef E. Burger explained the Group’s strategic focus points: “In an
effort to further our ‘first mover’ strategy, we incorporated six new destinations in Central and
Eastern Europe and the Middie East into our route network during 2006. In addition to this, we
became the first West European airline to enter into a cooperation agreement with Russian airline
alliance AiR Union, significantly expanding our range of operation as a result. In streamlining our
long-range network, we are concentrating on destinations in America and Asia that provide the
prerequisites for reaching the profit zone. The extended and newly-adapted Business Class in our
long-range Boeing 777 and Boeing 767 aircraft will make a real contribution to this.”

The scheduled segment experienced encouraging growth in the business year 2006. The main
reason for this was a clear increase in business from medium-haul routes, which more than
compensated for the effect of the reducticn in the Group’s long-range capacities. The total number
of available seat kilometers on scheduled services expanded by 5.3% in the report period, while
demand (revenue passenger kilometers) increased disproportionately, rising by 5.6%. As a result,

the load factor on scheduled services also increased marginally, by 0.2 percentage points, with an

average for the year overall of 74.0%. Passenger volume grew by 9.4% to 9,095,752.

The Austrian Airlines Group significantly increased its routes departing from the Vienna hub in the
repart period. Primarily through its implementation of a new system for optimising the management

of traffic flows, the Group succeeded in generating a greater increase in the number of local

passengers than of transfer passengers. The share of total scheduled passenger volume of the
Group attributable to transfer traffic over the year as a whole remained stable, however, at around
60%. To increase streams of transfer traffic, the Austrian Airlines Group now concentrates more
strongly on secondary market destinations with medium-sized passenger volumes for which levels of

competition are less intensive. The Group’s specialist role in this field enables it to develop its

position in this highly attractive market sagment especially effectively, and additional connecting
flights were provided in secondary market destinations in summer 2006 as a result. Routes of this
type now account for approximately 58% of transfer volume, followed by long-haul connections,
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which contribute around a quarter ot transier Volume. Frimary traliic, for which competition Is more
intensive, only accounts for some 16% of the total.’
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In an effort to realise sa!es and network synergies, the Austrian Airlines Group integrated
responsibility for management of its long-haul charter traffic (with the exception of the Caribbean)
into the scheduled segment at the beginning of the winter schedule 2005/06. This change in
classification produced shifts in production from the charter to the scheduled services segment,
which had a correspondent effect on ravenue distribution. The Austrian Airlines Group increased
total revenue from the scheduled services segment by 9.9% in 2006.

LI

In the charter segment, the holiday flight activities of the Austrian Airlines Group are marketed to
the public under the “Lauda Air - the Austrian way to holidays” brand. Just as in the scheduled
services segment, the aircraft capacities of all the production companies of the Austrian Airlines
Group are used in the charter segment. Overall, the Group operated 426 different routes in the
charter segment in the past year, with available seat kilometer volume falling by 16.4% to 4,418m.
The Group was again able to market this increased production effectively in 2006. The number of
passengers carried on charter services fell at a slower rate than the reduction in availability,
decreasing by 3.6% to 1,738,916, with the passenger load factor improving to 77.2%.

Revenue in the charter segment fell slightly in the report period, by 0.2% to EUR 261.7m. Demand
in the charter segment overall remained stable, however, despite challenging market conditions. The
Group carried approximately the same number of passengers in medium-haul in 2006 as in the
preceding year, The most important destinations were Greece, Spain, Turkey, Egypt and Portugal. In
the long-haul segment, by contrast, the number of passengers carried fell by around 62%. The main
reason for this was the transfer of a number of destinations into the scheduled segment as described
above; Popular holiday destinations such as Cuba and Mexico continued to be served over the
winter, however. Due to the active adjustment of ﬂight availabillty to match demand, operating
revenue in the charter segment fell to EUR 272.2m, 1.0% down on the preceding year. EBIT in the
segment improved, however, from -15.0rn to EUR -10.6m.

Considered by geographical segment, the Austrian Airlines Group continued to expand its range of
connections into the Central and Eastern European region during the report period within the
framework of the Focus East strategy. With its new destinations of Iasi and Sibiu, the Group once
again assumed a pioneering “first mover” role in the Central and Eastern European region. In
addition to incorporating new destinatiors including Yekaterinburg, Donetsk and Ostrava into the
network, the company continued to expand availability on its existing connections, increasing the
number of flights on the Moscow route and availability to a range of other cities including the

Ukrainian regional centres of Kharkov, Kiev and L'viv. The Group also expanded its availability to Ukralne
with the relaunch of its own flights to Odessa.

The Austrian Airlines Group also reaffirmed its position as a “first mover” in the Middle East in 2006.
The company became the first western carrier to serve the city of Erbil in Iraq, operating twice-
weekly flights since 11 December 2006. The Group also expanded its product in this geographical
segment on the routes to Tel Aviv, Dubai and Larnaca.

Dynamic continuation in fleet harmonisation

The Austrian Airlines Group tock another important step towards harmonising its long-haul fleet in.
2006 with the sale of its two four-engine Airbus A340-200 type jets. To offset this sale, a Boeing,
B777-200ER delivered at the beginning of 2007 was incorporated into the existing Boeing 777 fleet.’
Due to the greater revenue potential and significantly lower seating costs of the new aircraft, the
change is expected to produce a marked irnprovement in long-haul production costs. The Group also
decided to sell the remainder of its long-haul Airbus fleet in 2007, with two A340-300 to be leased,
out long-term to Star Alliance partner Swiss in the second half-year. The Group's four remaining
Airbus A330-200 long-haul aircraft will also be removed from service with the fleet,

In recent years, the Austrian Airlines Group has acquired a total of 15 value-for-money medium-haul .
jets of the Fokker 100 type. The Fokker 100 can be operated in a single fleet family with the Fokker
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high level of passenger comfort, -

The Austrian Airlines Group began operating its seventh medium-haul aircraft of the type Airbus 31%
in the report period. Since the A319 belcngs to the A320 fleet family, all the models can be flown by
a single corps of pilots. Two short-haul aircraft of the“type Canadair CRJ-100 were removed from
service with the Austrian Airlines Group fleet and sold in 2006. The company intends to dispose of
its final short-haul jet of this sub-type in 2007. The Boeing 737-800 that also entered service in the

report period will primarily be used to provide charter services.

An Overview of the Annual Result 2006

Key Figures 2006 2005 + /- abs. +/- %
Revenue EURmM 2,593.2 2,392.9 200.3 8.4
Operating revenue EURm 2,662.8 2,485.8 177.0 7.1
QOperating expenses EURmM -2,751.8 -2,585.8 -166.0 -6.4
EBITDAR EURmM 277.2 303.5 -26.3 -8.7
EBITDAR adjusted * EURmM 348.7 3194 29.3 9.2
EBIT # EURmM -89.0 -100.0 11.0 11.0
EBIT adjusted %3 EURm -8.3 -52.0 43,7 84.0
Financial result EURmM -49.1 -29.6 -19.5 -65.9
Result before tax EURm -138.1 -129.6 -8.5 -6.6
Result before tax adjusted . EURM -50.1 -94.9 44.8 47.2
Result from continued business ,
divisions EURmM -139.6 -131.3 -8.3 -6.3
Result from continued business '
divisions adjusted 3 EURmM -51.6 -96.6 45.0 46.6
Annual result EURmM -129.9 -129.1 -0.8 -0.6
Net cash flow from operating
activities EURmM 360.2 259.8 100.4 38.6
Net gearing % 91.2 191.6
Equity ratio % 24.5 17.7 6.8 P,
Passengers carried total | Passengers | 10,834,668 10,119,773 7.1
Passenger load factor (scheduled % 74.0 73.8 G.2P.
services)
Cargo Tons 171,284 160,992 6.4
Legend:

1 Adjusted by the result from the disposal of assets, other costs of the transfer of aircraft and foreign currency valuations at the reporting
date and the value adjustment at Slovak Airlines.

2  Before incorporation of assoclated companies.

3 Adjusted by the result from the disposal of assets, other costs of the transfer of alrcraft, foreign currency valuatlons at the reporting date,
and recovery/lmpairment of the value of aircraft and th2 value adjustment at Slovak Alrlines.

Dr. Prisca Havranek-Koslcek, Investor Relations, Austrian Airlines, Tel.:

e-mail: prisca.havranek-kosicek@austrian,com
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